Ry qiftrsy 9 fofics

99031 aiffer gfdae

i au 09< / 093

II&;Q] aifors2r do for.
RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LTD.






e afdrsar 3o for.
RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LTD.

ey ity S fofics
99 3 I1fep HATErROT THT

i gfade

anfefe a9 0z / 09}

fafea: R095 /0% /35



quaf} aTfife gRTaeT 095 /0%

fdur i

1 Qs AT AR AT qEERAT =T 3-%
R AT R l
3. Vision, Mission and Core Values %
¥ Sehepl TS AT 9
Y. e Fiered qfea %
% IoATAS ATHIAH] ATETH Heaed 19-9%
9. FoEEE AHGATE TR 1.9, 095 /09 FH AlNE FfTaad -3
S, FHFIAT U R0%3 FH TR Y1 FHITSTHE! fqawo 3¥-3%
%. @¥AAl U 0%3 B T g SIS foaror 39-%0
0. T@TIETT Hiqaad ¥9-45
9. AT 08 /09 B faxiid [ q91 qqg=ies 42-9%9
R, ftag arfrsg o fa a1 fafd 09 919 35 T T s ATiiE qrERT FhTETE

g TAUIe®® SO SEET JaeauT qAT MAHTEEEr TR FgAET O Hed FeRe (¥g
3. Wftea Aifrsa SEdr IRl THE T U997 FATAT Favadesd! AT %%
1%, AT fqaRer T @ qEaeel A9 AT s T 40
. wrreT S/ fardwer arfie faeirr ferer gere T aEaedT que A5g A 9T 144
1% SFFH Hecaqul PRaTFaTIessl i HR-949




RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LTD.

[ e e des quait aTffer afTaaT 095,/09%

TUEH I 5

e aiftrey e fefiee
feEeRaRTT, FSHTS!

qNE QIR THT T LA
F9 qaF THRT fafeT: 09R /0% /00 T, MRETYT )
@Y qe FehiTa fafe: 09R /0% /05 T, MRETYA )

TG bl gooTeleh AT (AT 2068 /0% /0% T THHI UG Al Thd! HUATHAR Shebl 9 Af aTfi
ararer a7t fafaq, aw T 2= e fauaesdr saswa aar o 9 9% qUsT g9 FFET U, Q053
T TR §O ATAR TFIU] SAREAT HETTHTAGER] AR TF IJUTETTepl @ATNT AT F=AAT TI TRUHT 3 |

() QTERY A1 gH fAfe, T97 T &1 ¢

fafr:  RowR/0%/3c T, fadEm |

qHY : faqr .00 a9 |

@M  WERAEN feq ey arfrer §& fafgagedr aamed |

(@) FARAR [ATIET

(37 YTERT J&KEa8e

(1) T ATATTRT ThHATE AT T[T THET dhadl AT T.R005 /9% F Al Jidaad IR FAHhd
T aIfee T

() QI gfqaes Afedel 09 ATUTe qAT=dw! o feafaer faazor, fafq 0wz /0¥ /09 3fg
0] /03 /3R FEHE! ATHT TIT AT [qaor, Fel srafaerl 7978 JaTe faa=ur qor SaRe«r #1y qiad-e!
fera=or avaaeT faxira faavoes SR gerwd T wivd T |

(3)  FoATeA AT TEATE T AT Aehebl 09, ATHTE HAT-AHT BTAH T&ehT TThT SR Ti1 £.93,2 ¥,03 %%, 0231
FT O YO (AT THAF 1) GFATAHT T ET TS ThH €.9,0% U4 3%,23RN¥3 (F&Ul T dd IR FIS
RO AT Flead B9R AT 99 aiad 49T Srenferd 7T 1) (R JATSR! AT HA) AE AT faawer
T T a1 19 |

(¥) T @ R0 /50 F AN 6T d@IAEF Mah T9 q97 Meieed! qiesfas fHarer T |

@Gm iy e

() ST SEREAEATS J0\9R, ATHTE FATRTHT HTaH =[ThT Ioil .93,%¥,03 4%,0%%1- T ¥ (=) Freaeraer g
F.%%,90 99 U ¥IRY ( aw@rmﬁmwﬁwwmmwmwmm)w
IR (ATATT) Y&TH T TodATeAeh AIHTceh! J&ard qiied T |

() I GXFRATE T SAehepl STAX SHT ST AT YT TFH %. ,00,00,00,000|- (HEFHT TH A A
Sfehepl ST ST ¥ F<hT ISITHT 99 T |

(3) a9 gEard 7. q T R THETSTHET (HUAES HrAT=aT T Sebebl Ta T AR ATA9TD G T
JAT AT FEHT AT AT S FAT A7 (Ao (Hepraame & Foired, afedrs= qar fHeer quar 4
FHITSTH aRHTSTT T Fa AfeTarsy Shedl goarad AfAfaers yar T |

@ fafae

(Q ) @A FATAFH! AR TET=IHT ARV THATHT ATARRI TIF T |



N — qu3f} aTffe gRTaeT 095 /0%

RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LTD.

TP M I

QTR GHT JFHT 7T SATAHN

q0.

11.

ATftes AR AT ATl fafra fafd 209 /0% /95 Tq SrERgHT i qfedet a2 (Book Close) & |
AT ¥ b TaRTeieT (o, |1 AT 2098 /0%, /98 TAEaH FRIER 75 MIAATTAR $2X AHERI TUH SaRgHeed
HTA T IR FHTHT G89RT g9 Ja7 AT, 095 /09R, &Hl ATHIT 997 AT FAa |

IR FATAT AT 9 Iogh ARG HETTHTERS AR JHIOGS a7 [@atel §. qor ST q=rd ol
THTOT AT |kl Aty Afar $OAr Aaer a5 Arsaad JTRg g |

SIRGAT HeTAHTagwal gureafd qRaeT Txa@d T SERgHl Iafedfa qiede Areare 941 v faq fegar
q:00 TS 3@ .00 TS FF Geell AT |

AIGROEATHT AT feamerr it gfafafa (9 faeh T Aed ERdeed y=idad weadl Hidd drebdl
FrETHT ATt O (FTRTT) RIRE AT FAT 9% gAwET FRIAT 92 Tl 3N Sehebl Frald FATAT feord
oo QAT QAT ®T qdql IS THFITS | Sohebl ARG ATesh qEelTs YT a7 ¥ UhH=T el
Afchars ATRAT TR fa9sa T q9r 9= FH fpfaaare gaarg dR foT e oA, 798 feguer 9
q Fa¥ gASA |

TSN SARIATA USR] derdrs T (Gradl) Hep TAT Jiqiate (Jredl) &&d: oar g | a3 giqiig
(TRiT) IR Tasals atead SERdHre fditg hieaed 9 AeHr a9 @t fqusr gfatata o (9reRi)
T T AT gfafafa o (G g wrerar fGga 9 ged 97 afed YR BRE FEHTE Srald el
JAT 9% g 9vaT O TUIT IS IAT TRICHT FAATH Afoead] GiAAfaare Tad: Ja% qUH A1 digedl
qicifer (ITeRdT) «TE A fege |

gfatafa s REber AR ATh GEHT IURTT 9 BT IREdeh T qeqed AT fsTer feushr giafafa
(IR T TR S |

THT 3, ¥ ¥ 4 A Seod(@d (&7 F Arasiiqer {ga7 99 TCHT 9 A THIETHT IJeadrad FATSTebl i

FFIATER FATAT ol @S, |

. THHT 961 ATchasd! GIh ATHAT S TAT 8] ATLATHT FAAFAdare Jiaiid =a= TR ThsTare AT

T T Tharerdr gfedl ATH Jool@ AUR! Ahel GHTHT AN (o9 TS, |

ATeTeles a7 ATAE A S1h ALeh! SAIHIEwh] THATE FHFIAIHR! AT TAT [haTeHl FReTdhebl TTHT ATH
TAT AZAHH] HETTATIESA FHTHT AR (9, AAGE T a1 Jiqiaig dre g g |

TS FEATHT AXGAT AUAT TEAT Mo FEITGRT AANAT SAhel «ATs+ T YRl HIRE FLITH FT T
AT Afhe! T&q@d g1 TS |

TR GAT FTHEEIHT I AAEE AGAF I FAd G0 (9 Sl F Fraraaiedd qearas
Tfafeepr AfEETeraa T TFIF AT A TS, | AT =T SATAFRIBT AT el Ta@Tse www.rbb.com.np
AT & i |

FAToe qiafaer AT,
FHET G



[ - quaf} aTfife gRTaeT 095 /0%

—
9
FHET U, 083 H THT N {1 q=f=a

( ) fafa: o021
fegevaR =TeT, HTSATST |

forwa : wiafaie frges ivgat s
HETITY,
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA el AT /AT AT A T H/BTHL e, O O T BT STIRERTRT

gfaaaer Faq 09 AW 9 AfedT 5 M, GTEER (@ETER R033/9/9%) #1 faT g qut At qramwer qErH
H/ETHI @F IUNAd 95 BARA qdT [AUGHT FEANH g q9a AUBA I<h GATHT W /FTHI qhaTe AR fade

AT Tt 9T /MALFST Ao T o EIERE: A1}
gfafaf ok T8 qoruet g/ g |

RCECT
IR
gttt fraee wor =atwer
TEIE:
SEIIEY THAT:
, CIE:H
=g g7
ST
fafa: ‘
AR T
fafa:

TR TAHT T AT IURIT & AGH SR gHIesel Tq Sbebl Feald FATAT qoaTcdsh AATqe! Aterarad, feazar
TS, FTSHITET I F,09-¥UIUQY TFIIHT 699 AT G¥Ieh T8 Q9 dMep HTIRI FATR! AT TR IIRTHT T
HRE T AT B T AT 062 e T Y T, GEAR [GHET 0000 I GEF FET LAT TERIST &7 gred s, |

7

\

T

Q) SEREAT AThe Wl FSEe TRl |

) AATHETHT G T AT FAT-T7 I T Aard 3 |

3) IR W I WU R M 9idqitg = 3@ 8 @ |
¥) YT fEeT FEIEE SR geeTe w1 fed arEd g )

AT : A AT AR AT Y g FT BAKTAT R 0T F I el el FIATAT JoaTeAS AIATTBT
Hheared, feaar wemT 39 T4 qEEs |

N




ftca aifdis 3 for.
RASTRIYA BANLJYA BANK LTD.

Vision, Mission and
Core Values

“The most credible
bank for one

and all, always
contributing
towards Nation’s
prosperity”

We strive to enhance
the quality of life of all
Nepalese by eliminating
barriers to financial access
and helping them achieve
their full potential; and by
ensuring safe, innovative
and affordable financial
services, through vast
networks of efficient centers,
socially responsible business
processes and empathetic
human resources.
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. Respect people and

their community.

. Effectiveness and

efficiency in our
business process.

. Value all kind of

resources.
. Responsible and
accountable for our
deliveries.
. Honesty, integrity and
credibility in each of

our action.




-3
P ﬁ w _|_ _ _ - w
PALII] 1Bllg 22lhde 1ells B2k
W _
L) Llktb] bls2hie lsl ﬁ EE% Llitke] £l ﬁEE :blo_mul
w bhibakke Bk il winllk kD kb [

ok Likas Diiib bhikdbke bR

(94n3dNAS JeuoiieziuebiQ) LIORRR io]ole]Rr
SALYY| PP ROIQYID RIYR



RASTRIVA BANIJYA BANK LD,

[ - ——— quaf} aTfife gRTaeT 095 /0%

TS AT TIPRISIE®: (ATATATE FTEAHUHT FHI) Foarsh AT 9TH] JaTE TG, A ST, ToTH TS,

TaTAF T ST, ASTATETE GIeet T WA= Felraash A7 qeq fafag,

qratare St wHw: FEred = fafaw wRw G, dwree o dfer g U ¥ "Ered o qire fatay



aftca aifdiox 3w far.
RASTRIYA BANLJYA BANK LTD.

AU M I

quaf} aTfife gRTaeT 095 /0%

dd! Jf3d aRa=a

At afrey S At I9a BAT Fraeraed
SRR e qUHT Medesdrs dids Ja1 TAT3e
ATUHT ATIT QTATSSIA=E] ATHT SITETd  Sldhebl
S &7 1 fa & 0% 9 AT 90 T A9
WEFRF JU F@HCAAT qealiaq (99 U,
qfted afirsg &% TA, 039 AT T
qUHl T9 g% 9. § 03 Faerg arored
S UA, 034 Ardiid HETATAT eI AT |
fo & R0%3 99 9@ & T Ufedd fdfids
FEAAMG] TAAT HFAA]  IAACRB  HTATATH]
qar 9% B o qdr foeig gwer gt U,
093 B AT FTAR ‘F A FASIATA
qTeq ATOTST Sl FTHT FHATAT HEH G |
AT ARHRH qU FATHCAHT el T SHHT
fo& o9y T Jem@ 9% T T Arsfe
SHATAE o fafHde WY q9=rd SeHT

TITA TXERE! %%.%9 Glqerd T FaATRuIaE!
0.03 FfaeTd AT TW@MHcT TEA ATUEH T |

FISHUST WEFTRYTiAeT ael +. 99 fH¥gevan
TATSITAT &esld BT T8l T odbel SATSTahT
feaTe ATEIFaT FH 9 Fd TIITHT WISRTH
FATTIEE TMYAT T O T eaTadT 99
TEIHAEM Fied ATHFT %Y Fa @D
HIETHATE FE O G NEHEeaATs oA[epIT e
yate T S AT |y Zemr geured ?
AR B | T AhpT ek, ARG, FaHE
& dar 99 WERF! MRra FednT
fergararer erur s Terd Al uE freaEA
I I THA HUH G |

D ftca afdisx 3o a1
RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LTD.

l‘ |
|




aia

o




aftca aifdiox 3w far.
RASTRIYA BANLIYA BANK LTD.

TUEH I ¥

quaf} aTfife gRTaeT 095 /0%

AodIAd AfdAfAdI ITEAJD! AcAA

AN FAREAT HETTATAE,

TITTH TH bl 99 Af ATl FTLRT FATHT
ST gANUHT IO SREREAl,  ATHAd
AT TF 7T HEATIesH H=Tad ATHITa
qhdTe gliads TN AWaTEd a<h Tag |
dfps wwia, gfawr, fim @merar, Sfes
niafata srcavd fafya ATETET Te@T IREeTHT
TATART AT AT Sebebl STHT TAIAT ATHT
TG S TIIAIHERNG  ATTAFH  HATSUET
fafed 9¥E T ol 9R TE HARH oA6F
SN Hecaqu ANTE TAT98 ATERedl el
WWI’&' BieS m 1w S SEEIEI
qI | dg™ A4l dplX, QM(H"HS(’, */||‘6°b°|*|
FATAHSIe s, FHAE, TATIa® qaT T
TRIBRATAES T AT T4 S 90 &ff i
IR GATH!  TFOTAT  Bliadd  ATIR qdT
FAAAT Ih TH ARG, |

Sepehl FETAd ATHIT T AT dr=dT YR
Trg T ged SAEdIaEdl g1 IMedkaNane
qre HUR fqearer Afteg Ay g% T us
e, qEH Al gieread] Swdr FAEr A9
Sfpg & sl *TATHET e IR WA FL
A TH FAREHT FATSH ISl Hells @il
AR G |

AT ARG HETTHTEARE,
ity TSy Se fAafiager AT TS

F IMEF a1, ATHHE IaRardcd fHarg qor
WWWW&WW@T
F T A B | FE AT G AT
IFHH, 9 qig FMAS 2 T A9H fafaed
TRUEG gl &l Bi&A qRieafaar afq a9
Sl AT UEHETATS  (Fray sy 9T
ATSE AUH FXT Teles THeT THI RIS

TATevg, | FITSH THAAT TIeA, IAN, MR,
Rrem, w@Teen, wMAfd Hw@ar, AENHEA A
AYTAET FFU EFES TATEGT g IASCdTT
FRO faed oafd qAT IR GOl AawE
Tg @ qa7 @ 9% T Ididadd qarde
HHT AU qig T AHRGT SAH ATTHATH
R faeaeardl FTHT HETEHRITT T Tareds
Wreqﬁﬁrqﬁrg—vrwawmw@m
erT afg g9 T9&! TWHERT IEHE q91T
gaawwirﬁa’o T Tl T&T ATFITAT
qUT ATHTHT Ted&T A& T4 |

AN TG HETTATAE,

TUTTHT BT IoATATHT Teehl ‘&’ a T Aoy
SFETHT T FEAT 4,020 T[A B | d%F T
forirr Heames Us SqHHT M /T HH AR
af F9rad ¥ Wal gy | weredey faaan
TFTT ¥ JURATTAT gRaaT wg 99 gfaeady
ETHATHT TTY AT Ahes TEAT TeeH G |
FIMAS-1%, &I FHT Gl ATMdF ldraragsH
AUHT qlger o JaT fOxiT GRAETH HoAl
AT FTHT !, T 4T YaATH! ATATTH
afg WUH, FAT G JAAHT  TTETTHT
g & TEFH T FRUET SdeE A
e deadar dg gfaeqdl qusl s |
FFETAT TMHERT THHH U JUH BRI
A19.300c /98, &l UlgeeT 3 HigATeRg 4 At
qAT 9 Sl AT AET ATAR T Gbabl I |
ATATAHT (=0 T T TS Sfebed AT Tl
STALATET FRUT Sebebl FeTqqa HRIATAT oA
IR WH B | AT AT ETAGFH 99 &oraHq
TWHA AT ATMIF qUAT Fpepl AT T
HATRTHT JeaeT @Y O+ afges, | dfpg &
Wﬁ%wwmwaﬁm
WWW? MEHH] ATEAT ATEIF]

AT ArTEE AT T AGH qer a9

19



1%

ftgr aifdox 3 far.
RASTRIYA BANLJYA BANK LTD.

UL M I

S 9 ATRAT FaAT FrAAEEHT THIATIE
HEgHATE  UEdes  FHET  ATRAT U
YATEE JATE AT AATHATATE FTATTHATHT
T Sl gouTdd FHiael AMaiTd Fuges
fereeea g ¥ AmET foTaT @wa TEdh fReaw

o (&N N
dlddg Ueladd |

Jedfgd  THfWET A T9 d@d Wa.
095 /9% {T EMEA  TRET  d9T  IdH
FAfraA B FeT Hecdqu JUdlcaesars
HETTAT Feiee qHET J&qd T =Eg |

AN FAREAT HETTATAE,

qUF a0 3095/ 9% AT AMLI-FeaRied
qiRaeTHT FEUHT A aRfgfqer arae
SFA Aol AUHT GT  HATRIB  JeATH]
TcO e g TN TY AT R FIE G
HATRT AT TH AHd TUH G | Aol BT1aeT
THT TG JIATCHET AT T el STATEHT
WETATaes, JMedad, HHATEN, I
&, ¢ IMad I I WIFRATATES
yfq eTfed FHasrar Ioe T Aevg | g T
forTq aves o Sad a9 99 9 SRR EATS
9y gfeTerd TTE @ATAieT T L qiqera 9rAR ArAter
TN & 3.4 AL AT EaR T gEdE
TH FHA BRI RIS =ATE+g |

AAFH! qHIg T AITAG] (AT AN 797
WEFRA A ARH fad AT 41 FaTe T8
yiqeg @ | ScARHARTS q9T AAtHeaTed &
e @Y, FAEd, 9T qAT ATIRAAS
SURT AT &0 JF bl qrafHaara are
STl AT TRIEHT G A AT AT Al
fomr forct wEfomaqer w9 @9 dHH gHE
TATHEATHT T2 B | T AT.9. %0 Tieell THTFH
HeCTTFH ATSINET & 3 94% ITHETATS & 3
qd IR FRUS AERAH! fafie ofroaHT fomr ferar
AEAITAIU &l FATe ATH 3, |

T TEAT AR T ddel ST O ad
TR 99 q eaTar 7 @t /A e e
TRHFTHAT 9 9T [aFARE FH qEIe

quaf} aTfife gRTaeT 095 /0%

TE G | AR (AT TFH ATGIRET 81 %Y
T, %% fgEaiRd @rgver, s wfeuw,
1,553 99 HRE, 6251 FAR WL T 90%
AT ATTHT T | =] oT.9.%1 Ggell JuTaaey
AT AT BRI 35 A1 MET e, 2 @@
FAl MEF, & TG ¥3 §AR el Tel e He
e TAT Y ATG qwaT qEI WialTeed by e
7 95,530 TraTe dAfhg FATH MMeF TH THd
TeY AHAHRI RIS AT |

A A, BT AEAT THTIHT SHFT FA 67T
TR @I §9 Ad, FA Fol 5. R @A 9 A4,
FAT ET AT % 3% FIaeTd, HTUET AT
.49 afaerd, AMEwR W g.o¥ Jaea EE B
ciferg e fosrmm gfqeaarer qram T 79
S ATRAT gfereddl e wfafg e wwa
Areiie &1 TEIAHT e T JeeTqd Aheh!
areata Hia, o, eEfirer auar edfakesar
qUT AL ARATT T3 AR B | SHw
AT JAEATs 99 UREHT T FATEHERT ¥
WQWTHT 31'?‘\31_0[%{ «dT3 Business Process
Re-engineering TEIRAT TS le] ElR T
qUE] A9 qAAT FEAHTAT FHET T AT
qEIRl HY ASHEg THAT IS Afeadl
B | SEHT ATH THASRE da%g qaf HHER
[afchepl TaaT BT =TS T8l T BTAFFH i
Mo ST qAl AfgERd qAT HEdF FHANES
ool FIFATRTATaTe Srle T TERATIAT TR
T | 99 FRT ¥YO FEAF FHARIGEH
UGRITIATER! ® qHA  ARTHT 3 AT
TFEIe B &Y AT T3 =8+ | T
Sepepl YIaeadl eTHATHT 9 gl g wern
faearg fauar g | ofd® ad Jo0es/e) =
foea gdaeadr aREyd, qaFd T ATTE
BTG Tfafalgs a9t AT faqewar T
FAFHHEEH FFdH [q&q TqH F>ATAF
atafaer aftie gfaasd @usHT FHE TRH!
SERT (asd T4 =Meg |

AN FAREAT HETTATAE,

ol Aty g BRamefa g% qar A
HETEE ATRAT GoIT AT F@TS, T /A




aftca aifdiox 3w far.
RASTRIYA BANLIYA BANK LTD.

TUEH I ¥

JaT AIRAHT ATEFHATE FRER &R T4 Fd
qgT WA TUTAR] dAfky &F dchA~d FiqeqdT
Iee TUHI [geg | deeedl GRElad HATER,
fereariva R, WRitde Fufedte e sro
TG Sl T ATTHT G ok R FATcie s
AEAT I =g, | &l IRIediar a9
SEA ATHATS WA GETH T qAA @lad T
SCHSE AT IREHT IUHIAHT A1 AT FTgqaq
NN AT A A~

TWHI FHI A RIS =g |

1. qeAdT FAATEArs AAAT T4 8T afg qar
qfearad Toifa qAR W dEdr fAEm
ATaig T |

R @ dSfT gig T FEens MReavar &

3. TR MR AfTTAT R Fol e
AAIART Fedad FEAH T HaAl [@GEdR

HT T |

¥ IMEdesdls (el SRal, ava dieg Iar
T4TE I |

Y. SHE9iE FATIAT U TS T 99
qmrET foearR T SEary fgEar T |

THY FTY&T oA Ts F FEAT <13 |

S, FET TG AT 0K /5o ;T
faer s Sﬁ%a?l'{ Tﬁﬁ, Business, Process,
Re-engineering T¥Id  JUAINTAT  FTSTAT,
feara fremm wd @mra e g
FAFHHEEATS THEAENT FATTTTAT T3 |

5. AU WER q97 FHarae Haresare e
TRUET HTAHT Td JTITHEAT YT ETTg e
AT AITATATS FTITHHATHT e |

%, dwal MRy waT T g iy qrafdess
T FEEIT T |

0. IFAF FAAM FHAIATE THT ATIE 3T
FATIA |

Q0. g9 Fra yrea T Teelt ud fawefr ;v faw
HA NS TSI |

9. FHARIG! JEYLd, qMTH TF TN FeTar
Aalg T FEATS MIeawar & |

9. dfre g efauar faemm fafaa gerar
SIfaHATE ~gA@I T SAREH A&
FIIATE IT THTEEHNT TF IRHT TS |

3. dFEl ARG A@EGET,  aed

quaf} aTfife gRTaeT 095 /0%

AGTIRIETI AT AT 6T el ATATZUHT
FRIdEH! K I |

1%. AML/CFT ¥4l [Meemesal THraarR
FAFAAT T qGT FEEEG FEEA
AdRe (=0 quirell ¥ SifaH Ao
T SEl wEY fAmEE o araead

HAEE gooATAT T |

AR FAREAT HETTHAEY,

qAGH| ATA-TAT ATAETT IAR FAETAHT BRI
dfpy e Taa fafae gerer sree sfad
T B | [T SRaua! FIS-9% F TaHhae
A HI &TTAT THRICHE THATS Tl T
Tafafed B | aque THAET GHT A THREH
HEWRIE! qAvEld ga9ad  G9aar  Sraue
gaT WOSAT ATIT Fad Hhadl qALATId
T FHIAT T ATEYAF AT T TR G
THTITAE TG T+ qraed faare T
sfarg | FdEW gEEmr Ak dee Wi
TR TRAET TS AT T qHA
dFd IUAKH fRfawar Hifaes asH THIA
2farg | HAFET @ wEee e, TR
T faremare i dEdr T4t WERES ToA
FOdd! T TGATC GARH! AGTA 99 Igg 9
AT fave dfs ST ot 99 gEHT a9
HeETdl g9 faear U g | 79 avadmr g
SFA THT ATTHT [EAEEHT ATRHAT Saa@raHT
9 [EEdR T AREAT qIT MR ATATE G|
HYLATATE I T oA GfTag W FLT Haad
T AEg |

AT, TFATS ATTRT TTTATHT SATST-ATIA
qrg faqgd 99 AAFRATAT IEEEATS TG
oty gaEHr BlfE  geadre sueh T
ATy | AFH AT 99 I AE TR
TATHT ARG qRATS FrAAraed THg
YT GIEHT AATTesqr Fa  geaars
YA T FTewg | T TR I THTHT Jqredd
EQUl ARG HETTATAEEAT Tfash  ATAIR
U Tag | ATFAT dAHT G¥h1d T s
Toale  feg  dF@l  gRAAH AU E
FEARTHT AT ATEF HETTAIaEe gfa a9
B aeaaTE T T WhSIET 9hT AEiEare

13



%

ftgr aifdox 3 far.
RASTRIYA BANLJYA BANK LTD.

TIATCHE Aodle T J¥RTaaH AU TTag |
I STITATTT qAT HTIATT G BHATIATP]
AAANRTAAT, HEAd  qar UTEw  daryiaswr
TATUH] == FeT T3 AWHT feqgsar qfv
ATHAT AT, ETHAT ¥ FHIAST IJUAT TS
AEFHET FaT JaTe T Gfqag eagas 9
faeara fauar g | dwarg fafges @97 2
aRTEafqaT Fedr T T MI9 98\ T A9
WER, q4 HATS, [Famme fqera, T

quaf} aTfife gRTaeT 095 /0%

I Tk, WETAGT TAETHED HIATAT, FEIAT
IR ET FAT@T, fgqad are, oA
qfasr gewues, d@aeTd, 48 giHad
AT AT FABRATAT AT AT AHES
qAAT MfdF wAFAT SAH TR ATHN G
qfq Tefeeare famqer & FEAE T ggard
qIed gAs 9 favarg fquar g v g T
¢ o FMNE ATERT ATHT JARIT FIATE
gifad @@a AfHarEs sawh Tag | g7g4dTe |

1. JORH ISH
qeTeT

g5aTd% grard
afteg arforeg &% fo,



TUEH I ¥

quaf} aTfife gRTaeT 095 /0%

My aifdiza db ferfdresdl au 31t aifded AmERoOT
HATHAT FodTeid AfdfddT 3reAgIc Udd 313 ay
20bc/ue B fdxqd aifde ufddca

AN FAREAT HETATAE,

Tiftey anferey % fafaeger 99 off aTitis aremeo
ATHT FEAHT BTHTET TATIAT HETTAIAREATS
Aftes aforsg % fdatieg goaTds Arataer
WWWWWWnW&&
095 /%, HT 999 Fdqeaal ARy, HAGH!
quy At feafq, dwer i frarues, =g
A AET FTerEERET TARES T AT
THET HETTAT JEd 1 Te2eh] G |

q. foxm srfama aigya

T 01 HT %0 JiIerdd [aedr 9ual fqea
AT Fq 033 AT 3.R Jhaerd ¥ AT 03
T R0 gfqerad afg g7 dAeaRitad HaT FIaaH!
JETAU B | I 031 T Y. Fhaerde faEar
AUH [IHEd AITa@0 qhgar a1 033 1
. gfeerawr fEa g7 T A 00 W L&
graeTaer feqr Ual IEFAE a9r [HerEraa
AYqAHT Ffgar FF 03 AT 3.0 FlqeraH
AT g PIUel &9 8l S |

T Q0% AT 0.9 Ffqere faedr AUl faea
SATIR ATAAH! dfgay 9T I 0% AT ¥ .3
qieTeTd qAT FF 033 FT .Y HiqeraHr difa
g Araxifead HET HUH FEqT F |

TH-Tohe qGH BRI (G99 AT q97 Ieaad
JUTEAT Fa%g g @ q4T IR@TT a%] ¥ JaeraH
TRTIE] HedHl WUH g T AHRET SAHI

ATTHeATHT R [qeaedrdl FqH qRTEhIT
a%wr&m—rr?o:e‘imi%wﬁrcr?%‘omm
WW@C@%W&T 39 ORI T 4%
W%QW?%WW?O??WWQT 9.3 gieera
T %% giqerd quT ¥ 0%3 HI KA ¥.¥
gfeqeTd ¥ 5.9 FfTeTd TEd gETAw G |

HETERITT e 9 [eae Afaaer e
Spgwel sATSIaY 1g 718 Tl B | AT Hgte
RSTdel I 033 HIEMET 0-0.3% AT EaH
e WU YEHT AR Tedh dfg T 3.94-¥.00
qiqeTd TAET B | AF AF STCAIST AT
R0RR HT 0.4 fAeTd TEaH S AT FHM: 5
T 3 gfererd =AUE g | AR RS S
HA R0 AT ¥ G el A
T afg T ¥ AATdH A 3 |

R HFH THT At feafa

FITE-9% BT THATA ATTATT TP Ficiebed
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AT, 095 /R BT JYHT HEH ! iy feafa
ATA. 09GO, HT ddal THY fadr fegfd

Trdoeid WHl o | 09 JUE HITaHT

AT .30 8 % & (O Jiaerd) o qig
TS & TR ¥ 3 @F 30 99 ¥ FIE [H
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Chartered Accountanits
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+977-1-4423550 2" Floor, Shova Complex,
f:g:_ ;977-:4413038 Kamalpokhari, Kathmandu
Fopameng Tel: +977 1 4428887

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF

RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited (“the
Bank"), and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group (the Bank and its subsidiary), which
comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 32, 2079 (corresponding
to July 16, 2022), the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, the Consolidated Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, along with Notes forming part of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, and a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion
section, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Bank and the Group as at Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 16,
2022), and their consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Nepal
Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Handbook of the Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal
(ICAN) and we have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with ICAN’s Handbook
of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements except for the following where we were unable to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence enabling us to determine the effect on equity of the Bank/Group as the
result of the un-reconciled year-end balances:
o Net balance of un-reconciled inter-branch transactions, amounting to NPR 514.40
million (Credit NPR 1,227.94 million and Debit NPR 713.54 million).
o Unidentified and unreconciled balances of NPR 630.98 million in credit (Debit NPR
465.58 and Credit NPR 1,096.56 million) have been carried forward for several years
due to which probable recovery and obligation could not be identified. These balances

are in the nature of unclaimed liabilities, unidentified deposits and overdue/matured
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fixed deposits, bills payable, cash in transit, prepayments and advances, debit/credit

card transactions etc.

o Bank’s fixed asset consists of lands (Head office - Singha Durbar, Pasupathinagar and
Lahan) whose title deeds are not in bank’s name [total market value Rs. 2,688.5 million
(as per independent engineer’s valuation in Ashad 2079)], however possession and use
of such land (including building constructed over it) is with the bank.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary company, namely RBB Merchant
Banking Ltd. The financial statements and other financial information have been audited
by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion
on the financial statements so far as it relates to the accounts and disclosures included in
respect of the subsidiary is based solely on the report of other auditors.

(b) In line with the capital increment plan of the bank, it received contributions from the
Government of Nepal of NPR 1 billion each in 2077/78 and 2078/79. Annual General
Meeting of the Bank held on 29" Poush 2078 decided to covert this contribution as share
capital by allotting additional 20,000,000 shares (NPR 2 billion fully paid up) in the name
of the Government of Nepal (Ministry of Finance) without providing the right to other
shareholders. The increased share capital has also been approved by Nepal Rastra Bank
and duly updated the record by the Office of Company Registrar.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above

matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Except
for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined that the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

Key Audit Matter

| How the Key Audit Matter was Addressed

a. Interest Recognition

The interest income of the bank is recognized on an
accrual basis and follows the Interest Income
Recognition Guidelines 2019 issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank. Recognition of interest income on bad loans
involves the judgments on calculating the net
realizable value of loans and advances. As an
automated system is yet to be used to suspend
recognition of income on the basis of the overdue
status of the loan and fair value of collateral as well
as a review of fair valuation of collateral on a regular
basis, manual intervention is required in the interest
recognition process and hence create a risk of
improper application of the guidelines and
determination of the Fair Value of the collateral.
Other liabilities include excess interest payable to
loan customers reversing the interest income which
may vary when the bank commences the refund. This
may, in turn, have an effect on the recognition of
interest income of the bank. thus, considered them as

Our audit approach regarding verification of the
process of interest recognition included:

a. Obtaining a clear understanding of the process
of accrual of interest income on loans and
advances in the Core Banking Software of the
bank.

b. For fair value of collateral, we relied on the
latest available valuation report of the
collateral and have test-checked it as per NRB
Income Recognition Guidelines 2019.

c. Test checked the interest income recording
with manual computation on sampled
borrowers.

d. Test-checked the premium charged on
sampled borrowers from the report provided
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key audit matter.
(Ref. Note 3.13, 4.23 and 4.29 of Financial
Statements)

and the basis taken by the management to
arrive at the excess interest payable.

b. Impairment of Loans and Advances to Customers

As per NRB Directive 4, the bank shall measure
impairment loss on loans and advances at the higher
of:

= Amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal
Rastra Bank for loan loss provisioning; and

= Amount determined adopting Incurred Loss
Model per the Carve out provided on NFRS 9
financial instruments -impairment.

Impairment of loans and advances under incurred
loss model requires an assessment of future cash
flows as well as historical loss experiences of
portfolios. On the other hand, impairment of loans
and advances under NRB norms for loan loss
provisioning requires assessment of the overdue
status of loans and advances and proper utilization of
loans for the intended purpose. Significant estimates
and assumptions are used by the management in such
calculations. Hence, the assessment of the
availability and accuracy of required data for
impairment of loans and advances under incurred
loss model as well as NRB provisioning norms are
considered.

Considering the significance of the above matter to
the financial statements, we have identified this as a
key audit matter.

(Ref. Note 4.6, 4.7 and 4.35 of Financial Statements)

Our audit approach regarding verification of
impairment of loans and advances included:

a. Test the operating effectiveness of key
controls established by the bank to identify
loss events and for determining the extent of
provisioning required against non-performing
loans and advances.

b. Review the overdue status of loans and
advances by obtaining data from the system
and matching the same with the NRB form 2.2
report.

c. Review of sampled credit files, among other
things, from the perspective of the utilization
of loans and advances for the intended
purpose by way of scrutiny of financial
statements, account movement, account
turnover etc. including the business visits of
the selected borrowers.

d. Review of credit files of sampled borrowers
for expected future cash flows with an
indication of impairment is assessed on the
basis of the realizable value of collateral
securities based on management estimate.

Assess the grouping of a homogeneous group of
loans on the basis of the nature and purpose of
loans including data of historical loss experience
in portfolios based on past due data from the
system as well as data of loan loss provisioning
of the defined group in the past.

B: Information Technology System and Control over Financial Reporting

The Bank’s Information Technology environment is
complex and involves a large number of independent
and inter-dependent information technology systems
used in the Bank’s operations for processing and
recording a large volume of transactions at numerous
locations. As a result, there is a high degree of
reliance and dependency on such information
technology systems for the Bank’s financial
reporting  process.  Appropriate  Information
technology, general controls and application controls
are required to ensure that such information
technology systems are able to process the data, as
required, completely, accurately, and consistently for
reliable financial reporting.

The accuracy and reliability of the financial reporting
process depend on the information technology
systems and the related control environment,

Our audit approach regarding the information
technology of the bank is based upon the
Information Technology Guidelines issued by
NRB and included:

a. Understanding of the business processes, IT
Systems used to generate and support those
balances and associated IT application
controls and IT dependencies in manual
controls.

b. Understanding the coding system adopted by
the bank for various categories of customers

c. Evaluating and testing the design and
operating effectiveness of certain control
activities over the integrity of the material IT
systems that the relevant to financial
reporting.
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including information technology general controls
over user access management and change
management across applications, networks, database,
and operating systems; and Information technology
automated application controls.

Due to the importance of the impact of the
information technology systems and related control
environment on the Bank’s financial reporting
process, we have identified testing of such
Information technology systems and related control
environment as a key audit matter.

d. Understanding the feeding of the data in the
system and going through the extraction of the
financial information and statements from the
IT system existing in the bank.

e. Checking the user /authority matrix for any
changes in the regulations/ policy of the bank

f. Reviewed the reports generated by the system
on a sample basis and verified the interest
income and expense booking regarding loans
and deposits on a test basis with the CBS of
the bank.

g. Reliance on the independent Information
System Audit of the bank.

'@ Investment valuation and impairment

Investment of the bank comprises investment in
government bonds, T-bills, investment in quoted and
unquoted equity instruments. The valuation of the
aforesaid securities has been done in compliance with
NFRS and NRB Directive.

No financial statements have been available for
investments in the Subsidiary (Everest Foods Ltd)
and investment in associates (Butwal Suti Dhago
Udhyog and Himal Cement Company Ltd) which
have been impaired in full. The Bank also made
investments in shares of companies unquoted, a few
of them not in operation.

Investment in Himal Cement Company (HCC) was
made by erstwhile NIDC Development Bank Ltd
(NPR 36,892,100) which originally held 80.90%
shares in HCC, which has been reduced to 26.74%
after the Government of Nepal (Financial
Comptroller General Officer) invested NPR 100
million in the year 2071. Land and buildings owned
by HCC including at Chovar were taken over for
Intermodal Container Depot and other facilities as
per the decision of the government, however,
liquidation of HCC is still in process with the agreed
purchase consideration from the government thus
bank’s share in compensation is still to be determined
and progressed.

Given the varieties of treatments recommended for
the valuation of investment based on the nature of
cash flow, the business model adopted, the
complexity of calculations and the significance of the
amount involved in such investments, we have
considered this a Key Audit Matter.

(Ref- Note 4.5, 4.8, 4.10, 4.11 5.8.4, 5.8.5 and 5.22 1o
the financial statements)

Our audit approach regarding verification of the
process of investment valuation, identification
and impairment included:

a. Review of the investment of the bank and its
valuation having reference to NFRS and NRB
Directives.

b. Assess the nature of the expected cash flow of
the investments as well as the business model
adopted by the management on the basis of
available evidence/circumstances and ensured
that the classification of investment is
commensurate with the nature of cash flow
and management’s intention of holding the
investment.

c. Test check the effective interest rate and
amortization schedule on a test basis for the
investment valued at amortized cost.

d. Review the decisions and correspondences
made with HCC and Government of Nepal.

e. Ensure that fair valuation has been done at the
closing rate in NEPSE at the year-end for
quoted investment and for the unquoted
"investment, net assets value based on the
certified financial reports.
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RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LTD.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statement and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Bank’s Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Report, the Board of Directors, and Chairman’s
Statement but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. As the other information
documents are in the process of completion, the management has provided written representation
that the final version of the documents will be provided when available thus we have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged
with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Nepal Standards on
Auditing (NSAs) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We have communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. A separate management letter
outlining such findings and deficiencies has been issued on this date.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We further report that:

= We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

= The consolidated financial statements including the consolidated statement of financial
position, consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement
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of cash flows including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes have been prepared in all material respect in accordance with the provisions of the
Company Act, 2063, and they are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Bank; and
the accounts and records of the Bank are properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing
laws.

* In our opinion, the returns received from the branches of the bank are adequate for the
audit purpose, though the statements are independently not audited.

= To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and from our examination of the books of account of the Bank, except as disclosed in Note
5.7.3 to the financial statements, we did not come across the cases where the Board of Directors
or any member thereof or any employee of the Bank have acted deliberately in contrary with
the provisions of the law relating to accounts or caused loss or damage to the Bank or
committed any misappropriation or violated any directive of Nepal Rastra Bank.

= In our opinion, the business of thg Bank was conducted within the scope of its authority.

CA Prabhu Ram Bhandary . 3

. = te X
Senior Partner Partner rd
Joshi & Bhandary P.JP.N. & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 22126CA000307sTvS UDIN: 221216CA00052¢JjJZ

Date: 16 December 2022
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 32 Ashadh 2079 (16th July 2022)

Amountin NPR

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 7,892,303,947 15,772,561,224 7,880,097,708 15,735,157,236
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 16,423,317,544 20,128,499,606 16,423,317,544 20,128,499,606
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 43 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 - 1,496,090 - 1,496,090
Other trading assets 4.5 38,657,684 20,954,845 - -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 4.6 16,533,783,954 15,434,074,320 16,533,783,954 15,434,074,320
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 210,183,764,026 177,870,982,096 210,183,764,026 177,870,982,096
Investment securities 4.8 65,571,036,406 71,233,224,802 65,377,116,406 71,061,224,802
Current tax assets 49 3,637,462,515 3,341,545,260 3,636,497,060 3,341,885,069
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10 - - 200,000,000 200,000,000
Investment in associates 4.11 243,942,610 245,021,667 206,111,100 206,111,100
Investment property 4.12 177,265,441 124,574,883 177,265,441 124,574,883
Property and equipment 413 3,171,040,617 1,848,526,922 3,167,479,565 1,844,288,516
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.14 53,770,535 59,187,947 52,408,411 57,869,027
Deferred tax assets 415 4,481,528 2,541 - -
Other assets 4.16 6,415,287,088 3,986,160,458 6,404,963,110 3,981,293,887
Total Assets 330,346,113,895 310,066,812,661 330,242,804,325 309,987,456,632
S ots 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institution 4.17 4,748,840,822 2,369,240,000 4,748,840,822 2,369,240,000
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 24,060,736,189 3,794,077,090 24,060,736,189 3,794,077,090
Derivative financial instruments 4.19 - - - -
Deposits from customers 4.20 258,115,093,623 263,812,351,734 258,144,297,064 263,836,765,847
Borrowing 4.21 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - - - -
Provisions 4.22 375,716,839 436,938,500 375,716,839 436,938,500
Deferred tax liabilities 415 320,002,617 847,757,900 320,002,617 847,757,900
Other liabilities 4.23 7,318,635,102 7,485,150,674 7,247,149,648 7,450,911,297
Debt securities issued 4.24 2,607,123,287 2,517,465,753 2,607,123,287 2,517,465,753
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - - - -
Total liabilities 297,606,148,479 281,322,981,651 297,563,866,466 281,313,156,387
Equity

Share capital 4.26 14,940,359,099 10,184,891,614 14,940,359,099 10,184,891,614
Share premium - - - -
Retained earnings 1,919,406,055 3,519,603,605 1,863,442,017 3,453,803,750
Reserves 4.27 15,880,200,262 15,039,335,791 15,875,136,743 15,035,604,881
Total equity attributable to equity holders 32,739,965,416 28,743,831,010 32,678,937,859 28,674,300,245
Non-controlling interest - - - -
Total equity 32,739,965,416 28,743,831,010 32,678,937,859 28,674,300,245
Total liabilities and equity 330,346,113,895 310,066,812,661 330,242,804,325 309,987,456,632
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 64,670,749,399 37,921,946,332 64,670,749,399 37,921,946,332
Net assets value per share 227.68 302.06 227.25 301.30

Kiran Kumar Shrestha
Chief Executive Officer

Devendra Raman Khanal
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

>
Bimal Dangol
Deputy Executive Officer

/Q//‘B/

Sanjay Kumar Shrestha
Department Chief, Finance

Date: 2079/08/29
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Dr. Balaram Pathak
Chairman

Shambhu\Prasad Marasini
Director

Prof. Dr. Rajan Bahadur Paudel
Director

Laxmaﬁ‘g
Independent Director

Romila Dhaka| Upreti
Director

ﬂr“(\ ‘1‘%/\

Dilip Kumar Dh:ngana

Director
]

S

Sushil Ghimire
Director

As per our report of even date

Joint Auditors

_
T
CA. Prabhu Ram Bhandary

Joshi & Bhandary
Chartered Accountants

CA. Prakash Jung Thapa /
PJ.PN. & Co.
Chartered Accountants

UDIN:
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RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 32 Ashadh 2079 (16th July 2022) Amount in NPR

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Interest income 4.29 20,708,965,616 16,242,625,545 20,689,738,858 16,229,108,099
Interest expense 4.30 11,393,557,547 8,012,651,457 11,393,790,807 8,019,658,963
Net interest income 9,315,408,069 8,229,974,088 9,295,948,051 8,209,449,136
Fees and commission income 4.31 1,050,279,317 1,004,262,047 1,019,601,336 978,001,500
Fees and commission expense 4.32 349,244,611 265,023,602 349,342,968 258,241,737
Net fee and commission income 701,034,706 739,238,445 670,258,368 719,759,763
Net interest, fee and commission income 10,016,442,775 8,969,212,533 9,966,206,419 8,929,208,899
Net trading income 433 27,267,665 161,277,208 27,267,665 161,277,208
Other operating income 4.34 973,650,643 622,503,776 993,966,489 633,442,414
Total operating income 11,017,361,083 9,752,993,517 10,987,440,573 9,723,928,521
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans 435 355,718,124 723,380,438 355,718,124 723,380,438
and other losses
Net operating income 10,661,642,959 9,029,613,079 10,631,722,449 9,000,548,083
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 4.36 3,214,299,647 3,043,964,331 3,200,129,676 3,031,779,174
Other operating expense 437 1,069,948,906 1,239,954,184 1,055,094,374 1,234,089,841
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38 560,759,912 238,898,628 559,099,413 237,688,674
Operating Profit 5,816,634,494 4,506,795,937 5,817,398,986 4,496,990,394
Non operating income 4.39 430,431,650 391,039,614 430,431,650 391,039,614
Non operating expense 4.40 120,780,124 - 120,780,124 -
Share of profit of associates (1,079,057) 15,552,634 - -
Profit before income tax 6,125,206,963 4,913,388,185 6,127,050,512 4,888,030,008
Income tax expense 4.41
Current Tax 1,509,094,473 598,958,560 1,499,403,751 589,440,765
Deferred Tax 330,345,923 875,497,479 334,824,911 874,960,947
Profit for the period 4,285,766,567 3,438,932,146 4,292,821,850 3,423,628,296
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 4,285,766,567 3,438,932,146 4,292,821,850 3,423,628,296
Non-controlling interest - - - -
Profit for the period 4,285,766,567 3,438,932,146 4,292,821,850 3,423,628,296
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 34.79 37.44 34.85 37.27
Diluted earnings per share 30.58 33.77 30.63 33.61
As per our report of even date
Kiran Kumar Shrestha Dr. Balaram Pathak Romila Dhaka| Upreti Joint Auditors
Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director

_
T
CA. Prabhu Ram Bhandary

Joshi & Bhandary
Chartered Accountants

1 n'ic

M \%@/‘
Shambhu\Prasad Marasini I
Deputy Chief Executive Officer Directz\& Director

Devendra Raman Khanal Dilip Kumar Dhungana
RV
el
.
Bimal Dangol Prof. Dr. Rajan Bahadur Paudel Sushil Ghimire
Deputy Executive Officer Director Director

CA. Prakash Jurig Thapa |

*»
% A PJPN. & Co. {
/Q ;5/ &( ~ Chartered Accountants %
. Laxman Ghimire
Sanjay Kumar Shrestha Independent Director

Department Chief, Finance
UDIN:

Date: 2079/08/29
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 32 Ashadh 2079 (16th July 2022)

Profit for the year

4,285,766,567

3,438,932,146

99 &t T TRTaeT 005 /09

4,292,821,850

Amountin NPR

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

3,423,628,296

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss

- Gains/(losses) from investments in equity
instruments measured at fair value

(1,300,223,950)

3,196,401,428

(1,300,223,950)

3,196,401,428

- Gains/(losses) on revaluation

- Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

(1,575,043,362)

(1,130,324,437)

(1,575,043,362)

(1,130,324,437)

- Income tax relating to above items

862,580,194

(619,823,097)

862,580,193

(619,823,097)

Net Other Comprehensive Income that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss

(2,012,687,118)

1,446,253,894

(2,012,687,119)

1,446,253,894

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to
profit or loss

- Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

- Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating
financial assets of foreign operation)

- Income tax relating to above items

- Reclassify to profit or loss

Net Other Comprehensive Income that are or
may be reclassified to profit or loss

c) Share of other comprehensive income of
associate accounted as per equity method

Other comprehensive income for the period, net
of income tax

(2,012,687,118)

1,446,253,894

(2,012,687,119)

1,446,253,894

Total comprehensive income for the period 2,273,079,449 4,885,186,040 2,280,134,731 4,869,882,190
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 2,273,079,449 4,885,186,040 2,280,134,731 4,869,882,190
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income for the period 2,273,079,449 4,885,186,040 2,280,134,731 4,869,882,190

€/

Dr. Balaram Pathak
Chairman

\
Shambhu-’irasad Marasini
Director

AR

Kiran Kumar Shrestha
Chief Executive Officer

o

Devendra Raman Khanal
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

.
Bimal Dangol Prof. Dr. Rajan Bahadur Paudel
Deputy Executive Officer Director

Sanjay Kumar Shrestha Laxman Ghimire

Department Chief, Finance Independent Director

Date: 2079/08/29
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Romila Dhaka| Upreti
Director
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Dilip Kumar Dhungana

Director
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Sushil Ghimire
Director

As per our report of even date

Joint Auditors

CA. Prakash Jung Thapa

y Sl
CA. Prabhu Ram Bhandary
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Chartered Accountants
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RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 32 Ashadh 2079 (16th July 2022) A tin NPR
mount in

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

18,231,007,337

14,370,272,677

18,231,007,337

14,370,272,677

Fees and other income received

1,050,279,317

1,004,262,047

1,019,601,336

978,001,500

Dividend received

Receipts from other operating activities

1,058,930,707

1,035,112,602

1,060,694,469

1,038,861,639

Interest paid (11,176,875,356) (7,990,232,359) (11,177,108,616) (7,997,239,865)
Commission and fees paid (349,244,611) (265,023,602) (349,342,968) (258,241,737)
Cash payment to employees (4,256,046,447) (5,871,362,962) (4,241,876,476) (5,857,393,844)
Other expense paid (1,190,729,033) (1,239,954,184) (1,175,874,498) (1,234,089,841)
Operating cash flows before changes in 3,367,321,915 1,043,074,219 3,367,100,585 1,040,170,529
operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets (32,625,159,391) (39,070,301,098) (32,601,999,144) (39,078,424,474)
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 3,705,182,062 (2,193,735,462) 3,705,182,062 (2,193,735,462)
Placement with bank and financial institutions - 48,120,000 - 48,120,000
Other trading assets (17,702,839) 10,062,512 - -

Loan and advances to bank and financial
institutions

(1,112,284,801)

(11,128,770,000)

(1,112,284,802)

(11,128,770,000)

Loans and advances to customers (32,720,032,714) (28,170,317,177) (32,720,032,713) (28,170,317,177)
Other assets (2,480,321,098) 2,364,339,029 (2,474,863,691) 2,366,278,166
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities 16,314,593,947 36,034,775,727 16,282,137,198 35,913,716,258
Due to bank and financial institutions 2,379,600,822 90,785,942 2,379,600,822 90,785,942
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 20,266,659,099 3,513,007,931 20,266,659,099 3,513,007,931
Deposit from customers (5,697,258,111) 33,023,478,337 (5,692,468,783) 32,934,128,963
Borrowings - - - -
Other liabilities (634,407,864) (592,496,483) (671,653,940) (624,206,577)
Net cash flow from operating activities (12,943,243,529) (1,992,451,152) (12,952,761,362) (2,124,537,687)

before tax paid

Income taxes paid

(1,805,011,728)

(1,290,724,014)

(1,794,015,742)

(1,283,204,701)

Net cash flow from operating activities (14,748,255,256) (3,283,175,166) (14,746,777,104) (3,407,742,387)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investment securities - - - -
Receipts from sale of investment securities 4,248,223,770 6,779,526,098 4,270,143,771 6,870,959,951
Purchase of property and equipment (1,863,953,718) (510,860,901) (1,863,379,369) (509,246,673)
Receipt from the sale of property and 169,680,518 - 169,680,518 -
equipment

Purchase of intangible assets (13,902,478) (32,747,398) (13,450,477) (31,991,140)
Receipt from the sale of intangible assets - - - -
Purchase of investment properties - - - -
Receipt from the sale of investment - - - -
properties

Interest received 2,529,174,628 2,404,486,698 2,509,947,870 2,390,969,252
Dividend received 202,304,895 48,698,186 221,304,895 58,198,186
Net cash used in investing activities 5,271,527,616 8,689,102,682 5,294,247,207 8,778,889,577
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Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Receipt from issue of debt securities

2,500,000,000

2,500,000,000

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities

Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares 2,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Dividends paid (276,504,980) (225,331,445) (275,504,980) (224,831,445)
Interest paid (127,024,656) (4,953,345) (127,024,651) (4,953,345)
Other receipt/payment - (64,154) 0 (64,154)
Net cash from financing activities 1,596,470,364 3,269,651,057 1,597,470,369 3,270,151,057
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash (7,880,257,276) 8,675,578,574 (7,855,059,528) 8,641,298,247
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1, 15,772,561,224 7,096,982,650 15,735,157,236 7,093,858,989
2078

Cash and cash equivalent acquired from - - - -
merger

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash - - - -
and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at Ashadh end 7,892,303,947 15,772,561,224 7,880,097,708 15,735,157,236

2079

Dr. Balaram Pathak
Chairman

Kiran Kumar Shrestha
Chief Executive Officer
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RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 32 Ashadh 2079 (16th July 2022)
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For the year ended 32 Ashadh 2079 For the Year Ended
(16th July 2022) on 2078 Ashadh End

Opening balance of Retained Earnings 3,453,803,750 761,613,798
Adjustments:

Dividend Distributed (3,031,014,233) (405,215,807)
Derecognition of Accrued Interest Receivable up to previous Year (-) - -
Accrued Interest Adjustment - -
Prior period Income(+)/(-) - -
Restated Opening Balance of Retained Earnings 422,789,516 356,397,991
Net profit or (loss)for the year 4,292,821,850 3,423,628,296
1. Appropriations:

1.1 Profit required to be appropriated to statutory reserve 1,536,625,761 615,826,873
a. General reserve 858,564,370 684,725,659
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund 2,265,406 944,897
c. Capital redemption reserve - -
d. Corporate social responsibility fund 16,144,892 (18,006,695)
e. Employees' training fund 34,651,093 (9,678,988)
f. Other 625,000,000 (42,158,000)
Investment Adjustment Reserve - (42,158,000)
Debenture Redemption Reserve 625,000,000 -
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 2,756,196,090 2,807,801,423
Regulatory adjustment :

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (2,826,902) 440,608,059
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)

¢. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)

d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/resersal (+) (35,039,221) (10,105,569)
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) (175,186,814) 647,026,144

f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)

g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+)

h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+)

(1,102,530,353)

(791,227,106)

i. Other (+/-)

-Fair value reserve 39,701 3,302,807
Distributable profit or (loss) for the Year 1,440,652,501 3,097,405,758
Net Distributable Profit up to this year 1,863,442,017 3,453,803,750

{5
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1. Reporting Entity

Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited (“the Bank”), the commercial
bank majorly owned by Government of Nepal (99.97%); was
established on 10 Magh 2022 (23 January 1966) under the
Rastriya Banijya Bank Act, 2021. The Bank was re-registered as a
public limited company on 6 Baishakh 2063 (19 May 2006) under
the Companies Act, 2063 with its registered and central office in
Kathmandu.

The Bank operates commercial banking activities as Class “Ka”
financial institution under the license from Nepal Rastra Bank.
The operations of the Bank and Central Office Departments were
carried out this year from the various 258 Branches, 7 Province
Offices in Nepal.

1.1. SUBSIDIARY

RBB Merchant Banking Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary
company of the Bank which was incorporated on 15 Magh
2072 (29 January 2016), as a public limited company under the
Companies Act, 2063. The subsidiary holds license to provide
merchant banking and investment banking services under the
Merchant Banking Regulations, 2065. The financial statement of
the subsidiary was considered for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Bank.

Everest Food Limited, is another subsidiary of the Bank, but not
considered for preparing the consolidated financial statements
of the Bank as it has been defunct since a long period and its
financial statement were not available.

1.2. “THE GROUP” REPRESENTS THE BANK AND RBB MERCHANT
BANKING LIMITED.

2. Basis of Preparation

2.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with applicable Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) read along with the approved carve-
outs and in the format as per Directive No. 4 of Nepal Rastra
Bank’s Unified Directives, 2078. Historical cost convention has
been used for financial statement recognition and measurement
except otherwise required by NFRS. Where, measurement bases
other than historical costs, such as fair value has been applied,
and these have been disclosed in accordance with the applicable
reporting framework.

The amounts of financial statements have been presented in
Nepalese Rupee (NPR) being the functional currency of the
Bank. The figures are rounded to the nearest rupee except where
indicated otherwise.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the Accounts.

%0
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2.2 REPORTING PERIOD AND APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The accompanying financial statements cover annual reporting
period starting on 16th July 2021 and ending on 16th July 2022
(1st Shrawan 2078 to 32nd Ashadh 2079) and the financial
position is reported as at the year-end date of 16th July 2022
(32nd Ashadh 2079).

The financial statements of the Bank along with the accompanied
notes to the financial statements were approved by the Board
of Directors in its 2579th meeting and the Board acknowledges
the responsibility of preparation of the financial statements. The
approved financial statements have been recommended for
approval of the shareholders in the 17th annual general meeting
of the Bank.

2.3 USE OF ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS

The Bank, for the preparation of financial statement in
compliance with NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies
to most appropriately suit its circumstances and operating
environment. Further, the Bank is required to make judgments in
respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting
estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect
the financial statements. It is also required to make estimates
and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities, disclosure
of contingent liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the
financial statements. The Bank applies estimates in preparing
and presenting the financial statements and such estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. The revision
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which
the estimates are revised, and are applied prospectively.

The accounting estimates are appropriately disclosed in the
relevant sections of the Notes wherever the estimates have
been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of
accounting estimates, if any.

The accounting policies as explained in Section 3 herein were
consistently applied to all the years presented except otherwise
stated. Changes in accounting policies, if any, are to be disclosed
with the financial impact to the extent possible. When polices are
not guided by the reporting framework, NFRS, other reporting
standards and generally accepted accounting principles are to
be followed..

2.3.1 Going Concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis as the Bank has adequate resources to continue its business
for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, a wide range
of information was considered, which were relevant to present and
future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash
flows and capital resources. Further, management is not aware of
the uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as going concern.
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2.4 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the
previous financial year, except for the adoption of new standard
on lease “NFRS 16" and new standard on revenue “NFRS 15:
Revenue from contract with customers” The new accounting
policy applied from Shrawan1, 2078 is stated in the relevant
notes.

2.4.1 NFRS 16 Leases

NFRS 16 replaces NAS 17 and sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of leases.
All leases result in the lessee recognizing the right to use an asset
at the commencement date of the lease, and if lease payments are
made over time, also recognizing financing. Accordingly, NFRS 16
eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases or
finance leases as required by NAS 17 and, instead, introduces a
single lessee accounting model for lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of NFRS 16,
the bank has adopted the new standard applying a modified
retrospective approach:

Lease Liability at the present value of remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial application i.e, Shrawan 1, 2078, and

Right of use asset equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
that lease recognized in the statement of financial position
immediately before the date of application.

Comparative prior year periods were not restated. This means that
the data presented for 2077-78 and 2078-79 is not comparable.

2.4.2 Valuation of lease liabilities and right of use asset

The application of NFRS 16 requires the bank to make judgments
that affect the valuation of the lease liabilities and the valuation of
right of use assets. These include determining contracts in scope
on NFRS 16, determining the contract term and determining the
interest rate used for discounting of future cash flows.

The lease term determined by the Bank generally comprises
non-cancellable period of lease contracts, periods covered by
an option to extend the lease if the bank is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the bank is reasonably certain not to
exercise that option. The same term is applied as economic
useful life of right of use assets

2.4.3 NFRS 15: Revenue from contract with customers

The standard requires the following five step model framework
to be followed for revenue recognition:

¢ Identification of the contracts with the customer

* Identification of the performance obligations in the contract
* Determination of the transaction price
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*  Allocation of the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract (as identified in step ii)

* Recognition of revenue when the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

Bank has adopted NFRS 15 from the current fiscal year which
resulted in changes in accounting policies related to recognition
of Fees and commission. Accordingly, Fees and Commissions
are recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the bank expects to be entitled in exchange for
providing the services. The performance obligations, as well as
the timing of their satisfaction are identified, and determined,
at the inception of the contract. Fees and Commissions from
services are recognized evenly over the period, based on time-
elapsed where performance obligations are satisfied over time.
Where performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time,
fees and commission are recognized typically on completion of
underlying service.

2.5 REPORTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Bank has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted
the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 2018 (NFRS), developed
by Accounting Standard Board (ASB) of Nepal and pronounced
by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). The
NFRS conforms, in all material respect, to International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

However, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN)
vide its notice dated 18 July 2022 has resolved that Carve-outs
in NFRS with Alternative Treatment and effective period shall
be provided to the Banks and Financial Institutions regulated
by Nepal Rastra Bank on the specific recommendation of
Accounting Standard Board (ASB). Details of carve out provided
are as follows.

2.5.1 NFRS 9: Financial Instruments

a) Impairment

1. An entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized
cost is impaired. If any such evidence exists, the entity shall
apply paragraph 5 (given below) to determine the amount
of any impairment loss unless the entity is bank or financial
institutions registered as per Bank and Financial Institutions
Act, 2073. Such entities shall measure impairment loss
on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as
per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss
provision and amount determined as per paragraph 5
(given below); and shall apply paragraph 5 (given below) to
measure the impairment loss on financial assets other than
loan and advances. The entity shall disclose the impairment
loss as per this carve-out and the amount of impairment
loss determined as per paragraph 5 (given below)

=9
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A financial asset or a group of Financial assets is impaired
and Impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a 'loss Event') and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
It may not be possible to identify a single, discrete event
that caused the impairment rather the Combined effect
of several events may have caused the impairment. Losses
expected as a result of future events, no matter how likely,
are not recognized. Objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of assets is impaired includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the holder of the asset about the
following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

the lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial re-organization;

the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of
financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot Yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the group, including:

Adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in
the group (eg an increased number of delayed payments
or an increased number of credit card borrowers who have
reached their credit limit and are paying the minimum
monthly amount); or

National or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group (e.8. an increase in
the unemployment rate in the geographical area of the
borrowers, a decrease in property prices for mortgages in
the relevant area, a decrease in oil prices for loan assets to
oil producers, or adverse changes in industry conditions that
affect the borrowers in the group)

The disappearance of an active market because an entity's
financial instruments are no longer publicly traded is not
evidence of impairment. A downgrade of an entity's credit
rating is not, of itself, evidence of impairment, although it
may be evidence of impairment when considered with other
available information. A decline in the fair value of a financial
asset below its cost or amortized cost is not necessarily
evidence of impairment (for example, a decline in the fair
value of an investment in a debt instrument that results from
an increase in the risk-free interest rate).

In some cases the observable data required to estimate the
amount of an impairment loss on a financial asset may be
limited or no longer fully relevant to current circumstances.
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For example, this may be the case when a borrower is in
financial difficulties and there are few available historical
data relating to similar borrowers. In such cases, an entity
uses its experienced judgment to estimate the amount of
any impairment loss. Similarly, an entity uses its experienced
judgment to adjust observable data for a group of financial
assets to reflect current circumstances. The use of reasonable
estimates is an essential part of the preparation of financial
statements and does not undermine their reliability.

5. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
financial assets measured at amortized cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The
carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly
or through use of an allowance account. The amount of the
loss shall be recognized in Profit or loss.

6. An entity first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant (see
paragraph 2 above). If an entity determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them forimpairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

7. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
previously recognized impairment loss shall be reversed
either directly or by adjusting an allowance account' The
reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the financial
asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognized at the date the
impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal shall be
recognized in Profit or loss.

The carve out is not optional and has been provided up to FY
2023/2024. Bank will measure the impairment of loan and
advances to customers as higher of the impairment as assessed
under NFRS or as per the norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra
Bank. The provision is mandatory where impairment under
NFRS and impairment under Nepal Rastra Bank norms has been
disclosed for comparison and the higher of the two is charged as
impairment and recognized in the financial statements.
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b) Impracticability to determine transaction cost of all
previous years which is the part of effective interest rate
Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity
shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of
the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and
similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees paid or received, unless it is
immaterial orimpracticable to determine reliably, between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.
There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected
life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated
reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to
estimate reliably the cash flows or the expected life of a financial
instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall
use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of
the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

The carve out is optional and has been provided for the FY
2023/2024. Accordingly, the bank has opted the carve out.

2.6 NEW STANDARDS IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

New standards issued and amendments to the existing standards
and interpretations made by ASB have been applied along with
the carve outs wherever necessary.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal, (ICAN) has
issued a new version of NFRS on 2077 Ashadh,11 (NFRS 2018)
which covers NFRS 14 Regulatory deferral Accounts, and NFRS
17 Insurance Contracts.

2.7 NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT ADOPTED
The following amendments have not been adopted by the group
owing to the carve out issued Institute of Chartered Accountant
of Nepal, applicable up to FY 2023-24.

NFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’-Impairment

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ was issued by the IASB in July 2014
and effective internationally for the financials beginning on or after
1 January 2018. Accounting Standard Board of Nepal endorsed
NFRS 9 Financial Instruments with mandatory application from
the fiscal year 2021-22. Incurred Loss Model as specified in carve
out issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of Nepal has been
used for impairment calculation. The actual requirement of NFRS
9 is Expected Credit Loss Model.
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Expected Credit Loss Model (ECL) of Impairment

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model is a forward-looking
model. The ECL estimates are unbiased, probability-weighted,
and include supportable information about past events, current
conditions, and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Under the general approach, NFRS 9 recognizes three stage
approach to measure expected credit losses and recognized
interest income.

Stage 1: 12-month ECL - No significantly increased credit risk
Financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition require, at initial recognition
a provision for ECL associated with the probability of default
events occurring within the next 12 months (12-month ECL). For
those financial assets with a remaining maturity of less than 12
months, a Probability of Default (PD) is used that corresponds to
the remaining maturity. Interest will be calculated on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset before adjusting for ECL

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - Significantly increased credit risk in the
eventofasignificantincreasein creditrisk since initial recognition,
a provision is required for the lifetime ECL representing losses
over the life of the financial instrument (lifetime ECL).

Interest income will continue to be recognized on a gross basis.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - Defaulted Financial instruments that
move into Stage 3 once credit impaired and purchases of credit
impaired assets will require a lifetime provision. Interest income
will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset less ECL

The management is still assessing the potential impact on its
financial statements, if Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model is
introduced.

2.8 DISCOUNTING
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are
non-current and the impact of the discounting is material.

The Group determines amortized cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability using the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts throughout the expected life of a
financial asset or a financial liability to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or liability. If expected life cannot be
determined reliably, then the contractual life is used.

In case where the Group assesses that the transaction amount of
a financial asset or a financial liability does not represent its fair
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value, the related future cash flows are discounted at prevailing
interest rate to determine the initial fair value.

2.9 LIMITATION OF NFRS IMPLEMENTATION

Wherever the information is not adequately available and the
cost to develop the same would exceed the benefit derived,
such exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and
disclosed in respective sections.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost

basis except for the following items which were measured or

recognized as stated:

1) Financial assets and liabilities classified as FVTOCI or FVTPL
are measured at fair value on its initial and subsequent
recognition.

2) Financial asset and liabilities classified as Amortised cost are
measured at amortized cost.

3) Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized
at the present value of the defined benefit obligation after
deducting fair value of plan assets.

4) Right of Use (ROU) Assets recognized under a lease
agreement are measured at the amount that comprises of
Initial Measurement of Lease Liability plus lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less lease
incentives plus initial direct cost incurred by lessee plus
estimation of future dismantling and restoration cost if any.

5) Lease Liabilities under the lease agreements are measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date, discounted using Incremental Borrowing rate.

3.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

a. Business Combination

The Group’s financial statements comprise consolidation of the
financial statements of the Bank and those of the following entities:

The Subsidiary, in accordance with NFRS 10 - “Consolidated
Financial Statements”; and

The proportionate share of the profit or loss and net assets of the
Associate Company in accordance with NAS - 28“Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures”.

Business combination are accounted using the acquisition
method as prescribed under NFRS 3-“Business Combination”.

There was no business acquisition during the fiscal year 2078/79.
b. Non-Controlling Interest (NCI)
Non-controlling interest represents the proportionate share

of profit or loss and net assets of the subsidiaries not owned
directly by the Group. Non-controlling interest is presented in the

%Y
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consolidated statement of financial position with equity separately
from the equity attributable to the shareholders of the Group.

For each business combination, the Bank elects to measure any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value; or at
their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets,
which are generally at fair value.

Changes in the Bank’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as transactions with owners
in their capacity as owners. Adjustments to non-controlling
interests are based on a proportionate amount of the net assets
of the subsidiary. No adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

The Bank does not have any NCl as on reporting date.

c. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities controlled by the Bank. The Bank
controls an entity if it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
The Financial Statements of subsidiaries are included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

The Bank reassesses whether it has control if there are changes to
one ormore of the elements of control. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the financial statements are combined line by
line by adding the like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiary.
The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and
the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary are eliminated in full. All
intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (such
as interest income and technical fee) are eliminated in full while
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

d. Loss of Control

Upon the loss of control, the Bank derecognizes the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary, carrying amount of non-controlling interests and the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity related to the
subsidiary. Further parent’s share of components previously recognized
in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) is reclassified to profit or loss
or transfer to retained earnings as appropriate. Any surplus or deficit
arising on the loss of control is recognized in the profit or loss. If the
Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest
is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, it
is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or in accordance with
the Group's accounting policy for financial instruments depending on
the level of influence retained.

There was no loss of control during the fiscal year 2078/79.
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e. Transaction Elimination on Consolidation

All intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized
income and expenses (except for foreign currency transaction gains
or losses) arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses
are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment

3.3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand and
highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three
months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by
the Bank in the management of its short-term commitments.
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the
statement of financial position.

3.4 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

3.4.1 Recognition

The Bank initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability
in its statement of financial position when, and only when, it
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The Bank initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits and
debt securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the date they are
originated which is the date that the Bank becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Investments in equity
instruments, bonds, debenture, Government securities, Nepal
Rastra Bank bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright
purchase are recognized on trade date at which the Bank commits
to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase
and sale of financial assets are recognized on trade date at which
the Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset.

3.4.2 Classification

Financial Assets

The Bank classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured
at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of the Bank’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes
of financial assets are as follows;

a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost: a financial asset
is measured at amortized cost if the asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and if the contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

b) Financial assets measured at fair value: a financial asset other
than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair
value. They are further classified into two categories as below:

* Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or
loss if they are held for trading or are designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction
cost directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized
in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently
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measured at fair value and changes in fair value are
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

* Financial assets are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if the Investment in an equity
instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial
recognition, the Bank makes an irrevocable election that the
subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument is to be
recognized in other comprehensive income are classified as
financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive
income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair
value and changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Investment in equity instruments measured at FVTOCI

The Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to
measure certain investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI.
The election is made in respect of equity investments that are
not held for trading. Only dividend income arising on such
investment is recognized in profit or loss.

Subsequent fair value changes (unrealized gains or losses) on
equity investments irrevocably elected for FVTOCI presentation
is recognized in other comprehensive income. In the event such
fair value changes is realized upon sale of the investment it is not
reclassified to profit or loss, rather it is recognized directly within
equity. The related taxes payable and the statutory employee bonus
payable in respect of the realized fair value changes upon sale of the
investment is recognized through expense charge to profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities

The Bank classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial

guarantees and loan commitments, as follows:

*  Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss:
Financial liabilities are classified at fair value through profit or
loss if they are held for trading or are designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction
cost directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes
in fair value is recognized at profit or loss

* Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost: Financial
liabilities other than those measured at fair value though
profit or loss are classified as subsequently measured at
amortized cost using effective interest method

3.4.3 Measurement

Initial Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair
value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. Transaction cost in relation to financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently measured
either at fair value or at amortized cost based on the classification
of the financial asset or liability. Financial asset or liability classified
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as measured at amortized cost is subsequently measured at
amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the
amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured
at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount,
and minus any reduction for impairment or uncollectibility.

Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently
measured at fair value. The subsequent changes in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
in Statement of Profit or Loss whereas of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

3.4.4 De-recognition
De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Bank neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated
to the portion of the asset transferred) and the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) shall be recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

In transactions in which the Bank neither retains nor transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial
asset and it retains control over the asset, the Bank continues to
recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in
the value of the transferred asset.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or canceled or expired. Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying
value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.4.5 Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged,
or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties
in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date. The

%
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fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. The fair
values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar
instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments
valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which
could have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation, is
not based on observable market data.

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument
using quoted prices in an active market for that instrument.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. If a market for a
financial instrument is not active, the Bank establishes fair value
using a valuation technique. Valuation techniques include using
recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable,
willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value of
other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analyses.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at
initial recognition is the transaction price - i.e. the fair value of
the consideration given or received. However, in some cases, the
fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition may be
different to its transaction price. If such fair value is evidenced by
comparison with other observable current market transactions
in the same instrument (without modification) or based on a
valuation technique whose variables include only data from
observable markets, then the difference is recognized in profit
or loss on initial recognition of the instrument. In other cases,
the difference is not recognized in profit or loss immediately but
is recognized over the life of the instrument on an appropriate
basis or when the instrument is redeemed, transferred or sold, or
the fair value becomes observable.

All unquoted equity instruments are recorded at average of price
determined as per Capitalized Earning Method and Net Assets
Value per share. Entities of which no data is whatsoever available,
valuation has been done at cost net of impairment if any.

3.4.6 Impairment

At each reporting date the Bank assesses whether there is
any indication that an asset may have been impaired. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
occurring after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event),
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and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated

future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial

assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Bank considers the following factors in assessing objective

evidence of impairment:

e Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or
interest payments.

*  When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would
avoid or delay discharge of its obligation.

*  Where the Bank initiates legal recourse of recovery in
respect of a credit obligation of the counterpart.

*  Where the Bank consents to a restructuring of the
obligation, resulting in a diminished financial obligation,
demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or
postponement of scheduled payments.

*  Where there is observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows of a
group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet
be identified with specific individual financial assets.

The Bank considers evidence of impairment for loans and
advances and amortised cost investment securities at both a
specific asset and collective level. All individually significant
loans and advances and amortized cost investment securities
are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any
impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified.

Loans and advances and amortized cost investment securities
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for
impairment by grouping together loans and advances and amortized
cost investment securities with similar risk characteristics. Impairment
test is done on annual basis for trade receivables and other financial
assets based on the internal and external indication observed.

In assessing collective impairment, the Bank uses statistical
modelling of historical trends of the probability of default, the
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted
for management’s judgment as to whether current economic
and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely
to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends. Default
rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are
regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that
they remain appropriate.

a) Impairment charge / (reversal) and write off

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
impairment allowance account.

Subsequent reversal of impairment loss, due to factors such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating, is recognized in

99 &t T TRTaeT 005 /09

profit or loss. The reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of
the financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognized at the date
the impairment is reversed.

Financial assets (and the related impairment allowance accounts)
are written off either partially or in full, when there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. Where financial assets are secured, this is
after receipt of any proceeds from the realization of security.

b) Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost
As per Carve out issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Nepal (ICAN) on 2079/04/02

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (such as amounts due from
Banks, loans and advances to customers as well as held-to—maturity
investments are impaired, and impairment losses are recognized,
only if there is objective evidence as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset. The amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the deemed recoverable value of loan.

Loans and advances to customers with significant value
(Principal outstanding Rs. 100 million or more) and borrowers
classified as Non Performing as per Nepal Rastra Bank’s Unified
Directives, 2078 are assessed for individual impairment test. The
recoverable value of loan is estimated on the basis of realizable
value of collateral and the conduct of the borrower/past
experience of the bank. Assets that are individually assessed and
for which no impairment exists are grouped with financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for impairment. The credit risk statistics for each group of the
loan and advances are determined by management prudently
based on the past experience. For the purpose of collective
assessment of impairment, the assets are categorized in to the
following nine broad products as follows:

Term Loan

Auto Loan

Home Loan

Personal Loan

Overdraft

Other Working Capital Loan

Gold Loan

Deprived & Priority Sector Loan

Other Loan

W N hAWN =

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the income
statement. If a future write—-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to the 'Income Statement’.

As per Loan Loss Provision of Nepal Rastra Bank
Loan loss provisions in respect of non-performing loans and
advances are based on management’s assessment of the

%9
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degree of impairment of the loans and advances, subject to the
minimum provisioning level prescribed in relevant Nepal Rastra
Bank guidelines. Provision has been made for possible losses on
loans and advances including bills purchased at 1.3% to 100%
on the basis of classification of loans and advances, overdraft
and bills purchased in accordance with Nepal Rastra Bank’s
Unified Directives, 2078. However, provision for possible losses
on insured loans and advances has been made at 0.325% to 25%
on the basis of classification of loans and advances in accordance
with Nepal Rastra Bank'’s Unified Directives, 2078

Policies Adopted

As per the NFRS Carve out issued on 2079/04/02, the Bank
measured impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher
of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra
Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per
aforementioned carve out.

3.5 TRADING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that
the Bank acquires or incurs principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio
that is managed together for short-term profit or position taking.
They are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently
measured at fair value in the statement of financial position, with
transaction costs recognized in profit or loss. All changes in fair
value are recognized as part of net trading income in profit or
loss as regarded as fair value through profit & loss account.

3.6 DERIVATIVES ASSETS AND DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES

Derivatives held for risk management purposes include all
derivative assets and liabilities that are not classified as trading
assets or liabilities. Derivatives held for risk management purposes
are measured at fair value in the statement of financial position.
Hedge accounting is not adopted for certain derivatives held for
risk management such as Forward Exchange Contracts.

3.7 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

a. Recognition and Measurement

The cost of an item of property and equipment shall be recognized
as an asset, initially recognized at cost, if, and only if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the entity; and if the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the following:

* the cost of materials and direct labour;

* any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets
to a working condition for their intended use;

* when the Bank has an obligation to remove the asset or
restore the site, an estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located; and

* Capitalized borrowing costs.

g5
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The Bank adopts cost model for entire class of property and
equipment. Neither, class of the property and equipment are
measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured
at the reporting date. Any revaluation reserve acquired from
the merger accounted for using pooling of interest method
are shown at the carrying amount. The items of property and
equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the
related equipment is capitalized as part of that equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future
economic benefits from the expenditure will flow to the Bank.
Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working
condition are expensed as incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of
an item of property and equipment (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of
the item) is recognized within other income in profit or loss.

b. Capital Work in Progress
Fixed assets under construction and cost of assets not ready for
use are shown as capital work in progress.

c. Depreciation

Straight line method of depreciation on fixed assets is applied
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful life as per management judgment, as follows:

d. De-recognition

The carrying amount of Property and Equipment is derecognized
on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the de-
recognition of an item of property and equipment is included in
profit or loss when the item is derecognized (unless on a sale &
lease back). The gain is classified as revenue.

3.8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost incurred to acquire
and bring to use the asset, which reflects market expectations of
the probability that the future economic benefits embodied in
the asset will flow to the Bank, and are amortized on the basis of
their expected useful lives.

Computer Software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized
where it is probable that it will generate future economic benefits
in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized on the
basis of expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining
software are recognized as an expense as incurred.
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Class of assets

Computer up to 5 Years
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Revised useful life Residual Value

1%

Furniture and Fixtures up to 5 Years

2%

Office Equipment up to 5 years

1%

Vehicle up to 7 Years 5%
Building up to 50 Years 10%
Leasehold Lower of 15 Years or Lease Period 0
Software 5 years or expiry period whichever is lower 0

Assets costing less than Rs 2,000 are fully charged to profit loss account in the year of purchase

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators
of impairment. In the event that an asset’s carrying amount is
determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset
is written down immediately. Amortization methods, useful lives
and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

3.9 INVESTMENT PROPERTY/NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Investment Property

Investment properties includes land or land and buildings other
than those classified as property and equipment and non-
current assets held for sale. Generally, it includes land, land and
building acquired by the Bank as non-banking assets but not
sold as on the reporting date.

The Bank holds investment property that has been acquired
through enforcement of security over the loans and advances.

Investment properties are land or building or both other
than those classified as property and equipment under NAS
16 - “Property, Plant and Equipment”; and assets classified as
non-current assets held for sale under NFRS 5 - “Non - Current
Assets Held for Sale & Discontinued Operations”. The Group
has recognized as investment property such land or land and
building acquired by the Bank as non-banking assets in course
of recovery of loans and advances to borrowers that have turned
into chronic defaulters.

Non-banking assets (only land and building) are initially
recognized at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition the
Group has chosen to apply the cost model allowed by NAS 40
- “Investment Property” and since it is not intended for owner-
occupied use, a depreciation charge is not raised.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups
(including both the assets and liabilities of the disposal groups)
are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell when: (i) their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale; (ii)
they are FVTOCI in their present condition; and (iii) their sale is
highly probable.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale,
the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets and liabilities in a
disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable
accounting policies described above.

3.10 INCOME TAX

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and
deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

a. Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable on the
taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax payable also
includes any tax liability arising from the declaration of dividends.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized at the reporting date in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for taxation purposes (i.e. tax base).

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, carried forward unused tax credits and carried forward
unused tax losses (if any), to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they can be claimed.
Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in
future periods in respect of taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they will be reversed, using tax rates enacted, or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date. Deferred tax income or expense
relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income.
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3.11 DEPOSITS, DEBTS SECURITIES ISSUED AND SUBORDINATED
LIABILITIES

a. Deposits

The Bank accepts deposits from its customers under savings account,
current account, term deposits and margin accounts which allows
money to be deposited and withdrawn by the account holder. These
transactions are recorded on the bank’s books, and the resulting
balance is recorded as a liability for the Bank and represents the
amount owed by the Bank to the customer.

b. Debt Securities Issued

Debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities are initially
measured at fair value minus incremental direct transaction
costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost
using the effective interest method, except where the Group
designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Currently the Bank has Six years “8.5% RBBL Debenture 2083"
issued on 25th Jestha 2078 and allotted on 2nd Ashadh 2078.

c. Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event
of winding up are subordinate to the claims of depositors, debt
securities issued and other creditors. The bank does not have any
of such subordinated liabilities.

3.12 PROVISIONS

The Bank recognizes a provision if, as a result of past event, the
Bank has a present constructive or legal obligation that can
be reliability measured and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is
a possible obligation or a present obligation that may but
probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is
a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which
the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Bank from a contract are lower than
the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an
outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation,
the provision is reversed. Contingent assets are not recognized in
the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in
the period in which the change occurs.

3.13 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the
period arising from the course of the ordinary activities of an

e}
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entity when those inflows result in increases in equity, other than
increases relating to contributions from equity participants.

The Bank’s revenue comprises of interest income, fees and
commission, foreign exchange income, cards income, remittance
income, bank assurance commission, etc. and the bases of
incomes recognition are as follows:

a. Interest Income

Interest income on FVTOCI assets and financial assets held at
amortized cost shall be recognized using the bank’s nominal
interest rate which is very close to effective interest rate using
effective interest rate method.

For income from loans and advances to customers, initial charges
are not amortized over the life of the loan and advances as the
income so recognized closely approximates the income that
would have been derived under effective interest rate method.
The difference is not considered material. The Bank considers
that the cost of exact calculation of effective interest rate method
exceeds the benefit that would be derived from such compliance.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms
of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options)
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts.

The Bank recognizes the interest income on loans and advances
as per Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income, 2019 issued
by Nepal Rastra Bank. The guideline requires bank to cease to
accrue interest in case of loan where contractual payments of
principal and/or interest are more than 12 months in arrears,
irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral. Further, it
also requires the bank to cease accrual of interestincome in case
of loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest
are more than 3 months in arrears and where the “net realizable
value” of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal and
accrued interest.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are
included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. Contractual interest income and expense on financial
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss is recognized
within net interest income.
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b. Fees and Commission

Fees and Commissions are recognized at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the bank expects to be entitled
in exchange for providing the services. The performance
obligations, as well as the timing of their satisfaction are
identified, and determined, at the inception of the contract. Fees
and Commissions from services are recognized evenly over the
period, based on time-elapsed where performance obligations
are satisfied over time. Where performance obligations are
satisfied at a point in time, fees and commission are recognized
typically on completion of underlying service.

c. Dividend Income

Dividend income are recognized when right to receive such
dividend is established. Usually this is the ex-dividend date
for equity securities. Dividends are presented in net trading
income, net income from other financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss or other revenue based on the underlying
classification of the equity investment.

d. Net Trading Income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading
assets and liabilities, and includes all realized and unrealized
fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange
differences.

e. Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value
through Profit or Loss

Netincome from other financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss relates to non-trading derivatives held for risk
management purposes that do not form part of qualifying hedge
relationships and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss. It includes all realized and unrealized
fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange
differences.

3.14 INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are
recognized in profit or loss using effective interest rate method.
Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be
incidental to the Bank’s trading operations and are presented
together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and
liabilities in net trading income.

3.15 EMPLOYEES BENEFITS

a. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected
to be paid under bonus required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay
the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term
employee benefits. The Bank provides bonus at 5% of Net Profit
before tax. The Bankis a majorly owned enterprise of Government
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of Nepal. The percentage of bonus which is to be distributed by
the Government owned enterprises has been determined by the
Government of Nepal at 5%.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if
payable within 12 months after the end of the reporting period):

* wages, salaries and social security contributions,

* paid annual leave and paid sick leave,

e profit-sharing and bonuses and

* non-monetary benefits

b. Post-Employment Benefits
Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings;

i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan
under which the Bank pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
plans are recognized as personnel expenses in profit or loss in
the periods during which related services are rendered.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which
the employees render the service are discounted to their present
value.

All permanent employees of the Bank are entitled to receive
benefits under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan,
in which both the employee and the Bank contribute monthly at
a pre-determined rate of 10% of the basic salary. The Bank does
not assume any future liability for provident fund benefits other
than its annual contribution.

All permanent employees of the Bank are entitled to receive
benefits under welfare provident fund, a defined contribution
plan, in which Bank contribute two months’ basic salary and
such amount is transferred to separate retirement fund. The Bank
does not assume any future liability for provident fund benefits
other than its annual contribution.

All permanent employees of the Bank are entitled to receive
benefits under medical fund, a defined contribution plan, in which
Bank contribute certain percentage of annual basic salary based
on level of employees and such amount is transferred to separate
retirement fund. The Bank does not assume any future liability for
provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other
than a defined contribution plan. The Bank’s net obligation in
respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
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periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of
any plan assets are deducted.

The Bank recognizes all actuarial gains and losses net of deferred
tax arising from defined benefit plans immediately in other
comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined
benefit plans in employee benefit expense in profit or loss.

The Bank recognizes gains and losses on the curtailment or
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or
settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment or settlement
comprises any resulting change in the fair value of plan assets,
any changein the present value of the defined benefit obligation,
any related actuarial gains and losses and any past service cost
that had not previously been recognized.

The bank has pension plan to the permanent employees hired
before 2050 B.S and gratuity plan to employees enrolled after
2050 B.S. Employees are also entitled to receive retirement
benefit on endowment life insurance scheme and leave as per
human resource by-laws of the Bank.

lii. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the
Bank is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility
of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate
employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary
redundancies are recognized as an expense if the Bank has made
an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will
be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated
reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the
reporting date, then they are discounted to their present value.

3.16 LEASES
Group as the lessee

The group enters into lease agreement as the lessee with respect
to its branches.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding
liabilities at the date at which the leased assets are available for
use by the group.

Initial Recognition
At commencement date, the group recognises a right-of-use
asset a lease liability.

Lease liabilities are initially measured at an amount equal to the

present value of the following lease payments for the underlying

right-of-use assets during the lease term:

* Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable.

O
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* Variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate.

*  Amounts expected to be payable by the group under
residual value guarantees.

* The exercise price of a purchase option if the group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the group exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, or the
group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Right-of-use assets are measured initially at cost comprising the

following:

¢ The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability.

* Any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received.

* Any initial direct costs.

* Restoration costs.

Subsequent Measurement of right of use asset
Subsequently, the right of use assets, are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses and adjusted for measurement of the lease liability due to
reassessment or lease modifications.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Subsequent Measurement of lease liability

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. Lease liabilities are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method. The carrying amount of liability is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment, lease modification or
revised in-substance fixed payments.

Lease term

The lease term is a non-cancellable period of a lease; periods
covered by options to extend and terminate the lease are only
included in the lease term if it is reasonably certain that the lease
will be extended or not terminated.

Short term or low value leases

Payments associated with all short-term leases and certain leases
of all low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. The group applies the exemption for
low-value assets on a lease-by-lease basis.

The Group as lessor
The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect
to some of its land and building.

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. A lease is classified as a finance lease if the
group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
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to ownership of an underlying asset. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group recognizes lease payments received under operating
leases as other operating income in profit or loss. The accounting
policies applicable to the Group as a lessor in the comparative
period were not different from NFRS 16.

3.17 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR).

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the
functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rate of exchange at the statement of financial position date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions, and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical
exchange rates if held at historical cost, or year-end exchange
rates if held at fair value, and the resulting foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognized in either the statement of profit
or loss or shareholders’ equity depending on the treatment of
the gain or loss on the asset or liability.

3.18 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE AND LOAN COMMITMENT

Financial Guarantees are contracts that require the Bank to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of agreement.

Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide credit
under pre-specified terms and conditions. Loan commitment is
the commitment where the Bank has confirmed its intention to
provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the
form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable
or not, or letters of credit and the Bank has not made payments
at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these
financial statement as commitments.

3.19 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

The Bank classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities
or equity instruments in accordance with the substance of
the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as
residual interest in total assets of the Bank after deducting all its
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liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of the Bank and
distributions thereon are presented in statement of changes in
equity.

The Bank proposed to increase the capital by 3 billion as per its
Capital Enhancement Plan 2078, which was duly accepted by the
Government of Nepal on 2078/03/01. NPR 3 billion was received
up to Financial Year 2078-79 out of this amount NPR. 2 billion has
been approved as share capital of the Bank as per resolution of
16th Annual General Meeting and the balance NPR. 1 billion has
been presented as “Calls in Advance”in the Financial Statement.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares classified
as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which they
are declared.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity
instrument are deducted from the initial measurement of the equity
instruments considering the tax benefits achieved thereon.

The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory
reserves such as general reserve, debenture redemption reserve,
foreign exchange equalization reserve, regulatory reserve etc.

Regulatory reserve includes any amount derived as result of
NFRS convergence with effect in retained earning computed as
per Nepal Rastra Bank'’s Directive No. 4.

3.20 EARNINGS PER SHARE INCLUDING DILUTED

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data
for its ordinary shares. The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.21 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Bank’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS
8 Operating Segments. Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the bank’s management committee, which is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments. Bank has no practice of accounting intra segment
revenue or expenses. Geographical segments are considered for
the purpose of segment reporting. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining
business segment performance.
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4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent

32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078
Cash In Hand 4,739,389,901 5,890,841,211 4,739,389,901 5,890,841,211
Balances with BFls 1,760,155,397 1,564,345,866 1,747,949,157 1,526,941,878
Money at Call and Short Notice 1,392,758,649 8,317,374,147 1,392,758,649 8,317,374,147
Other - - - -
Total 7,892,303,947 15,772,561,224 7,880,097,708 15,735,157,236

The fair value of cash and cash equivalent is its carrying value. Cash at vault is adequately insured for physical and financial risks. The
amount of cash at vault is maintained on the basis of the liquidity and business requirements. Balance with BFls includes balance
maintained at various banks and financial institutions. Cash held in foreign currency is subject to risk of changes in the foreign exchange
rates. These are closely monitored, and risks, if identified, are promptly managed.

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory Balances with NRB 16,363,594,876 20,036,157,353 16,363,594,876 20,036,157,353
Securities purchased under Resale Agreement - - - -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB 59,722,668 92,342,253 59,722,668 92,342,253

16,423,317,544 20,128,499,606 16,423,317,544 20,128,499,606

The fair value of balance with the Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) is its carrying amount itself. Balance with the NRB is principally maintained
as a part of the regulatory cash reserve ratio required by the NRB.

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Placement with Domestic B/Fis -

4.3 Placement with Banks & Financial Institutions

Less: specific allowances for impairment on - - -
Investment Securities

Less: Allowances for Impairment - - _

4.4 Derivative financial instruments

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 | 32 Ashadh 2079 | 31 Ashadh 2078

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap -

Currency Swap - - -
Forward exchange Contract - 1,496,090 - 1,496,090
Others - - - -

Held for risk management - -

Interest Rate Swap - - - -

Currency Swap - - - -

Forward exchange Contract - - - -
Others - - - -
- 1,496,090 - 1,496,090
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A significant part of the derivatives in the portfolio are related to servicing corporate clients in their risk management to hedge, e.g.
foreign currency exposures. These products are used by Bank as part of its own regular treasury activities as well. From a risk perspective,
the gross amount of derivative assets must be considered together with the gross amount of derivative liabilities, which are presented
separately on the statement of financial position.

4.5 Other Trading Assets

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078
Government Bonds - - - -
NRB Bonds - - - -

Treasury bills

Domestic Corporate bonds - - - R
Equities 15,482,684 20,954,845 - -
Other 23,175,000 - - -
Total 38,657,684 20,954,845 - -
Pledged - - - R
Non-Pledged - - - R

Trading assets are those assets that the licensed institution acquires principally for the purpose of selling in the near term, or holds as
part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit are presented under this account head. The trading asset includes
derivative assets and non derivative assets. As on the reporting date, the bank does not have any outstanding trading assets. Impairment

4.5.1 Investment securities designated as at fair value through profit or loss account

Group

Equity Investments As at Ashadh 2079 As at Ashadh 2078

Agriculture Development Bank Ltd 1,108,000.00 1,101,700.00
Chhimek Laghubitta Bikas Bank Limited - 297,000.00 1,505,000.00 1,738,000.00
Citizen Investment Trust 4,637,200.00 2,741,350.00 4,637,200.00 3,491,000.00
Everest Bank Limited 1,107,500.00 698,010.00 1,107,500.00 1,107,000.00
Jyoti Life Insurance Ltd 985,200.00 464,508.00 985,200.00 894,000.00
Lumbini General Insurance Co. Ltd. 1,015,200.00 501,948.00 1,015,200.00 936,000.00
Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited 1,020,000.00 518,400.00 1,020,000.00 984,000.00
NMB Bank Limited 1,141,000.00 772,038.00 638,000.00 717,200.00
Reliance Life Insurance Limited (RLI) 2,336,770.00 1,189,250.00 1,281,670.00 1,344,000.00
Sanjen Jalavidhyut Company Limited (SJCL) 1,500,000.00 780,000.00 1,030,000.00 898,000.00
Standard Chartered Bank Limited (SCB) 600,137.00 435,930.00 600,137.00 590,000.00
Shivam Cements Ltd SHIVM) - - 1,043,000.00 1,020,600.00
Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Ltd (SKBBL) - 257,730.00 1,611,600.00 1,640,000.00
Swarojgar Laghu Bitta Bikas Bank Ltd. (SLBBL) 935,600.00 765,900.00 1,018,500.00 1,050,000.00
Sunrise Bank Ltd. - 207.00 -

Siddhartha Bank Ltd. 2,313,900.00 1,579,236.00 1,022,000.00 1,008,000.00
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. 1,528,520.00 1,057,495.80 1,528,520.00 1,480,580.00
Global IME bank Ltd. 1,437,770.00 902,777.40 948,270.00 954,765.00
Machhapchre Bank Ltd. 860,000.00 575,564.00 -

Mega Bank Ltd 688,500.00 497,200.00 -

Neco Insurance Ltd. 976,500.00 558,670.00 -

Nepal life insurance Co. Itd. 987,500.00 425,790.00 -

Prabhu Bank Ltd. 1,019,800.00 463,680.00 -

Total Investment in Equity Instruments 25,091,097.00 15,482,684.20 22,099,797.00 20,954,845.00
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4.6 Loan and Advances to BFls

Particulars As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Domestic BFls

Loans to Microfinance Institutions 16,751,424,816 15,637,360,000 16,751,424,816 15,637,360,000
Other - - - -
Less: Allowances for impairment 217,640,862 203,285,680 217,640,862 203,285,680
Total 16,533,783,954 15,434,074,320 16,533,783,954 15,434,074,320

allowance on Loans and advances to BFls have been considered as per NRB directive. All the loans to BFIs have been classified in pass
category as per the requirement of NRB directive 02/2078.

4.6.1 Loan To MicroFinance Institutions

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 207 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Principal 16,741,604,801 15,629,320,000 16,741,604,801 15,629,320,000
Interest Accrued 9,820,015 8,040,000 9,820,015 8,040,000
Total 16,751,424,816 15,637,360,000 16,751,424,816 15,637,360,000

4.6.2 Specific Allowance for Impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 203,285,680 45,005,500 203,285,680 45,005,500

Impairment loss for the year: - - - R

Charge for the year 14,355,182 158,280,180 14,355,182 158,280,180

Recoveries/reversal - - - -

Amount written off - - - _

Balances at Ashad end 217,640,862 203,285,680 217,640,862 203,285,680

No individual loans to banks and micro finance has terms and conditions that significantly affect the amount, timing or certainty of
consolidated cash flows of the Bank. These assets have been classified as loans and receivables and are subsequently measured at
amortized costs. Risks associated with these assets are regularly assessed. These are interest bearing advances and the income on these
assets is credited to statement of profit or loss under interest income.

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

4.7 Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost 217,704,410,748 184,989,457,582 217,704,410,748 184,989,457,582
Less: Impairment Allowances

Collective Impairment 4,242,254,046 2,605,466,179 4,242,254,046 2,605,466,179
Individual Impairment 3,278,392,676 4,513,009,307 3,278,392,676 4,513,009,307
Net amount 210,183,764,026 177,870,982,096  210,183,764,026 177,870,982,096
Loan and advance measured at FVTPL - - - -
Total 210,183,764,026 177,870,982,096  210,183,764,026 177,870,982,096

Above impairment is as per NRB directive no.2 which is higher than total impairment computed as per NFRS 9 (read with subsequest
carveouts). The note referring to impairment has been presented under point No. 4.7.4.Total provision for impairment as per NFRS 9
amounted to NPR 4,427,291,067.00 /- for FY 2078-79 and NPR 4,089,745,167 /- for FY 2077-78.
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As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Loans and advances to Customer 212,785,749,677 180,341,791,772 212,785,749,677 180,341,791,772
Loans and advances to staff 3,687,775,915 3,411,701,106 3,687,775,915 3,411,701,106
Accrued Interest 1,230,885,156 1,235,964,704 1,230,885,156 1,235,964,704
Total 217,704,410,748 184,989,457,582 217,704,410,748 184,989,457,582

Impairment ( Including loans & advances to BFls )
As per NRB Directive No. 2 7,738,287,584 7,321,761,166
As per NFRS 4,427,291,067 3,920,072,811

7,738,287,584 7,321,761,166
4,427,291,067 3,920,072,811

4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advance- By Product

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Product

Term loans 58,121,605,983 36,520,593,574 58,121,605,983 36,520,593,574
Overdraft 32,878,204,043 21,168,140,000 32,878,204,043 21,168,140,000
Trust receipt/Import loans 879,083,980 1,073,060,000 879,083,980 1,073,060,000
Demand and Other Working Capital loans 50,957,468,585 45,358,380,000 50,957,468,585 45,358,380,000
Personal residential loans 19,627,881,746 16,934,170,000 19,627,881,746 16,934,170,000
Real estate loans - 13,116,700,000 - 13,116,700,000
Margin lending loans 4,623,245,518 6,720,710,000 4,623,245,518 6,720,710,000
Hire purchase loans 5,340,772,023 4,663,090,000 5,340,772,023 4,663,090,000
Deprived sector loans 16,695,747,729 14,865,220,000 16,695,747,729 14,865,220,000
Bills Purchased 8,521,746 30,132,972 8,521,746 30,132,972
Staff loans 3,687,775,915 3,411,701,106 3,687,775915 3,411,701,106
Other 23,653,218,324 19,891,595,226 23,653,218,324 19,891,595,226
Sub Total 216,473,525,592 183,753,492,878 216,473,525,592 183,753,492,878
Interest Receivable 1,230,885,156 1,235,964,704 1,230,885,156 1,235,964,704
Grand Total 217,704,410,748 184,989,457,582 217,704,410,748 184,989,457,582

4.7.2 Analysis of loan and advance- By Currency

32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078
Nepalese rupee 217,704,410,748 184,989,457,582 217,704,410,748 184,989,457,582
Indian rupee - - - -
usb - - -
GBP - - - -
Euro - - - -
JPY - - - -
Chinese Yuan - - - -
Other - - - -
Total 217,704,410,748 184,989,457,582 217,704,410,748 184,989,457,582




9 & aiffe givdeT 095 /09

ftc aifdisa da fér.
RASTRIVA BANLJYA BANK LTD.

UL I T

RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.7.3 Analysis of loan and advance- By Collateral

Particulars

As at
32 Ashadh 2079

As at
31 Ashadh 2078

As at
32 Ashadh 2079

As at
31 Ashadh 2078

Movable / Immovable assets 175,212,840,000 153,571,843,574 175,212,840,000 153,571,843,574
Gold and silver 18,631,200,000 16,556,060,000 18,631,200,000 16,556,060,000
Guarantee of domestic B/Fis - - -
Government Guarantee - - -
Guarantee of international rated bank - - -
Export document - - -
Fixed Deposit receipts 1,287,560,000 467,780,000 1,287,560,000 467,780,000
Government securities 520,020,000 518,370,000 520,020,000 518,370,000
Personal guarantee 10,434,250,000 2,431,870,000 10,434,250,000 2,431,870,000
Collective Guarantee 390,000 1,160,000 390,000 1,160,000
Institutional Guarantee 2,029,995,199 - 2,029,995,199

Domestic Billls - 13,170,000 - 13,170,000
Non-Governmental Securities 4,623,250,000 6,716,810,000 4,623,250,000 6,716,810,000
Import Bills and Letter of Credits 5,880,000 5,880,000 5,880,000 5,880,000
Other 40,364,478 58,848,198 40,364,478 58,848,198
Subtotal 212,785,749,677 180,341,791,772 212,785,749,677 180,341,791,772
Unsecured - -
Grand Total 212,785,749,677 180,341,791,772 212,785,749,677 180,341,791,772

The above figure excludes loan to staffs and Accrued Interest Receivable

4.7.4 Allowances for Impairment

Specific allowances for impairment

32 Ashadh 2079

As at

31 Ashadh 2078

As at
32 Ashadh 2079

As at
31 Ashadh 2078

Balance at Shrawan 1

4,513,009,307

573,684,047

4,513,009,307

573,684,047

Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year

(1,234,616,631)

3,939,325,260

(1,234,616,631)

3,939,325,260

Recoveries/reversal during the year

Write-offs

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency

Other movement

Balance at Ashad end

3,278,392,676

4,513,009,307

3,278,392,676

4,513,009,307

Collective allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1

2,605,466,179

6,109,457,631

2,605,466,179

6,109,457,631

Impairment loss for the year:

Charge/(reversal) for the year

1,636,787,866

(3,503,991,452)

1,636,787,866

(3,503,991,452)

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency

Other movement

Balance at Ashad end

4,242,254,046

2,605,466,179

4,242,254,046

2,605,466,179

Total allowances for impairment

7,520,646,722

7,118,475,486

7,520,646,722

7,118,475,486

Above impairment is as per NRB directive no. 2 which is higher than total impairment computed as per NFRS 9.
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4.8 Investment Securities

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 | 31 Ashadh 2078 | 32 Ashadh 2079 | 31 Ashadh 2078

Investment securities measured at amortized cost 59,685,702,100 64,205,685,410 59,491,782,100 64,033,685,410
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 5,885,334,306 7,027,539,393 5,885,334,306 7,027,539,393
Other - - -

65,571,036,406 71,233,224,802 65,377,116,406 71,061,224,802

Investments made by the Bank in financial instruments have been presented under this account head in two categories i.e. investment
securities measured atamortized costand investmentin equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Investment
in equity instruments is measured at fair value and changes in fair value shall be recognized in other comprehensive income. Where
income from the investment is received in the form of bonus shares, the valuation of investment is made by increasing the number of
shares only without changing in the cost of investment.

4.8.1 Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Particulars As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 | 32 Ashadh 2079" | 31 Ashadh 2078

Debt securities 933,855,801 415,076,591 926,635,801 415,076,591
Government bonds 25,591,715,249 24,740,517,661 25,591,715,249 24,740,517,661
Government treasury bills 32,973,431,050 38,878,091,158 32,973,431,050 38,878,091,158

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds - - R

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments - - - -

Other 186,700,000 172,000,000 - -
Total 59,685,702,100 64,205,685,410 59,491,782,100  64,033,685,410

4.8.2 Investment securities measured through other comprehensive Income

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 | 31 Ashadh 2078 | 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Equity instruments

Quoted equity securities 4,629,884,526 6,235,073,309 4,629,884,526 6,235,073,309
Unquoted equity securities 1,255,449,780 792,466,084 1,255,449,780 792,466,084
Less: specific allowances for impairment on Investment - - - -
Securities

Total 5,885,334,306 7,027,539,393 5,885,334,306 7,027,539,393

U
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RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.9 Current Tax Assets

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Current Tax Assets
Current year income tax assets 1,792,956,067 1,286,019,925 1,791,990,612 1,278,500,611
Tax assets of prior periods 10,387,836,335 9,109,335,724 10,387,836,335 9,109,335,724
12,180,792,402 10,395,355,649 12,179,826,947 10,387,836,335
Current Tax Liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities 1,497,378,621 592,595,799 1,497,378,621 584,736,676
Tax liabilities of prior periods 7,045,951,266 6,461,214,590 7,045,951,266 6,461,214,590
8,543,329,887 7,053,810,390 8,543,329,887 7,045,951,266
Net current tax assets/ (liabilities) 3,637,462,515 3,341,545,260 3,636,497,060 3,341,885,069

Current Tax Assets includes advance income tax paid by the Bank under self assessment tax returns filed as per the provisions of Income
Tax Act 2058 and tax deducted at source (TDS) on behalf of the Bank. Similarly, the current income tax liabilities includes the tax payable
to the Government computed as per the provision of the Income Tax Act 2058.

4.10 Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in quoted subsidiaries - -

Investment in unquoted subsidiaries 205,000,000 205,000,000
Total Investment 205,000,000 205,000,000
Less: Impairment allowances 5,000,000 5,000,000
Net Carrying amount 200,000,000 200,000,000

4.10.1 Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

As at 32 Ashadh 2079 As at 31 Ashadh 2078

Total - - - -

The Bank’s subsidiaries are not listed on the stock exchange as on the reporting date.

4.10.2 Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries

As at 32 Ashadh 2079 As at 31 Ashadh 2078

Fair Value Fair Value

Particulars

RBB Merchant Banking Limited 200,000,000 161,787,943 200,000,000 217,980,000
(2,000,000 shares of Rs 100 each)

Everest Food Limited 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 -
(50,000 shares of Rs 100 each)

Total 205,000,000 161,787,943 205,000,000 217,980,000
Less: Impairment allowances 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 -
Net Carrying amount 200,000,000 161,787,943 200,000,000 217,980,000

c ¥
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.10.3 Information relating to subsidiaries of the bank

Less: specific allowances for impairment on Investment Securitires Percentage of Ownership by Bank

RBB Merchant Banking Limited 100% 100%
Everest Food Limited 57% 57%
100% 100%

4.10.4 Non Controlling Interest of the subsidiaries

As at 32 As

hadh 2079

As at 31 Ashadh 2078

RBB Merchant Banking

Equity interest held by NCI (%)

RBB Merchant Banking

Profit/(loss) allocated during the year

Accumulated balance of NCl as on ashar end

Dividend paid to NCI

As subsidiary of the Bank (RBB Mechant Banking Limited)is wholly owned subsidiary ,non controlling interest doesn’t exist on the

reporting date and Everest Food Limited, being a defunct company not considered for co

4.11 Investment in Associates

Investment in quoted associates

As at As at
32 Ashad 79 | 31Ashadh 2078

nsolidation

As at
32 Ashadh 2079

As at

31 Ashadh 2078

Investment in unquoted associates 306,048,710 307,127,767 268,217,200 268,217,200
Total Investment 306,048,710 307,127,767 268,217,200 268,217,200
Less: Impairment allowances 62,106,100 62,106,100 62,106,100 62,106,100
Net Carrying amount 243,942,610 245,021,667 206,111,100 206,111,100

4.11.1 Investment in quoted associates

As at 32 Ashadh 2079

Investment in quoted associates -

As at 31 Ashadh 2078

Total -

4.11.2 Investment in Unquoted associates

As at 32 Ashadh 2079

As at 31 Ashadh 2078

Butwal Suti Dhago Udhyog 25,214,000 - 25,214,000 -
Rastra Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 55,000,000 107,231,481 55,000,000 55,000,000
Himal Cement Company 36,892,100 - 36,892,100 -
Nepal Digital Payment Co. Ltd. 151,111,100 136,711,129 151,111,100 151,111,100
Total 268,217,200 243,942,610 268,217,200 206,111,100
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4.11.3 Information relating to associates of the bank

Percentage of Ownership by Bank

As at
32 Ashadh 2079

As at
31 Ashadh 2078

Less: specific allowances for impairment on Investment Securitires

Butwal Suti Dhago Udhyog 20.00% 20.00%
Himal Cement Company 80.90% 80.90%
Rastra Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 21.15% 21.15%
Nepal Digital Payment Co. Ltd. 37.78% 37.78%

Refer Note 5.20 for investment in Himal Cement Company.

4.11.4 Equity value of associates

Particulars As at 32 Ashadh 2079 As at 31 Ashadh 2078

Butwal Suti Dhago Udhyog 25,214,000 25,214,000
Himal Cement Company 36,892,100 36,892,100
Rastra Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd 107,231,481 93,163,699
Nepal Digital Payment Co. Ltd. 136,711,129 151,857,968
Balance 306,048,710 307,127,767
Less: Impairment (62,106,100) (62,106,100)
Net Equity Value 243,942,610 245,021,667

Refer note 5.25 for detail of associate.

4.12 Investment Property

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Balance as on Sharwan 1, - - -

Investment properties measured at fair value

Addition/disposal during the year - - _

Net changes in fair value during the year - - -

Adjustment/transfer - - _

Net amount - - -

Investment properties measured at cost

Balance as on Sharwan 1, 124,574,883 109,378,538 124,574,883 109,378,538
Addition/disposal during the year 53,107,630 16,653,000 53,107,630 16,653,000
Adjustment/transfer - (1,456,655) (1,456,655)
Accumulated Depreciation - - - -
Accumulated Impairment Loss (417,073) - (417,073) -
Net amount 177,265,441 124,574,883 177,265,441 124,574,883
Total 177,265,441 124,574,883 177,265,441 124,574,883

Refer note 5.10 for partywise details of Non Banking Assets as at reporting date.
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4.14 Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Cost

| sofwae | s st
m Developed Ashadh end 2079 | Ashadh end 2078

Balance at 31 Ashadh 2077

= 73,895,084

73,895,084

Additions:

Acquisition

- 32,747,398

32,747,398

Assets acquired through business combination

Capitalization

Disposals or classified as held for sale

Adjustment

Balance as on 31 Ashadh 2078

- 106,642,482

106,642,482

106,642,482

Additions

13,902,477

13,902,477

Acquisition

Assets acquired through business combination

Capitalization

Disposals or classified as held for sale

Adjustment

Balance as on 32 Ashadh 2079

- 120,544,959

120,544,959

Depreciation and Impairment

Balance at 31 Ashadh 2077

= 30,225,429

30,225,429

Depreciation charge for the Year

- 17,229,106

17,229,106

Disposals

Adjustment

Balance as on 31 Ashadh 2078

- 47,454,535

47,454,535

Depreciation charge for the Year

19,319,889

19,319,889

Disposals

Adjustment

Balance as on 32 Ashadh 2079

= 66,774,423

66,774,423

Capital Work in Progress

Net Book Value

At 31 Ashadh 2077

43,669,655

At 31 Ashadh 2078

59,187,947

At 32 Ashadh 2079

53,770,535

N
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4.14 Intangible Assets

Particulars As at As at
Goodwill Purchased Developed Ashadh end 2079 Ashadh end 2078

Cost

Balance as on 31 Ashadh 2077 - 72,908,899 - - 72,908,899

Additions

Acquisition 31,991,140 - 31,991,140

Assets acquired through business -
combination

Capitalization -

Disposals or classified as held for sale -

Adjustment -
Balance as on 31 Ashadh 2078 - 104,900,039 - - 104,900,039 104,900,039
Additions 13,450,477 13,450,477
Acquisition -

Assets acquired through business -
combination

Capitalization R

Disposals or classified as held for sale -

Adjustment -

Balance as on 32 Ashadh 2079 - 118,350,516 - - 118,350,516

Depreciation and Impairment

Balance as on 31 Ashadh 2077 - 30,022,236 - - 30,022,236
Depreciation charge for the Year 17,008,776 17,008,776
Disposals -
Adjustment -
Balance as on 31 Ashadh 2078 - 47,031,012 - - 47,031,012
Depreciation charge for the Year 18,911,093 18,911,093

Disposals -

Adjustment -

Balance as on 32 Ashadh 2079 65,942,105 65,942,105

Capital Work in Progress - - - - - -

Net Book Value

At 31 Ashadh 2077 42,886,663
At 31 Ashadh 2078 57,869,027
At 32 Ashadh 2079 52,408,411

R
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.15 Deferred tax

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities

32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078
Deferred tax assets 4,481,528 2,541 14,822,294 -
Deferred tax liabilities 320,002,617 847,757,900 334,824,911 847,757,900
Deferred tax (315,521,089) (847,755,359) (320,002,617) (847,757,900)

Current Year ( 2078-79)

Deferred Tax
Lia i

ax

Deferred Tax
Liabiliti

Deferred tax on
temporary differences on
following items

Deferred Tax
Assets

Deferred Tax
Assets

Loan and advance to BFls

Loan and advance to - (2,316,422) 2,316,422 (2,316,422) 2,316,422.00
customers

Investment Properties 125,122 - 125,122 125,122 125,122.00
Investment Securities 20,131,830 - 20,131,830 20,131,830 - 20,131,830.00
Property & Equipment 4,481,528 (308,211,868) (303,730,340) (308,211,868) (308,211,868.00)
Employees' defined benefit 618,388,248 - 618,388,248 618,388,248 - 618,388,248.00
plan

Lease Liabilities 352,868,223 - 352,868,223 352,868,223 352,868,223.00
Provisions - - - -
Other temporary 112,715,051 - 112,715,051 112,715,051 - 112,715,051.00
differences

Investment held through - (1,118,335,645) (1,118,335,645) (1,118,335,645) (1,118,335,645.00)
Other Comprehensive

Income

Deferred tax on 1,108,710,002 (1,428,863,935) (315,521,090) 1,104,228,474 (1,428,863,935) (320,002,617)
temporary differences

Deferred tax on carry -
forward of unused tax

losses

Deferred tax due to -
changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/ (315,521,090) (320,002,617)
liabilities as on Ashadh

32,2079

Deferred tax (asset)/ (847,755,360) (847,757,899)
liabilities as on Shrawan

1,2078

Origination/(Reversal) 532,234,271 527,755,282
during the year

Deferred tax expense/ 330,345,923 334,824,911
(income) recognised in

profit or loss

Deferred tax expense/ (862,580,194) (862,580,193)

(income) recognised in
other comprehensive
income

Deferred tax expense/
(income recognised in
directly in equity
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Previous Year (2077-78)

Particulars

Deferred tax on
temporary differences
on following items

Deferred
Tax Assets

Net Deferred
Tax Assets/
(Liabilities)

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Deferred Tax

Net Deferred
Tax Assets/
(Liabilities)

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Assets

Loan and advance to BFls

Loan and advance to
customers

2,314,548 - 2,314,548

2,314,548 2,314,548

Investment Properties

Investment Securities

20,131,830 - 20,131,830

20,131,830 20,131,830

Property & Equipment

18,509,434 254,355 18,255,079

18,350,948 18,350,948

Employees' defined
benefit plan

478,157,101 217,896 477,939,205

478,157,101 478,157,101

Lease Liabilities

15,772,500 27,180 15,745,320

15,772,500 - 15,772,500

Provisions

Other temporary
differences

131,081,552 - 131,081,552

131,081,552 - 131,081,552

Investment held through
Other Comprehensive
Income

- 1,513,222,894 (1,513,222,894)

1,513,566,378 (1,513,566,378)

Deferred tax on
temporary differences

665,966,965 1,513,722,326 (847,755,360)

665,808,479 1,513,566,378 (847,757,899)

Deferred tax on carry
forward of unused tax
losses

Deferred tax due to
changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/
liabilities as on Ashadh
31,2078

(847,755,359)

(847,757,900)

Deferred tax (asset)/
liabilities as on Sawan 1
2077

647,565,217

647,026,144

Origination/(Reversal)
during the year

(1,495,320,576)

(1,494,784,044)

Deferred tax expense/
(income) recognised in
profit or loss

875,497,479

874,960,947

Deferred tax expense/
(income) recognised in
other comprehensive
income

619,823,097

619,823,097

Deferred tax expense/
(income recognised in
directly in equity

RY
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4,16 Other Assets

Other Assets Group Bank
As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Other non banking assets - - - _

Assets held for sale

Bills receivable - - - R

Accounts receivable 540,323,219 480,641,161 534,782,308 474,430,170

Accrued Income - - - -

Prepayments and Deposit 71,265,919 70,923,816 71,264,959 70,799,692
Income Tax Deposit 2,033,529,579 1,984,725,488 2,033,529,579 1,984,725,488
Deferred Employee expenditure 2,197,696,818 1,218,025,270 2,197,696,818 1,218,025,270
Other 1,572,471,554 231,844,724 1,567,689,446 233,313,268
Total 6,415,287,088 3,986,160,458 6,404,963,110 3,981,293,887

4.16.1 Accounts receivable

Accounts Receivable shown above comprises the amount of accrued commission, drafts paid, transit items and other receivables.

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Commission Receivable 61,571,114 64,081,137 61,571,114 64,081,137
Pension Receivable 167,346,134 120,579,329 167,346,134 120,579,329
Card Receivables - (26,396,335) - (26,396,335)
Dividend Receivable 6,459,529 6,459,529 6,459,529 6,459,529
Other Receivables 49,184,085 50,850,680 49,184,085 50,850,680
Claim for Subsidy Loan 92,373,918 65,100,484 92,373,918 65,100,484
Sundry Debtors 80,920,943 114,244,351 75,380,032 108,033,360
Other Transit item (including cheques) - 4,836,012 - 4,836,012
Drafts Paid Without Notice 82,467,497 80,885,975 82,467,497 80,885,975
Total 540,323,219 480,641,161 534,782,308 474,430,170

4.16.2 Prepayments and Deposit

Prepayments and Deposit comprise of the following items:

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Prepayments 61,601,168 62,033,452 61,600,209 61,909,328
Telephone and Other deposits 9,664,750 8,890,364 9,664,750 8,890,364
Total 71,265,919 70,923,816 71,264,959 70,799,692
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4.16.3 Other

Others include the following:

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Stationery Stock 56,372,281 73,650,486 56,372,281 73,650,486
Cash in Transit 1,672,924 2,623,220 1,672,924 2,623,220
Expenses not Written Off - - - -
Others

Draft - - - -
Government Transaction 1,345,260,385 - 1,345,260,385 -
Advance to Staff 53,419,624 22,550,023.88 53,419,624 22,550,023.88
Bullion 48,699 49,396 48,699 49,396
Others 115,697,641 132,971,597 110,915,533 134,440,143

Pension Payment to NG Ex-employees - - - -

Pension Payment to Defence Staffs - - . -
Total 1,572,471,554 231,844,722 1,567,689,446 233,313,268

4.17 Due to Banks and financial Institution

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 20 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Money Market Deposits - -
Interbank Borrowing 3,509,870,822 - 3,509,870,822
Other deposits from BFls 1,238,970,000 2,369,240,000 1,238,970,000 2,369,240,000

Settlement and clearing accounts - - - -
Total 4,748,840,822 2,369,240,000 4,748,840,822 2,369,240,000

The balances in accounts maintained with the Bank by other local financial institution have been presented under this head. Interbank
borrowing, interbank deposit, balances on settlement and clearing accounts as well as other amount due to bank and financial
institution is presented under due to bank and financial institutions.

4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 | 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Refinance from NRB 7,060,736,189 3,794,077,090 7,060,736,189 3,794,077,090
Standing Liquidity Facility 17,000,000,000 - 17,000,000,000 -

Lender of last resort facility from NRB - - - -

Securities sold under repurchase agreement - -

Other payable to NRB - - - -
Total 24,060,736,189 3,794,077,090  24,060,736,189 3,794,077,090
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4.19 Derivative financial instruments

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 32 Asadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2 31 Ashadh 2078

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward exchange Contract

Others

Held for risk management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward exchange Contract

Others

4.20 Deposit from Customers

Institutions Customers

As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079

As at

31 Ashadh 2078

Term Deposit 15,126,220,000 27,546,100,000 15,126,220,000 27,556,100,000
Call Deposit 14,446,016,559 15,241,850,000 14,475,220,000 15,241,850,000
Current Deposit 49,604,020,000 66,379,475,887 49,604,020,000 66,393,890,000
Other 47,420,000 492,182,169 47,420,000 492,182,169
Saving - - - -
Margin 1,219,670,000 964,090,000 1,219,670,000 964,090,000

Individual Customers

Term Deposit

47,273,831,255

21,352,200,000

47,273,831,255

21,352,200,000

Saving Deposit 115,687,456,989 130,643,180,000 115,687,456,989 130,643,180,000
Current Deposit 14,483,390,000 1,064,240,000 14,483,390,000 1,064,240,000
Other 200,218,820 129,033,678 200,218,820 129,033,678
Call Deposit - - - -
Margin 26,850,000 - 26,850,000 -
Total 258,115,093,623 263,812,351,734 258,144,297,064 263,836,765,847

Deposit from customer includes accrued interest payable as on reporting date for the particular deposit portfolio.

4.20.1 Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Nepalese rupee 257,875,609,756 263,383,189,533 257,904,813,197 263,407,603,646
Indian rupee - - - -
United State Dollar 205,234,073 295,552,473 205,234,073 295,552,473
Great Britain Pound 7,718,441 8,660,912 7,718,441 8,660,912
Euro 26,531,353 124,948,816 26,531,353 124,948,816
Japanese Yen - - - -
Chinese yuan - - - -
Other - - - -
Total 258,115,093,623 263,812,351,734 258,144,297,064 263,836,765,847

)
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4.21 Borrowing

As at
32 Ashadh 2079

As at As at As at
31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government

Other Institutions
Other 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000
Subtotal 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -

Multilateral Development Banks - - - -

Other Institutions - - - _

Sub total - - - -
Total 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000

4.22 Provisions

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2 31 Ashadh 2078

Provisions for redundancy - -

Provision for restructuring - - - -

Pending legal issues and tax litigation - - . -

Onerous contracts - - - -
Other 375,716,839 436,938,500 375,716,839 436,938,500
Total 375,716,839 436,938,500 375,716,839 436,938,500

4.22.1 Movement in provision

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Balance at Shrawan 1 436,938,500 375,137,308 436,938,500 375,137,308
Provisions made during the year - 61,801,192 - 61,801,192
Provisions used during the year (61,221,662) - (61,221,662) -

Provisions reversed during the year - - - -

Unwind of discount - - - -
Balance at Asar end 375,716,839 436,938,500 375,716,839 436,938,500

A provision is recognised when as a result of a past event, the bank has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provision for redundancy,
provision for onerous contracts, provision for restructuring, pending legal issues and tax litigation, credit commitments and guarantees
etc. are included under this account head.
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4.22.2 Other

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Provision for Agency Balances 104,759,433 104,759,432 104,759,433 104,759,432
Provision for Debtors 75,380,031 108,033,360 75,380,031 108,033,360
Provision for Pre-payments - - - -
Provision for Cash in Transits 1,672,924 2,623,220 1,672,924 2,623,220
Provision for other Transit Items 8,111,033 4,836,011 8,111,033 4,836,011
Provision for Draft Paid Without Notice 70,499,832 70,550,465 70,499,832 70,550,465
Provision for Overdrawn Deposits 39,337,564 43,402,084 39,337,564 43,402,084
Provision for Central Office Account (Dr. Balance) 3,561,746 4,718,324 3,561,746 4,718,324
Provision for Stationery Stock 2,818,614 3,682,524 2,818,614 3,682,524
Provision for Advances - - - -
Provision for NRB Reconciliation 4,707,096 4,707,096 4,707,096 4,707,096
Provision for Government Transaction (Old Balances) 1,459,395 1,459,395 1,459,395 1,459,395
Provision for Pension Transaction (Old Balances) 3,696,805 3,696,805 3,696,805 3,696,805
Provision for Branch OS Balance (Gulariya) 7,191,426 7,191,426 7,191,426 7,191,426
Provision for Takeover Accounts - 77,278,358 - 77,278,358
Provision for Prepaid Insurance 4,519,626 - 4,519,626 -
Provision for Dividend receivable 6,459,529 - 6,459,529 -
Provision for Prepaid Rent 10,147,113 - 10,147,113 -
Provision for Transit Expenses 12,217,597 12,217,597

Provision for Transit Others 19,177,076 19,177,076

other provisions - - - -
Total 375,716,839 436,938,500 375,716,839 436,938,500

4.23 Other Liabilities

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 1,991,011,160 1,564,682,904 1,991,011,160 1,564,682,904
Endowment Life Insurance Fund 223,343,362 74,387,524 223,343,362 74,387,524
Pension and Gratuity 1,767,667,798 1,490,295,380 1,767,667,798 1,490,295,380
Leave Encashment 959,542 - -
Liability for long-service leave 70,281,625 29,172,725 70,281,625 29,172,725
Short-term employee benefits 54,310,918 56,711,694 54,303,263 54,303,263
Bills Payable 366,177,297 345,622,147 366,177,297 345,622,147
Creditors and accruals 1,446,229,949 933,701,087 1,388,278,649 903,237,869
Interest payable on deposit - - - -
Interest payable on borrowing - - - -
Liabilities on deferred grant income - - - -
Unpaid Dividend 1,952,798 1,911,030 1,952,798 1,911,030
Operating Lease Liability - 10,706,739 - 10,706,739
Liabilities under Finance Lease 5,363,173 - - -
Employee bonus payable 350,355,809 283,069,269 348,751,582 284,509,739
Other 3,031,992,830 4,259,573,079 3,026,393,274 4,256,764,881
Total 7,318,635,102 7,485,150,674 7,247,149,648 7,450,911,297
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Liabilities relating to employees benefits like liabilities for defined benefit obligation gratuity and pension fund, liabilities
for long-service leave, short-term employee benefits etc, Creditors and accruals, unearned income, unpaid dividend
etc. are presented under this account head of other liabilities. Long service leave consists of sick leave and annual leave.
Operating lease liability from previous year has been adjusted in the current year under NFRS-16 Leases Transitional Provisions.
Other head includes interest reversal of NPR 245.27 Million as interest payable to borrowers which is yet to be refunded.

4.23.1 The amount Recognised in Statement of Financial Position:

Combined Actuarial Disclosure for Endowment Plan and Gratuity Plan. For individual disclosure on endowment life insurance fund,
refer note 4.23.3 and for pension and gratuity plan, refer note 4.23.2

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation 1,957,525,593 1,531,197,338 1,957,525,593 1,531,197,338
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 14,359,721,681 13,554,723,111 14,359,721,681 13,554,723,111
Total Present value of obligations 16,317,247,274 15,085,920,449 16,317,247,274 15,085,920,449
Fair value of plan assets 14,359,721,681 13,554,723,111 14,359,721,681 13,554,723,111
Present Value of Net Obligation 1,957,525,593 1,531,197,338 1,957,525,593 1,531,197,338
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations 1,957,525,593 1,531,197,338 1,957,525,593 1,531,197,338

4.23.1.1 Plan Assets

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 | 31 Ashadh 2078 | 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Equity Shares - -
Government Bonds - - -
Bank Deposit 14,359,721,681 13,554,723,111 14,359,721,681 13,554,723,111
Other - - - -
Total 14,359,721,681 13,554,723,111 14,359,721,681 13,554,723,111

Actual Return on Plan assets

4.23.1.2 Movement in Present Value of defined benefits Obligation

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Present Value of Obligation at beginning of the year 15,085,920,449 14,455,946,400 15,085,920,449 14,455,946,400
Acturial Losses 1,292,716,616 724,850,140 1,292,716,616 724,850,140
Benefits paid by the plan (1,658,087,065) (1,573,590,593) (1,658,087,065) (1,573,590,593)
Current Service Cost and Interest 1,596,697,274 1,478,714,502 1,596,697,274 1,478,714,502
Defined benefits obligation at year end 16,317,247,274 15,085,920,449 16,317,247,274 15,085,920,449
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4.23.1.3 Movement in Present Value of Plan Assets

Particulars As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of the year 13,554,723,111 11,069,679,783 13,554,723,111 11,069,679,783
Opening Readjustment - - - -
Contributions paid into plan 1,531,197,338 3,386,266,617 1,531,197,338 3,386,266,617
Benefits paid by the plan (1,658,087,065) (1,573,590,593) (1,658,087,065) (1,573,590,593)
Acturial Losses/gains (282,326,746) (405,474,297) (282,326,746) (405,474,297)
Expected return on plan assets 1,214,215,043 1,077,841,601 1,214,215,043 1,077,841,601
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the year end 14,359,721,681 13,554,723,111 14,359,721,681 13,554,723,111

4.23.1.4 Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078
Current service cost 313,578,351 248,490,903 313,578,351 248,490,903
Interest cost 68,903,880 152,381,998 68,903,880 152,381,998

Expected Return on Plan Assets - - - _
Expenses Recognized in Profit or Loss 382,482,231 400,872,901 382,482,231 400,872,901

4.23.1.5 Expenses Recognized in other comprehensive income

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078
Acturial (gain)/loss 1,575,043,362 1,130,324,437 1,575,043,362 1,130,324,437
Expenses Recognized in Income Statement 1,575,043,362 1,130,324,437 1,575,043,362 1,130,324,437

4.23.1.6 Actuarial Assumptions

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Discount rate 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Withdrawal rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Expected return on Plan Assets 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%

4.23.2 Actuarial Disclosures for Pension and Gratuity

4.23.2.1 Movement in Present Value of defined benefits Obligation- Pension and Gratuity

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Present Value of Obligation at beginning of the year 14,058,846,674 11,111,498,868 14,058,846,674 11,111,498,868
Acturial Losses 1,236,360,254 2,682,641,023 1,236,360,254 2,682,641,023
Benefits paid by the plan (1,559,228,043) (1,424,400,649) (1,559,228,043) (1,424,400,649)
Current Service Cost and Interest 1,370,918,858 1,051,947,801 1,370,918,858 1,051,947,801
Defined benefits obligation at year end 15,106,897,743 13,421,687,043 15,106,897,743 13,421,687,043
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4.23.2.2 Movement in Present Value of Plan Assets- Pension and Gratuity

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of the year 12,594,835,958 9,080,231,874 12,594,835,958 9,080,231,874
Opening Readjustment - - (2,495,422)
Contributions paid into plan 1,464,010,716 2,031,266,994 1,464,010,716 2,031,266,994
Benefits paid by the plan (1,559,228,043) (1,424,400,649) (1,559,228,043) (1,424,400,649)
Acturial Losses/gains (263,354,479) (292,547,543) (263,354,479) (292,547,543)
Expected return on plan assets 1,129,250,457 753,122,839 1,129,250,457 753,122,839
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the year end 13,365,514,609 10,147,673,514 13,365,514,609 10,145,178,092

4.23.2.3 Actuarial Assumptions for Pension and Gratuity

Particulars As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Discount rate 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of increase in pension levels 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
Withdrawal rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Expected return on Plan Assets 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%

4.23.3 Actuarial Disclosures for Endowment Life Insurance Fund

4.23.3.1 Movement in Present Value of defined benefits Obligation- Endowment Life Insurance Fund

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 | 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Particulars

Present Value of Obligation at beginning of the year 1,027,073,775 1,034,259,357 1,027,073,775 1,034,259,357
Acturial Losses 56,356,362 (74,900,082) 56,356,362 (74,900,082)
Benefits paid by the plan (98,859,022) (131,855,616) (98,859,022) (131,855,616)
Current Service Cost and Interest 225,778,416 199,570,116 225,778,416 199,570,116
Defined benefits obligation at year end 1,210,349,531 1,027,073,775 1,210,349,531 1,027,073,775

4.23.3.2 Movement in Present Value of Plan Assets- Endowment Life Insurance Fund

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of the year 959,887,153 924,501,691 959,887,153 924,501,691
Contributions paid into plan 67,186,622 109,757,666 67,186,622 109,757,666
Benefits paid by the plan (98,859,022) (131,855,616) (98,859,022) (131,855,616)
Acturial Losses/gains (18,972,267) (24,727,332) (18,972,267) (24,727,332)
Expected return on plan assets 84,964,586 82,210,744 84,964,586 82,210,744
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the year end 994,207,072 959,887,153 994,207,072 959,887,153
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4.23.3.3 Actuarial Assumptions for Endowment Life Insurance Fund

As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079

As at
31 Ashadh 2078
Discount rate 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Withdrawal rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Expected return on Plan Assets 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%

4.23.4 Actuarial Disclosures for Leave Plan

4.23.4.1 Movement in Present Value of defined benefits Obligation

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Present Value of Obligation at beginning of the year 398,585,595 380,644,824 398,585,595 380,644,824
Acturial Losses 17,390,378 (26,071,024) 17,390,378 (26,071,024)
Benefits paid by the plan (25,874,379) (32,407,079) (25,874,379) (32,407,079)
Current Service Cost and Interest 78,288,411 76,418,874 78,288,411 76,418,874
Defined benefits obligation at year end 468,390,005 398,585,595 468,390,005 398,585,595

4.23.4.2 Movement in Present Value of Plan Assets- Leave Plan

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning of the year 369,412,870 340,558,049 369,412,870 340,558,049
Contributions paid into plan 29,172,725 40,086,775 29,172,725 40,086,775
Benefits paid by the plan (25,874,379) (32,407,079) (25,874,379) (32,407,079)
Acturial Losses/gains (7,998,420) (9,820,686) (7,998,420) (9,820,686)
Expected return on plan assets 33,395,584 30,995,811 33,395,584 30,995,811
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the year end 398,108,380 369,412,870 398,108,380 369,412,870

4.23.4.3 Actuarial Assumptions for Leave Plan

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Discount rate 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Withdrawal rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Expected return on Plan Assets 9.00% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%

903



ftc aifdisa da fér.
RASTRIVA BANLJYA BANK LTD.

UL I T

RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.23.5 Sensitivity Analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the assumptions set out above. The following table summarizes how
the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period would have been increased/ decreased as a result of
change in the respective assumptions by 2%

Defined Benefit Obligation as at 31 Asadh 2079
8% 1,298,919,585 16,441,919,215
10% 1,132,890,211 13,952,789,969
Defined Benefit Obligation as at 31 Asadh 2079
4% 1,132,133,366 15,034,160,635
6% 1,298,564,950 15,187,435,459
Defined Benefit Obligation as at 31 Asadh 2079

Pension and Gratuity

Discount Rate

Endowment Plan

497,252,957
443,251,662

Salary Increment Rate
Endowment Plan

443,073,756
497,068,004

Withdrawal Rate
Endowment Plan

4%
6%

Defined Benefit Obligation as at 31 Asadh 2079

Pension and Gratuity Leave

14,015,393,714
16,355,844,966

Pension Increase Rate
Endowment Plan

0%
2%

4.23.6 Other Liabilities: Others

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Employees Welfare Fund 331,225,790 335,833,070 331,225,790 335,833,070
Unearned discount & commission - - - -
Branch Account 514,379,160 341,632,238 514,379,160 341,632,238
Unclaimed Accounts 253,393,864 239,936,024 253,393,864 239,936,024
Risk Bearing Fund for other Assets - - - -
Medical Treatment Fund - - - -
Welfare Provident Fund - - - -
TDS Payable 212,273,239 249,664,691 212,273,239 249,664,691
Earnest Money,retention & Other Deposits 15,681,555 10,304,466 15,681,555 10,304,466
Nepal Bank Draft Transaction Payable - - - -
Government Transaction Payable - 2,469,981,542 - 2,469,981,542
Fund Based Liability 234,908,845 199,476,765 234,908,845 199,476,765
ATM Cash Withdrawal Payable to Other Banks 193,382,192 177,157,517 193,382,192 177,157,517
Lease Liabilities 1,176,227,409 1,176,227,409

Others 94,921,222 235,586,765 94,921,222 232,778,568
Rebate and Waiver 232,778,568 232,778,568
Others 5,599,555 2,808,197 -
Total 3,031,992,831 4,259,573,079 3,026,393,276 4,256,764,881

q0%
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4.24 Debt Securities Issued

As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079

Debt Securities issued designated at fair value - -
through profit or loss

Debt Securities issued at amortized cost 2,607,123,287 2,517,465,753 2,607,123,287 2,517,465,753
Total 2,607,123,287 2,517,465,753 2,607,123,287 2,517,465,753

4.25 Subordinated Liabilities

As at
31 Ashadh 2078

Bank does not hold any kind of subordinated liabilities.

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Redeemable preference shares - - - _
irredeemable cumulative preference shares - - - -
Other - - - -
Total = = 5 -

Liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to the claims of depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors are included under this head
which include redeemable preference share, subordinated notes issued, borrowings etc. Bank does not hold any kind of subordinated liabilities.

4.26 Share Capital

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Share Capital -
Ordinary Shares 13,940,359,099 9,184,891,614 13,940,359,099 9,184,891,614
Ordinary Shares - Calls in Advance 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

Convertible Preference Shares (equity component only) - - - -
Irredeemable Preference Shares (equity component only) - - - -
Perpetual debt (equity component only) - - - -
Total 14,940,359,099 10,184,891,614 14,940,359,099 10,184,891,614

Ordinary Shares As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 | 32 Ashadh 2079" 31 Ashadh 2078

Authorised capital

300,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 30,000,000,000 11,200,000,000 30,000,000,000 11,200,000,000
Issued capital

139,403,590.99 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 13,940,359,099 9,184,891,614 13,940,359,099 9,184,891,614
Subscribed and Paid up capital

139,403,590.99 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 13,940,359,099 9,184,891,614 13,940,359,099 9,184,891,614

4.26.1 Ordinary Share Ownership

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078
Domestic Ownership

Nepal Government 13,936,260,433 9,182,044,794 13,936,260,433 9,182,044,794
"A" Class licensed institutions - - - -

Other licensed institutions - - - R

Other institutions - - - R

Public 4,098,666 2,846,820 4,098,666 2,846,820
Other - - - -
Foreign Ownership - - - -
Total 13,940,359,099 9,184,891,614 13,940,359,099 9,184,891,614

90%
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4.26.2 Shareholders Ownership Details

As at 32 Ashadh 2079 As at 31 Ashadh 2078

A. DOMESTIC OWNERSHIP 13,940,359,099 100.00% 9,184,891,614 100.00%
1.1. Nepal Government 13,936,260,433 99.97% 9,182,044,794 99.97%
1.1.1 Ministry of Finance 13,143,972,516 94.29% 8,572,592,550 93.33%
1.1.2 Financial Comptroller General Office 666,341,918 4.78% 512,570,706 5.58%
1.1.3 Ministry of Industry 78,122,881 0.56% - 0.60%
1.1.4 Ministry of Labour and Employment 11,823,279 0.08% 9,094,830 0.10%
1.1.5 Ministry of Tourism and Civil Aviation 11,823,279 0.08% 9,094,830 0.10%
1.1.6 Ministry of Physical Infrastructure and Transportation 11,823,279 0.08% 9,094,830 0.10%
1.1.7 Ministry of Commerce and Supply - 0.00% 60,094,524 0.05%
1.1.8 Ministry of Energy - 0.00% - 0.05%
1.1.9 Ministry of Irrigation 11,955,481 0.09% 9,196,524 0.05%
1.1.10 Ministry of Scinence & Technology 132,600 0.00% 102,000 0.00%
1.1.11 Ministry of Agriculture 132,600 0.00% 102,000 0.00%
1.1.12 Ministry of Land Reform 132,600 0.00% 102,000 0.00%
1.2."A" Class Licensed Institutions - - - 0.00%
1.3 Other Licensed Institutions - - - 0.00%
1.4. Other Institutions - - - 0.00%
1.5. General Public 4,098,666 0.03% 2,846,820 0.03%
1.6. Others - - -

B. FOREIGN OWNERSHIP - - -

Total 13,940,359,099 9,184,891,614

4.27 Reserves

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Statutory General reserve 10,602,050,559 9,743,314,926 10,598,497,488 9,739,923,190
Exchange equalization reserve 102,331,730 100,066,324 102,331,730 100,066,324
Corporate social responsibility reserve 89,104,586 73,298,868 89,104,586 72,959,694
Capital redemption reserve - - - -
Regulatory reserve 10,900,423,259 9,584,839,969 10,900,423,258 9,584,839,969
Investment adjustment reserve 15,845,700 15,845,700 15,845,700 15,845,700
Capital reserve 481,195,653 481,195,653 481,195,653 481,195,653
Assets revaluation reserve 77,183,784 77,183,784 77,183,784 77,183,784
Fair value reserve 2,617,369,608 3,527,526,374 2,617,369,609 3,527,526,374
Dividend equalization reserve - - - -
Debenture Redemption Reserve 625,000,000 - 625,000,000 -
Actuarial gain (9,782,285,987) (8,679,755,634) (9,782,285,987) (8,679,755,634)
Special reserve 45,636,656 45,636,656 45,636,656 45,636,656
Other reserve 106,344,715 70,183,173 104,834,266 70,183,173
Total 15,880,200,262 15,039,335,791 15,875,136,743 15,035,604,882

90%
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General Reserve

There is a regulatory requirement by the central bank to set aside
20% of the net profit after tax every year as general reserve to
build up the capital until the general reserve fund balance is
twice the paid up share capital. This is the restricted reserve
and cannot be freely used. The Bank appropriates 20% of the
regulatory net profit every year and transfers to the general
reserve fund.

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Central bank’s regulatory directives requires the bank to transfer
25% of the translation gain as at the year end to this reserve
account. The foreign currency balances as at the year-end are
translated using the year-end rates and in case of gains on such
translation, 25% of such gains are transferred to the foreign
exchange reserve.

Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve
Bank has regulatory requirement to set aside 1% of the net profit
for corporate social responsibility activities.

Regulatory Reserve

Regulatory reserves includes any amount derived as result of
NFRS conversion with effect in retained earning computed as
per Nepal Rastra Bank Directive no 4. Refer Note 5.24 for detail.

4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars

As at
32 Ashadh 2079

Investment Adjustment Reserve
Investment Adjustment Reserve is created against quoted and
unquoted share investments as per Nepal Rastra Bank Directives.

Fair value Reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair value and
the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive
income, until the assets are derecognized. The cumulative
amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets shall be
presented under this account head.

Actuarial gain/(loss)

Actuarial Gains and Losses are the changes in the present value
of the defined benefit obligation as a result of change in actuarial
assumptions and experience adjustments.

Asset Revaluation Reserve
Asset Revaluation Reserve includes the amount of upward
revaluation of asset.

Other Reserve

Others include staff training fund, contingent reserve,
institutional development fund, special fund for dissenting
shareholders of NIDC. Refer Note 5.19 for item wise detail.

As at
32 Ashadh 2079

As at
31 Ashadh 2078

As at
31 Ashadh 2078

Contingent liabilities 14,126,379,884 13,321,247,462 14,126,379,884 13,321,247,462
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 47,204,692,581 20,105,594,162 47,204,692,581 20,105,594,162
Capital commitment 1,121,212,002 690,308,039 1,121,212,002 690,308,039
Lease Commitment - 1,723,809,665 - 1,723,809,665
Litigation 2,218,464,932 2,080,987,003 2,218,464,932 2,080,987,003
Total 64,670,749,399 37,921,946,332 64,670,749,399 37,921,946,332

4.28.1 Contingent liabilities

As at As at As at As at
31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

32 Ashadh 2079

Acceptance and documentary credit 3,500,133,464 2,479,717,030 3,500,133,464 2,479,717,030
Bills for collection 5,088,698 5,519,492 5,088,698 5,519,492
Forward exchange contracts - - - -
Guarantees 8,863,334,225 9,081,487,443 8,863,334,225 9,081,487,443

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments

1,757,823,497

1,754,523,497

1,757,823,497

1,754,523,497

Total

14,126,379,884

13,321,247,462

14,126,379,884

13,321,247,462
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4.28.2 Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Undisbursed amount of loans 17,597,740,221 19,435,654,372 17,597,740,221 19,435,654,372
Undrawn limits of overdrafts 2,886,674,335 669,939,790 2,886,674,335 669,939,790
Undrawn limits of credit cards 12,712,000 - 12,712,000 -
Undrawn limits of letter of credit 7,818,494,208 - 7,818,494,208 -
Undrawn limits of guarantee 18,889,071,817 - 18,889,071,817 -
Total 47,204,692,581 20,105,594,162 47,204,692,581 20,105,594,162

4.28.3 Capital commitment

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashad 31 Ashadh 2078

Approved and contracted for 1,121,212,002 690,308,039 1,121,212,002 690,308,039
Approved but not contracted for - -
Sub total 1,121,212,002 690,308,039 1,121,212,002 690,308,039

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for - - - R

Approved but not contracted for - - - -

Sub total - - - -
Total 1,121,212,002 690,308,039 1,121,212,002 690,308,039

4.28.4 Lease commitments

As at As at As at As at
32 Ashadh 2079 | 31 Ashadh 2078 | 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable - - - -
operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year - 242,748,032 - 242,748,032
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - 1,112,972,976 - 1,112,972,976
Later than 5 years - 368,088,657 - 368,088,657
Sub total - 1,723,809,665 - 1,723,809,665

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable -
operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year -

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years -

Later than 5 years -
Sub total

Grand total = 1,723,809,665 = 1,723,809,665
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4.28.5 Litigation

The Bank has received assessment order from Large Taxpayers’ Office (LTO) on the income tax return filed under self-assessment for
the financial year 2059/60 to 2073/74 . Refer Note 5.6.1 for details.

Tax Liability determined by Tax deductible determmed by the Revenue
case pendlng = NetTax Payable

FY 2059/60 Supreme Court 40,154,866 40,154,866
FY 2060/61 Supreme Court 409,489,278 390,198,432 19,290,846
FY 2061/62 Supreme Court 821,594,031 759,571,388 62,022,643
FY 2062/63 Supreme Court 221,515,009 214,224,264 7,290,746
FY 2063/64 Supreme Court 426,583,383 338,535,663 88,047,720
FY 2064/65 Supreme Court 492,997,664 428,621,163 64,376,501
FY 2065/66 Revenue Tribunal 537,808,899 478,073,854 59,735,045
FY 2066/67 Revenue Tribunal 682,662,120 590,856,483 91,805,637
FY 2067/68 Revenue Tribunal 311,560,379 233,182,946 78,377,433
FY 2068/69 Revenue Tribunal 523,483,701 398,043,925 125,439,776
FY 2069/70 Revenue Tribunal 649,453,255 546,836,153 102,617,102
FY 2070/71 Revenue Tribunal 385,783,898 - 385,783,898
FY 2071/72 Revenue Tribunal 737,438,854 335,089,776 402,349,078
FY 2072/73 Administrative Review 553,695,713 - 553,695,713
FY 2073/74 Administrative Review 137,477,929 - 137,477,929
Total 6,794,221,050 4,713,234,047 2,218,464,932

4.29 Interestincome

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

128,186,382 51,393,942 110,978,271 51,393,942

Particulars

Cash and cash equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -

Placement with bank and financial institutions - - - -

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions - - - -
18,201,613,301 13,691,767,949 18,201,613,301 13,691,767,949
2,285,193,376 2,331,021,213 2,285,193,376 2,325,251,947

Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities

Loan and advances to staff 91,953,910 160,694,260 91,953,910 160,694,260
Other 2,018,647 7,748,180 - -
Total interest income 20,708,965,616 16,242,625,545 20,689,738,858 16,229,108,099

4.30 Interest expense

Particulars Year ended

31 Ashadh 2078

Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079

Due to bank and financial institutions 218,582,208 6,988,211 218,582,208 6,988,211
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 260,644,570 3,287,671 260,644,570 3,287,671
Deposits from customers 10,652,919,457 7,957,453,873 10,653,152,717 7,964,461,379
Borrowing 3,600,000 3,600,000 3,600,000 3,600,000
Debt securities issued 213,082,191 18,819,098 213,082,191 18,819,098
Subordinated liabilities - - - -
Other 44,729,121 22,502,604 44,729,121 22,502,604
Total interest expense 11,393,557,547 8,012,651,457 11,393,790,807 8,019,658,963
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4.31 Fees and Commission Income
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078
Loan administration fees - - -

Service fees 460,388,698 397,170,544 460,388,698 397,170,544
Consortium fees - - - _

Commitment fees - - - -

DD/TT/Swift fees 5,128,143 5,242,327 5,128,143 5,242,327
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees 113,679,739 109,957,656 113,679,739 109,957,656
Prepayment and swap fees 799,990 1,944,694 799,990 1,944,694

Investment banking fees - - . R
Asset management fees - - . -
Brokerage fees - - - _

Remittance fees 18,713,574 11,557,782 18,713,574 11,557,782
Commission on letter of credit 35,217,397 17,590,552 35,217,397 17,590,552
Commission on guarantee contracts issued 98,348,646 81,150,125 98,348,646 81,150,125
Commission on share underwriting/issue - - - -
Locker rental 10,187,167 6,642,075 10,187,167 6,642,075
Other fees and commission income 307,815,963 373,006,291 277,137,982 346,745,744
Total fees and Commission Income 1,050,279,317 1,004,262,047 1,019,601,336 978,001,500

4.32 Fees and commission expense

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

ATM management fees

VISA/Master card fees 89,981,779 61,210,553 89,981,779 61,210,553
Guarantee commission 147,255,135 133,812,071 147,255,135 133,812,071
Brokerage - - - -
DD/TT/Swift fees - - - -
Remittance fees and commission 36,965,500 - 36,965,500 -
Other fees and commission expense 75,042,197 70,000,978 75,140,554 63,219,114
Total fees and Commission Expense 349,244,611 265,023,602 349,342,968 258,241,737

Payouts on account of fee and commission for services obtained by the bank are presented under this account head. This account head
includes card related fees, guarantee commission, brokerage expenses etc.

4.33 Net trading income

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Changes in fair value of trading assets -

Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - - - -

Interest income on trading assets - - - R

Dividend income on trading assets - - - -

Gain/loss foreign exchange transaction 27,267,665 161,277,208 27,267,665 161,277,208
Other - - - -
Net trading income 27,267,665 161,277,208 27,267,665 161,277,208

Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realized interest, dividend and foreign
exchange differences as well as unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities are presented under this account head. Foreign
exchange transactions results include gains and losses from spot and forward contracts and translated foreign currency assets and liabilities.
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4.34 Other operating income

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Foreign exchange revaluation gain 9,061,624 3,779,586 9,061,624 3,779,586
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities 35,548 91,009,810 35,548 88,699,411
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - - - -
Dividend on equity instruments 202,304,895 48,698,186 221,304,895 58,198,186
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment 169,680,518 26,780 169,680,518 26,780

Gain/loss on sale of investment property - - - R
Operating lease income 7,031,977 7,546,469 8,066,377 7,546,469

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - - - R

Locker rent - - - -
Other 585,536,081 471,442,944 585,817,527 475,191,982
Total 973,650,643 622,503,776 993,966,489 633,442,414

Receipt of all other operating income not specifically provided under the income heads from 4.29 to 4.33 above are booked and
presented under this head. This include foreign exchange revaluation gain, gain/loss on sale of available for sale securities, dividend on
available for sale securities, gain/loss on sale of property and equipment, gain/loss on sale of investment properties, operating lease
income, gain/loss on sale of gold and silver, locker rental income etc.

4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Impairment charge/(reversal) on

Loan and advances to B/Fls 14,355,182 158,280,180 14,355,182 158,280,180
loan and advances to customer 402,164,986 448,528,981 402,164,986 448,528,981
Financial Investment - 124,646 - 124,646
Other Asset (61,219,117) 90,208,203 (61,219,117) 90,208,203
Placement with banks and financial institutions - - - -
Property and equipment - 26,238,429 - 26,238,429
Goodwill and intangible assets - - - -
Investment properties 417,073 - 417,073 -
Total 355,718,124 723,380,438 355,718,124 723,380,438

4.36 Personnel Expense

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Salary 995,634,909 912,870,983 986,182,394 904,658,928
Allowances 750,172,201 723,162,972 749,377,796 722,629,167
Gratuity and Pension expense 386,124,054 404,480,551 385,747,036 404,480,551
Provident fund 97,336,389 90,335,473 97,336,389 90,335,473
Uniform 29,242,540 31,351,240 29,092,540 31,181,240
Training & development expense 14,167,550 9,678,988 14,167,550 9,678,988
Leave encashment 131,146,606 101,009,643 130,828,175 100,583,187
Medical 198,430,601 186,027,006 198,430,601 186,027,006
Insurance 3,210,495 3,421,711 3,210,495 3,332,061
Employees incentive - - - -
Cash-settled share-based payments - - - -
Pension expense - - - -
Finance expense under NFRS 65,859,407 137,207,529 65,859,407 137,207,529
Other expenses related to staff 218,894,325 185,522,058 217,420,950 184,400,308
Sub total 2,890,219,077 2,785,068,154 2,877,653,333 2,774,514,437
Employees bonus 324,080,570 258,896,177 322,476,343 257,264,737
Grand total 3,214,299,647 3,043,964,331 3,200,129,676 3,031,779,174

Provision for staff bonus is a mandatory requirement under the requirement of the Bonus Act, 2030. The Provision for staff bonus has
been computed as 5 percent(5%) of profit before bonus and taxes. Refer Note 5.19
All expenses related to employees of a bank has been included under this head. Staff Loans are measured at fair value using the market rates.
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4.36.1 Gratuity and Pension Expense

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Particulars

Gratuity and Pension 245,310,224 287,121,179 244,933,206 287,121,179
Endowment Insurance Fund 140,813,830 117,359,372 140,813,830 117,359,372
Grand Total 386,124,054 404,480,551 385,747,036 404,480,551

4.36.2 Other Expenses related to Staff

Group Bank
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078
Welfare Provident fund 132,383,625 117,868,497 132,383,625 117,868,497
Overtime 5,331,675 8,998,751 5,331,675 8,998,751
Employees Loan and others Waivers - 2,943,110 499,589 2,943,110
Miscellaneous 81,179,025 55,711,699 79,206,061 54,589,949
Grand Total 218,894,325 185,522,057 217,420,950 184,400,308

4.37 Other operating expense

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Directors' fee 2,715,580 2,896,008 2,317,880 2,611,905
Directors' expense 1,830,505 177,876 1,798,623 177,876
Auditors' remuneration 4,623,960 6,297,380 4,397,960 6,025,160
Other audit related expense 2,414,893 1,016,884 2,328,048 1,016,884
Professional and legal expense 31,987,206 47,770,794 31,987,206 47,164,864
Office administration expense 891,499,281 813,506,878 885,394,378 811,762,475
Operating lease expense - 262,583,044 - 262,583,044
Operating expense of investment properties - - - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 26,783,327 52,242,979 26,783,327 52,242,979
Onerous lease provisions - - - -
Other 108,094,154 53,462,342 100,086,952 50,504,654
Total 1,069,948,906 1,239,954,184 1,055,094,374 1,234,089,841

All operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized and presented under this account head. The
expenses covered under this account head includes office administration expense, other operating and overhead expense, directors’
emoluments, remuneration and non audit fee paid to auditors, professional and legal expense, expense of restructuring, impairment of
non financial assets, expense of corporate social responsibility, etc.

No individual operating lease has terms and conditions that significantly affect the amount, timing and certainty of the consolidated
cash flows of the Group.

4.37.1 Office administration expense

Office Administration Expense comprises the following items:

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Electricity and Water 76,046,555 65,855,008 75,682,986 65,806,317
Repair & Maintenance 31,863,269 31,041,077 31,863,269 30,826,769
a. Building 4,606,359 8,282,972 4,606,359 8,282,972
b. Vehicle 12,091,259 9,258,302 12,091,259 9,258,302
c. Computer and accessories 3,396,005 3,197,052 3,396,005 3,197,052
d. Office Equipment and Furniture 11,769,646 10,302,751 11,769,646 10,088,443
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Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

e. Other - - -
Insurance 41,998,454 41,881,127 41,967,658 41,836,077
Postage, Telex,Telephone,Fax 68,837,109 57,871,816 68,716,739 57,798,561
Office Equipment, Furniture and Repair - - - -
Travelling Allowance and Expenses 21,111,753 18,337,213 21,111,753 18,337,213
Stationary and Printing 105,823,783 94,421,282 105,049,701 93,987,585
Periodicals and Books 2,843,811 2,595,351 2,821,260 2,578,078
Advertisements 58,577,071 49,279,394 58,191,404 49,182,977
Entertaintment 16,671,144 14,780,112 16,521,337 14,514,086
Amortisation - - - -
Security Expenses 252,959,623 218,834,258 252,959,623 218,834,258
Fuel & Lubricants 58,035,027 42,265,935 57,736,474 42,020,623
Rates & Taxes 28,255,379 44,052,450 28,255,379 44,052,450
Reward - 1,523,376 - 1,523,376
Membership & Subscription 1,886,510 2,642,360 1,812,410 2,642,360
Cleaning Expenses 116,064,722 118,597,499 115,624,783 118,293,125
Local Conveyance Transportation 7,313,132 9,528,620 7,079,602 9,528,620
Service Charges 274,455 - - -
Other 2,937,485

Total 891,499,281 813,506,878 885,394,378 811,762,475
4.37.2 Other

Other comprises the following items:

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Annual General Meeting Expenses 894,824 759,932 894,824 724,042
Loan Recovery Expenses 6,638,623 6,598,607 6,638,623 6,598,607
Recruitment Expenses 50,190,445 3,282,874 50,190,445 3,282,874
Provision for advances - - - -
Others 50,370,262 42,820,928 42,363,060 39,899,131
Total 108,094,154 53,462,342 100,086,952 50,504,654

4.38 Depreciation & Amortisation

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078
Depreciation on property and equipment 541,440,022 221,669,522 540,188,320 220,679,898
Depreciation on investment property - - - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 19,319,889 17,229,106 18,911,093 17,008,776
Total 560,759,912 238,898,628 559,099,413 237,688,674

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. Amortization is the systematic
allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its useful life. Depreciation is measured and recognized as per NFRS
on property and equipment, and investment properties, and amortization of intangible assets is presented under this account head.
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4.39 Non operating income

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Recovery of loan written off 429,626,520 385,501,318 429,626,520 385,501,318
Other income 805,130 5,538,296 805,130 5,538,296
Total 430,431,650 391,039,614 430,431,650 391,039,614

The incomes that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head.

4.40 Non operating expense

Particulars

Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079

Year ended

31 Ashadh 2078

Year ended

32 Ashadh 2079

Year ended
31 Ashadh 2078

Loan written off 120,780,124 - 120,780,124 -
Redundancy provision - - - -
Expense of restructuring - - - _
Other expense - - - R
Total 120,780,124 - 120,780,124 -

The expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head. The expense covered
under this account head includes loan written off, recovery of loan, redundancy provision, expense of restructuring etc.

4.41 Income tax expense

Particulars

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Current tax expense

Current year 1,507,129,432 598,921,575 1,497,438,710 589,440,765
Adjustments for prior years 1,965,041 36,985 1,965,041 -
Deferred tax expense -

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 330,345,923 875,497,479 334,824,911 874,960,947
Changes in tax rate - - - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - - - -
Total income tax expense 1,839,440,396 1,474,456,038 1,834,228,662 1,464,401,712

The amount of income tax on net taxable profit is recognized and presented under this account head. This account head includes
current tax expense and deferred tax expense/deferred tax income.

4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078 32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Profit before tax 6,145,286,020 4,920,591,300 6,127,050,512 4,888,030,008
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 1,843,585,806 1,476,177,390 1,838,115,154 1,466,409,002
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax 264,663,041 529,442,620 264,663,041 528,903,048
purpose

Less: Tax effect on exempt income (605,339,485) (1,400,413,082) (605,339,485) (1,399,585,932)
Add/less: Tax effect on other items 336,531,034 869,249,110 336,789,952 868,675,593
Total income tax expense 1,839,440,396 1,474,456,038 1,834,228,662 1,464,401,712
Effective tax rate 29.93% 29.97% 29.94% 29.96%
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5. Disclosures and Additional Information

5.1 RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management structure of the Bank has set clear separation
between Businesses function and risk management function.
Accordingly, the Bank has set up a separate Risk Management
Department (RMD) headed by the department chief. The RMD
oversees global, macro, micro and departmental level risk that
arise out of daily business operation as well as on periodic
basis and are put to the oversight of Senior Management,
Risk Management Committee and the Board to discuss the
reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate. The
RMD also develops the mechanism for assessing and reviewing
its risk management policies, processes and procedures for
individual risk elements, at a regular interval, based on the main
findings of the monitoring reports and the results of analysis
of developments from external market changes and other
environmental factors.

i. Risk Management Committee

Board of Directors is the apex and supreme authority of the Bank
and is responsible to frame and implement robust policies and
framework for effective compliance of regulation and direction
issued by the regulatory authority. BOD ensures the strategies,
policies and procedure is in accordance with the risk appetite/
tolerance limit for effective management of risk within the
Bank. The board understands the nature of risk of the bank, and
periodically reviews reports on risk management, including
policies and standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital

Risk Management Committee

Risk Management Department

Stress testing Wing

mmmag ICAAP and Capital Management (CM Wing)

Credit Risk Management and
Monitoring Wing

— Market Risk Management Wing

Operation and Other Risk

Management Wing

99 &t T TRTaeT 005 /09

adequacy through the reporting by the Risk Management
Committee and the Asset- Liabilities Management Committee.

Pursuant to the Nepal Rastra Bank directive on corporate
governance, the Bank has established Risk Management
Committee with well-defined terms of reference in line the
Nepal Rastra Bank’s Unified Directives, 2078. At least four
quarterly meeting is conducted on annual basis however
number of meeting can be increased as per the requirement.
The committee supervises overall risk management of the Bank
broadly classified as liquidity risk, market risk, operational risk,
credit risk and residual risk.

ii. Risk Governance

Bank has prepared and implemented policies and procedures
to mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising to the bank and
has inculcated risk culture among the employees by establishing
ownership mentality, capacity building programs, well defined
job responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture.

Through its Risk Management Framework, the Bank seeks to
efficiently manage credit, market and liquidity risks which arise
directly through the Bank’s commercial activities as well as
operational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a
normal consequence of any business undertaking.

The Assets and Liabilities Committee is responsible for the
management of capital and establishment of, and compliance
with, policies relating to balance sheet management, including
management of liquidity, capital adequacy and structural foreign
exchange and interest rate exposure and tax exposure.

Thebank’s riskgovernance structureis such that the responsibility
for maintaining risk within the banks risk blanket is cascaded
down from the Board to the appropriate functional, client
business, senior management and committees. Information
regarding material risk issues and compliance with policies and
standards is communicated through the business, functional,
senior management and committees.

iii. Risk Management Policy Guidelines

Risk Management Policy Guidelines 2016 has been designed
in compliance to the guidelines issued by Nepal Rastra Bank on
Risk management in order to provide a framework for ensuring
systematic Risk Management function in Rastriya Banijya Bank.
“Risk Management Policy Guidelines, 2016” has played a vital
role in laying a foundation towards identification, measurement,
monitoring and control of all the major risks that the bank is
exposed. Besides, the bank aims that these policy guidelines will
go a long way in embedding a “calculated risk taking culture” in
the organization. “Risk Management Policy Guidelines, 2016”
of the bank has provided a guidance for designing the Risk
Management Process of Rastriya Banijya Bank and the same
has included policies, standards, methodologies, procedures
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and limits for the implementation of the process. The policy is in
harmony with the ICAAP Policy of the bank and the same has set a
foundation stone for the adoption of the advanced approaches to
identification, measurement, monitoring and control of risks that
the bank is exposed.

iv. Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Bank has
appropriate internal control framework in place that supports
the achievement of its strategies and objectives. The various
functions of the Bank should also be looked upon with a view
to ensure that there is a proper control mechanism is in place to
support its expansion and growth which enables it to maximize
profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which
can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience to
external events.

The Board has set policies and procedures for risk identification,
risk measurement, risk monitoring and risk control in line with
the Nepal Rastra Bank’s Unified Directives, 2078 and the same
has effectively been implemented.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system is
reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees, Management
and Internal Audit department.

The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/standards
and the effectiveness of internal control structures across the
Bank through regular audit, special audit, information system
audit, Off Site review and AML/CFT/KYC audit. The audits
observations are reported to the Chief Executive Officer and
Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective measures.
Internal Audit reports are periodically forwarded to the Audit
Committee for review and the committee issues appropriate
corrective action in accordance with the issue involved to the
respective department, provincial offices or branches.

v. Risk Identification and its mitigation

m Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability of loss associated with the failure of
counterparty to meet its contractual obligations to pay the Bank
in accordance with agreed terms. The Credit Risk Monitoring and
Reporting Framework/ have been prepared in order to mitigate/
minimize the credit risk of the Bank through appropriate monitoring
and reporting framework established within the Bank.

Bank has implemented various System/ Policies/ Procedures/

Guidelines for the effective management of Credit Risk. For

the purpose of assessment of credit risk of the bank, following

activities were carried out:

*  Current system/policies/procedures/guidelines formulated
were gone through;

* Actual Exposure of credit limit product wise, segment

1%
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wise were checked against Risk Appetite, tolerance limit
mentioned in Respective Product Paper Guidelines, Credit
Policy and Risk Management Policy Guidelines;

* Review of various reports prepared by the Departments such
as Monitoring Report, Loan Overdue Report, Loan Report,
Nepal Rastra Bank reports and risk assessment reports.

Credit Risk Management is ultimately the responsibility of the
Board of Directors hence, overall strategy as well as significant
policies has to be reviewed by the board regularly. Further,
Senior Management is responsible for implementing the bank’s
credit risk management strategies and policies and ensuring that
procedures are put in place to manage and control credit risk and
the quality of credit portfolio in accordance with these policies.

Bank has following framework in place for the management of

credit risk:

* Board of Directors of the Bank has approved amendment in
Credit Policy and Credit Risk Management Policy of the bank.

* The Board of Directors has approved various product papers
which need to be approved by the Board of Directors as per
regulatory requirement.

* The Board Level Risk Management Committee reviews
various credit risks reported by the risk management
department and recommends the Board for appropriate
policy level action.

* Risk Management Department, supervised by Department
head has been formed for the overall Risk Management
function of the Bank.

e  Loan Recovery Department directly manages accounts with
sustained deterioration along with all collection related activities.

Following major policies and procedural guidelines are
implemented to manage the Credit Risk of the bank.
e Credit Manual

* Agriculture Credit Manual

e Deprived Sector Loan Manual

* Risk Management Policy Guidelines

* Loan Recovery Manual

e Collateral Security Valuation Manual

* Loan Write off Bylaw

*  Credit Related Product Papers

* Various Credit related circulars

Further, the Bank has following Departments in place which are
responsible for performing prescribed activities related to credit.
Primary responsibility for management of credit risk lies with the
respective departments. These Departments are also responsible
to perform the activities as per existing internal control system
established in line with the prescribed policies, guidelines and
procedures for management of credit risk.
* Corporate and SME Department
* Infrastructure Banking Department
* Agriculture and Social Banking Department

Loan Recovery and Credit Monitoring Department
* Consumer Banking Department
e (Credit Administration Department
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All the above departments report to the Deputy Executive
Officer directly as prescribed by the Organizational Structure
of the Bank developed by the Board of Directors except in case
of Risk Management Department which reports to the Risk
Management Committee through Department Head.

i. Maximum exposure to credit risk

The bank has financial assets consisting mainly of loans &
advances and investments at amortized cost. In these cases, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of the
related financial assets.

ii. Credit quality of neither past due nor impaired nor past
due or impaired

The table below shows the credit quality by class of asset for
all financial assets exposed to credit risk, based on the Bank'’s
internal credit rating system.

H Operational Risk

Operational Risk is defined as the risk of potential loss resulting
from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems
or from the impact of external events, including legal risks for
the bank. Operational Risk is pervasive across all the functions
of the Bank and is influenced by all resources, including human
resource, systems and procedural designs, deployed by the
Bank to carry out those functions. Operational Risk can be
caused by both internal and external sources such as fraud,
business interruptions, system failures, damage to physical
infrastructure, failure in execution and service delivery, inherent

Neither past due

Particulars 5 .
nor impaired

Past due less
90 days
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risks in products, customers, inadequacy in procedures or flawed
process designs, and business practices. The risk can occur in any
business function or the business supporting functions.

The Bank is committed to be governed with a strong culture of
risk management and ethical business practices and therefore
to averse it from potentially damaging operational risk events
and is in a sound position to deal effectively with those events
that do occur. The actions of the board and senior management,
and policies, processes and systems provide the foundation for a
sound risk management culture.

Bank seek to minimize our exposure to operational risk by use
of key control standards, key control self-assessments and key
risk indicators as toolkits to identify, assess, monitor and control
operational risk events through timely acknowledgement of
emerging threats and underlying vulnerabilities. The Bank shall
also ensure highest level of governance standards and adherence
to Code of Conduct and robust compliance to all regulatory as
well as the Bank'’s internal policy, procedures and guidelines.

Effective policies, procedural guidelines and standard operating
procedure are crucial tools for sound risk management. Therefore,
adequacy and effectiveness of the policies and procedures
and their effective implementation is closely monitored by the
department to ensure that they have continuing relevance in
line with regulatory requirement and adjusts to dynamic risk
environment of the industry.

Past due More
than 180 days

Past due 91
to 180 days

Individually
impaired

Financial Assets

Assets carried at Amortized Cost

Cash and cash equivalent 7,880,097,708 - - - 7,880,097,708
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 16,423,317,544 - - - 16,423,317,544
Placement with Bank and Financial - - - - -
Institutions

Loans and advances 212,227,488,178  13,031,672,353 505,890,446 952,497,003 226,717,547,980
Investment securities 59,491,782,100 59,491,782,100
Other Assets 1,880,042,693 1,880,042,693
Fair Value through Profit and

Loss (FVTPL)

Derivative financial instruments. - - - - - -
Fair Value through Other

Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Investment securities 5,885,334,306 - - - - 5,885,334,306
Investment in subsidiaries 200,000,000 - - - - 200,000,000
Investment in associates 206,111,100 206,111,100
Total 304,194,173,629 13,031,672,353 505,890,446 952,497,003 - 318,684,233,431
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Following major existing Policies/ guiding documents having
close bearing with management of operation risk has been
reviewed/approved and implemented:

*  Financial Administration By-laws

e Trade Finance Manual

* Budget Manual

* Employee by-laws

*  CARD and ATM Operational Manual

* E-Banking Operational Manual

*  Pay bill Operational Manual

*  Branch Operational Manual

* ICT Policy and Guidelines

*  AML/ CFT Policy and Procedures

* ICAAP Policy

*  Waste Paper Disposal Policy

* Risk Management Policy Guidelines

MARKET RISK & LIQUIDITY RISK

Market risk refers to the risk to a bank resulting from movements in
market prices, in particular, changes in interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, and equity and commaodity prices. Market risk is defined as the risk
of losses in on and off-balance sheet positions arising from movements
in market prices. The risks subject to this requirement are:

a. Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

b. Currency Risk: Foreign exchange risk is the potential for
the Bank to experience volatility in the value of its assets,
liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses
as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its
assets and liabilities and its reporting currency.

c. Equity Price Risk: Equity price risk is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
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fluctuate because of changes in equity prices (other than
those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all
similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The major sources of market risk for the bank are interest rate risk,
exchange rate risk and liquidity risk. Bank has an Assets Liability
Committee which meets regularly to identify and manage these
risks as per the laid down policies and procedures. Treasury Back
Office (TBO) regularly assess and monitor the treasury position and
transaction of the Bank. TBO analyzed the net open position on a
daily basis to mitigate all possible risk associated to foreign currency.
ALCO on regular interval evaluates the sensitivity of asset and liability
towards interest rate. Further interest sensitivity analysis is conducted
to act as a tool to mitigate possible interest rate risk.

In order to evaluate the liquidity position, Bank has been
calculating and evaluating liquidity ratio on daily basis. Major
inflows/outflows having impact on the liquidity is monitored
on daily basis. Transactions which have material impact on
the liquidity position of the Bank are communicated without
any delay to relevant department that manages fund. Sources
and utilization of the fund are monitored on daily basis. Also
regulatory limit of credit deposit position is also monitored and
circulated to all concerned units on daily basis.

The following table depicts the maturity profile of the investment
portfolio on an undiscounted cash flow basis which is designed
and managed to meet the required level of liquidity as and when
liquidity outgo arises taking into consideration the time horizon
of the financial liabilities of the business.

Particulars Less than3 month | 3 to 6 months 6to 1year More than 1 year Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 7,880,097,708 - - - 7,880,097,708
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 16,423,317,544 - - - 16,423,317,544
Placement with Bank and Financial - - - - -
Institutions

Derivative financial instruments. - - - - -
Other trading assets - - - - -
Loans and advances 225,259,160,531 505,890,446 309,069,767 643,427,236 226,717,547,980
Investment Securities 24,464,138,406 8,436,011,000 9,550,292,000 22,926,675,000 65,377,116,406
Investment in subsidiaries - - 200,000,000 200,000,000
Investment in associates - - 206,111,100 206,111,100
Other assets 10,218,725,611 - - 3,219,887,977 13,438,613,588
Total 284,245,439,800 8,941,901,446 9,859,361,767 27,196,101,312 330,242,804,326
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4,748,840,822 - - - 4,748,840,822
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 24,060,736,189 - - - 24,060,736,189
Derivative financial instruments - - - - -
Deposits from customers 35,080,614,064 17,030,068,000 36,613,204,000 169,420,411,000 258,144,297,064
Borrowing - - - 60,000,000 60,000,000
Other liabilities 5,185,856,863 - - 2,757,012,241 7,942,869,104
Debt securities issued - - - 2,607,123,287 2,607,123,287
Total 69,076,047,938 17,030,068,000 36,613,204,000 174,844,546,528 297,563,866,466

1=z
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5.2 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

5.2.1 Qualitative disclosures

The Bank has formulated and implemented the “Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process 2015” (ICAAP Policy
2015) which has been approved by the Board of Directors.
The policy is a system of sound, effective, and complete
strategies and processes that allow the Bank to assess and
maintain, ongoing basis, the amounts, types and distribution
of internal capital that the Bank considers adequate to cover
the nature and level of risk to which the Bank is or might be
exposed to.

The Bank maintains an actively managed capital base to
cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the
capital adequacy requirements of the Nepal Rastra Bank. The
adequacy of the Bank’s capital is monitored using, among
other measures, the rules and ratios established by the Basel
Committee and adopted by the Nepal Rastra Bank.

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to
maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and
sustain the future development of the business.

5.2.2 Quantitative disclosures
a) Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

i. Capital Adequacy Ratio
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The Bank has complied with Capital Adequacy requirement of
the Nepal Rastra Bank.

The Bank’s regulatory capital consists of the following elements

Tier 1 Capital or Core Capital, which includes Paid up Capital,
Statutory General Reserves, Retained Earnings, other free
reserves and deductions of Deferred Tax Assets, Investment in
equity of institutions with financial interests

Tier 2 Capital or Supplementary Capital, which includes
General Loan Loss Provision, Exchange Equalization Reserves,
Subordinated Term Debt, Investment Adjustment Reserve, Other
Reserve

Regulatory minimum paid up capital

Commercial banks were required by the Monetary Policy
2015/16 to attain a stipulated minimum paid up capital of NPR
8 billion by mid-July 2017. As on the reporting date, the Bank’s
paid up capital stood at NPR 13.94 billion (Previous Year 9.185
billion) and is in compliance with the requirement.

S.N | Particulars FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
(A) Tier 1 Capital [Core Capital (CET 1+AT1)] 28,062,067,748 23,404,624,274
a Paid up Equity Share Capital 14,940,359,099 10,184,891,614
b Equity Share Premium - -
C Proposed Bonus Equity Shares - -
d Statutory General Reserves 10,598,497,488 9,740,748,892
e Retained Earnings 1,863,442,019 26,046,945
f Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss) - 3,423,628,297
g Capital Redemption Reserves - -
h Capital Adjustment Reserves( Capital Reserve Fund created as 481,195,653 481,195,653

per direction of finance ministry in connection with condition

related to loan waiver and reimbursement as per Small and

Cottage Industries Loan Waiver Guidelines 2065)
i Debenture Redemption Reserve 625,000,000
j Dividend Equalization Reserves - -
k Bargain Purchase Gain -
| Other free Reserves 5,500,000 5,500,000
m Less: Goodwill - -
n Less: Intangible Assets 52,408,411 57,869,027
o Less: Fictitious Assets - -
p Less: Investment in equity of Licensed Financial Institutions - -
q Less:Investment in equity of institutions with Financial Interests 351,111,100 351,111,100

19%
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S.N | Particulars FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
r Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of the limits 48,407,000 48,407,000
s Less: Investments arising out of Underwriting Commitments - -
t Less: Reciprocal crossholdings - -
u Less: Purchase of Land and Buildings in excess of limit and - -
unutilized
v Less: Cash Flow Hedge - -
w Less: Defined Benefit Pension Assets - -
X Less: Unrecognized Defined Benefit Pension Liabilities - -
y Less: Negative Balances of reserve accounts -
z Less: Other Deductions - -
Adjustment under Pillar I -
a Less: Shortfall in Provision (6.4a 1) -
b Less: Loans and Facilities extended to related parties and -
restricted lending (6.4a 2)
Additional Tier 1 (AT1) -
a Perpetual Non-cumulative Preference Share Capital -
b Perpetual Debt Instruments -
C Stock Premium -
(B) SUPPLEMENTARY CAPITAL (TIER ) 6,000,468,423 5,011,823,950
a Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Shares - -
b Sub-ordinated Term Debt 2,000,000,000 2,500,000,000
c Hybrid Capital Instruments - -
d Stock Premium - -
e General Loan Loss Provision 3,759,995,553 2,312,208,379
f Exchange Equalization Reserve 102,331,730 100,066,324
g Investment Adjustment Reserve 15,845,700 15,845,700
h Asset Revaluation Reserve 77,183,784 38,591,892
i Other Reserves 45,111,656 45,111,656
TOTAL CAPITAL FUND (TIER I AND TIER 1l) 34,062,536,171 28,416,448,224
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS 2078-79 2077-78
Core Capital 10.95% 11.09%
Supplementary Capital 2.34% 2.37%
Total Qualifying Capital 13.29% 13.46%

4r0
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ii. Summary of Bank’s internal approach to assess the
adequacy of capital to support current and future
activities, if applicable

To ensure that the Bank’s capital adequacy commensurate
to demand of the Bank’s capital required by the business
planning, the Management and the Board prudently and
proactively engage on ongoing process of capital and risk
assessment, stress testing and scenarios testing, monitoring
and reporting as per the ICAAP 2015.

The Bank follows “Stress Testing Guidelines 2012" issued by
Nepal Rastra Bank in order to assess of the vulnerability of
the Bank under various stress situations typically, application
of “what if” scenarios, especially in the problematic
identification of low frequency but high severity events
and identifying expected and unexpected losses. It focuses
on capturing the impact of large, but still plausible events
and understanding the overall risk profile in a coherent
and consistent framework, including impact analysis on
earnings, solvency and liquidity.

b) Risk Exposures
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A formal monitoring and reporting mechanism have been
established to provide the senior management necessary
information on the risk profile, trends, and the capital
requirements as per ICAAP 2015 and Stress Testing Guidelines.
Such reports are being prepared on a monthly and quarterly
basis and circulated to relevant business units/departments,
Risk Management and Credit Department, and tabled in
Assets Liability Committee (ALCO) meeting. Further quarterly
reports are presented to the Risk Management Committee
and the Board for review and discussions.

iii. Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of
all capital instruments, especially in case of subordinated
term debts including hybrid capital instruments

Ordinary share capital: The Bank has only one class of equity
shares having a par value of Rs.100 per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation of the Bank, holder of equity shares will be entitled
to receive remaining assets of the Bank after distribution of
preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

i. Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk

Particulars FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES

Risk Weighted Exposures for Credit Risk 227,878,518,389 184,976,670,310
Risk Weighted Exposures for Operational Risk 14,601,247,625 14,839,089,842
Risk Weighted Exposures for Market Risk 630,514,022 351,609,891
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (Before Banks adjustment of Pillar II) 243,110,280,036 200,167,370,042
Adjustment under Pillar Il

Add: ALM Policies and Practices are not satisfactory, add 1 % of net interestincome - -
to RWE

Add: .....% total Deposit RWE due to insufficient Liquid Assets (6.4a 6) - -
Add: 4% of Gross total Income of Previous Financial Year for Inadequate Operational 3,535,646,400 2,917,415,300
Risk Management Process(6.4a 7)

Add: 4 % of the total Risk Weighted Exposures for unsatisfactory overall risk 9,724,411,201 8,006,694,802
management policies and procedures (6.4a 9)

Add: 3% of the total RWE due to non-compliance to disclosure requirement (6.4a 10) - -
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Banks adjustment of Pillar II) 256,370,337,637 211,091,480,144
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Market Risk Weighted Exposure

Currency Open Position (FCY) Exchange Rate Open Position (NPR) Relevant Open Position
1 INR 197,170,393 1.60 315,472,628 315,472,628
2 usD 6,242,658 127.60 796,563,131 796,563,131
3 GBP 776,286 148.96 115,635,621 115,635,621
4 EUR 725,618 127.75 92,697,670 92,697,670
5 THB 273,120 348 950,458 950,458
6 CHF 5,850 129.89 759,857 759,857
7 AUD 168,561 86.24 14,536,733 14,536,733
8 CAD 16,440 97.52 1,603,229 1,603,229
9 SGD 9,413 90.57 852,535 852,535
10 JPY 19,528,551 0.92 17,907,681 17,907,681
11 HKD 59,330 16.24 963,519 963,519
12 DKK 126,100 17.21 2,170,181 2,170,181
13 SEK - - - -
14 SAR 441,564 33.12 14,624,600 14,624,600
15 QAR 142,589 33.84 4,825,212 4,825,212
16 AED 74,270 33.84 2,513,297 2,513,297
17 MYR 106,707 28.08 2,996,333 2,996,333
18 KRW 2,852,000 0.10 276,074 276,074
19 CNY 28,764 18.36 528,107 528,107
20 KWD 2,831 413.48 1,170,562 1,170,562
21 BHD 658 337.61 222,147 222,147
(a) Total Open Position 1,387,269,574 1,387,269,574
(b) Fixed Percentage 5%
(c) Capital Charge for Market Risk (=axb) 69,363,479
(d) Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times 9.09
(e) Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure (=cxd) 630,514,022

c) Amount of NPAs (Both Gross and Net)

Particulars

Gross NPAs Net NPAs Gross NPAs Net NPAs
Restructured / Reschedule Loans 708,098,872 619,586,513 79,515,824 69,576,346
Sub Standard Loans 666,314,600 505,890,446 1,690,359,549 1,272,253,829
Doubtful Loans 586,186,326 309,069,767 960,628,109 492,039,372
Loss 2,840,322,642 23,840,723 3,593,839,523 -
Total NPAs 4,800,922,440 1,458,387,449 6,324,343,005 1,833,869,547
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5.3 CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial assets

Assets

99 &t T TRTaeT 005 /09

As at 32 Ashadh 2079 As at 31 Ashadh 2078

Assets carried at Amortised Cost

Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 7,880,097,708 7,880,097,708 15,735,157,236 15,735,157,236

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 16,423,317,544 16,423,317,544 20,128,499,606 20,128,499,606

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 43 - - - -

Loan and advances to B/Fls 4.6 16,533,783,954 16,533,783,954 15,434,074,320 15,434,074,320

Loans and advances to customers 4.7 210,183,764,026 210,183,764,026 177,870,982,096 177,870,982,096

Investment securities 4.8 59,491,782,100 59,491,782,100 64,033,685,410 64,033,685,410

Other Assets 1,880,042,693 1,880,042,693 474,430,170 474,430,170
312,392,788,025 312,392,788,025 293,676,828,838 293,676,828,838

Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) -

Derivative financial instruments. 44 - - - -

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income - -

(FVTOCI)

Investment securities 4.8 5,885,334,306 5,885,334,306 7,027,539,393 7,027,539,393

Investment in subsidiaries 4.10 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000

6,085,334,306 6,085,334,306 7,227,539,393 7,227,539,393

Liabilities -

Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost -

Due to Bank and Financial Institution 417 4,748,840,822 4,748,840,822 2,369,240,000 2,369,240,000

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 24,060,736,189 24,060,736,189 3,794,077,090 3,794,077,090

Deposits from customers 4.20 258,144,297,064 258,144,297,064 263,836,765,847 263,836,765,847

Borrowing 4.21 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000

Other liabilities 4.23 4,009,629,454 4,009,629,454 7,450,911,297 7,450,911,297

Debt securities issued 4.24 2,607,123,287 2,607,123,287 2,517,465,753 2,517,465,753
293,630,626,816 293,630,626,816  280,028,459,987 280,028,459,987

5.4 FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars Fair value Hierarchy (Level) As at 32 Ashadh 2079 As at 32 Asadh 2078

Fair Value through profit and loss

Financial Assets

Forward exchange Contract held for trading - -

Financial Liabilities

Forward exchange Contract held for trading - -

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Financial assets

Investment securities at OCI

- Quoted equity securities(ordinary) 1 703,900,856 3,038,651,501

Promoter Shares 3 2,959,917,099 2,126,679,291

Mutual Fund 1 966,066,571 1,069,742,517

- Unquoted equity securities 3 1,255,449,780 792,466,084

Total 5,885,334,306 7,027,539,393

1R
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Financial Instruments held at amortised cost

Particular

As at 32 Ashadh 2079
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As at 32 Asadh 2078

Fair value Hierarchy (Level)

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalent 1 7,880,097,708 15,735,157,236
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 1 16,423,317,544 20,128,499,606
Debt securities 3 926,635,801 415,076,591
Government bonds 3 25,591,715,249 24,740,517,661
Government treasury bills 3 32,973,431,050 38,878,091,158
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds 3 - -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 3 16,533,783,954 15,434,074,320
Loans and advances to customers 3 210,183,764,026 177,870,982,096
Other Assets 3 1,880,042,693 474,430,170
Total 312,392,788,025 293,676,828,838
Financial liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 3 4,748,840,822 2,369,240,000
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 3 24,060,736,189 3,794,077,090
Deposits from customers 3 258,144,297,064 263,836,765,847
Borrowing 3 60,000,000 60,000,000
Other liabilities 3 7,247,149,648 7,450,911,297
Debt securities issued 3 2,607,123,287 2,517,465,753
Subordinated Liabilities 3 - -

Total

296,868,147,010

280,028,459,987

Valuation Techniques

Nature of Investment Valuation Approach Basis of Valuation

Equity — Quoted: Public Share Market Based Prevailing Market Price as on Asadh end 2079
Equity — Quoted: Promoter Share (With trading data)  Market Based Prevailing Market Price as on Asadh end 2079
Equity — Quoted: Promoter Share (With no Market Based As a percentage of price of promoter share over ordinary shares of

trading data)

similar banks traded in the market

Equity - Unquoted Market and Income Based

Simple Average of NAV and CEM

Mutual Fund - Quoted (With trading data) Market Based

Prevailing Market Price as on Asadh end 2079

Mutual Fund - Quoted (Without trading data) Market Based

Net Asset Value (NAV) published by the fund as on Asadh end 2079

Mutual Fund - Unquoted Asset Based

Net Asset Value (NAV) published by the fund as on Asadh end 2079

Subsidiaries-Equity Shares Cost Price

Subsidiaries- Preference Shares Market and Income Based

Simple Average of value determined as per NAV and CEM

Associates Asset Based

Value Determined as per Equity Method

5.5 SEGMENT ANALYSIS

5.5.1 General Information

The Bank’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS
8, Operating Segments. Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to

the bank’s management committee, which is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments.

Rz
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5.5.3 Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Revenue

Total revenue for reportable segments

Amount (Rs.)

23,161,005,998

Other revenues

Elimination of intersegment revenues

Entity’s revenues

23,161,005,998

Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segment

| Amount (Rs.)

Other profit or loss

Elimination of intersegment profits

Unallocated amount

Profit before income tax

Assets | Amount (Rs.)
Total assets for reportable segments 330,242,804,326
Unallocated amounts -
Entity’s assets 330,242,804,326

Liabilities | Amount (Rs.)
Total liabilities for reportable segments 297,563,866,466
Other liabilities -
Unallocated liabilities -
Entity’s liabilities 297,563,866,466

5.5.4 Information about major customers
The bank does not have any major customers which accounts for
more than 10% of entity’s revenue.

5.6 Share Options and Share based Payment

The Bank do not have a policy for share options to its employees.
Similarly, during the year the Bank has not made any payments or
settlements by issuing new shares to its employees.

5.7 Contingent Liabilities and Commitment
Details of contingent liabilities and commitments are given in
note 4.28.

5.7.1 Income Tax Liability

The Bank has received reassessment orders for the financial years
2059/60 to 2073/74 from Large Taxpayers’' Office (LTO).

O

o

With respect to appeals filed by bank to IRD for FY 2065/66 to
2071/72, IRD has passed orders on 2075/11/30. The Bank has
further appealed to Revenue Tribunal on 2076/01/30 against
those assessment orders passed by IRD. Revenue Tribunal had
already passed orders in appeals filed by bank for FY 2059/60
to 2064/65. The bank has further appealed to Supreme Court of
Nepal against certain aspects in the orders of Revenue Tribunal.

Bank has not made provisions against these additional demands
and disclosed as contingent liabilities under Note 4.28 of
Financial Statements.

The Bank has filed tax returns to the LTO up to the financial year
2077-78 under self-assessment procedures.
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Tax Liability determined by Tax deductible determined by

Financial year

Case pending at Net Tax Payable

Tax Office the Revenue Tribunal
FY 2059/60 Supreme Court 40,154,866 - 40,154,866
FY 2060/61 Supreme Court 409,489,278 390,198,432 19,290,846
FY 2061/62 Supreme Court 821,594,031 759,571,388 62,022,643
FY 2062/63 Supreme Court 221,515,009 214,224,264 7,290,746
FY 2063/64 Supreme Court 426,583,383 338,535,663 88,047,720
FY 2064/65 Supreme Court 492,997,664 428,621,163 64,376,501
FY 2065/66 Revenue Tribunal 537,808,899 478,073,854 59,735,045
FY 2066/67 Revenue Tribunal 682,662,120 590,856,483 91,805,637
FY 2067/68 Revenue Tribunal 311,560,379 233,182,946 78,377,433
FY 2068/69 Revenue Tribunal 523,483,701 398,043,925 125,439,776
FY 2069/70 Revenue Tribunal 649,453,255 546,836,153 102,617,102
FY 2070/71 Revenue Tribunal 385,783,898 - 385,783,898
FY 2071/72 Revenue Tribunal 737,438,854 335,089,776 402,349,078
FY 2072/73 Administrative Review 553,695,713 - 553,695,713
FY 2073/74 Administrative Review 137,477,930 - 137,477,930
Total 6,931,698,979 4,713,234,047 2,218,464,932

5.7.2 Status of legal cases filed in Debt Recovery Tribunal
for loan recovery

During FY 2078-79 Bank has not filed any case at Debt Recovery
Tribunal. The bank had filed a total of 905 cases on Debt Recovery
Tribunal from FY 2060/61 to 2078/79 for recovery of amount Rs.
13,341,388,000, which comprises, loan of Rs 3,286,608,000 and
interest of Rs 10,054,780,000. Out of the total litigations initiated,
796 cases were settled amounting Rs. 9,469,662,000 which includes
principal of Rs 2,386,476,000 and interest of Rs 7,083,186,000. 67
Cases were decided with principal of Rs 245,376,000 and interest
of amount Rs 777,659,000 and 5 legal cases are still in process
amounting Rs 696,343,248.55. Decision of DRT on 2 cases were
not in favor of the bank amounting Rs 73,592,329 and one case
was withdrawn during the year. Also in case of 34 cases property
has been auctioned.

5.7.3 Status of legal cases filed in other forum

During F/Y 2078-2079, Departmental action was initiated against
7 employees and one employee was suspended from their job
on account of a banking offense & punishment. Clarification was
sought from one employee. Further, departmental action was
concluded against 10 employees.

In FY 2078/79, 104 cases were under process at various forums,
out of which, 52 cases were newly registered in FY 2078/79. Final
Decisions have been received on 12 cases till 32nd Ashadh 2079.

5.8 Related Party Disclosures
The Bank identifies the following as the related parties under the
requirements of NAS 24,

Name Relationship Remarks
RBB Merchant Banking Company Limited Subsidiary
Everest Foods Limited (w.e.f 1 May 2018) Subsidiary Defunct company
Himal Cement Company (w.e.f 1 May 2018) Associate Defunct company
Rastra Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. Associate
Butwal Suti Dhago Udhyog Associate
Nepal Digital Payment Co. Ltd. Associate

5.8.1 Board Member Allowances and Facilities

The Board of Directors have been paid meeting fees of NPR 2,004,000 during the fiscal year. The 73 (2485th to 2557th) Board Meetings
and 51 Board level sub committees meeting conducted during the fiscal year 2078/79.

The Chairperson and other members of the Board are paid NPR 4,000 per meeting respectively for Board and Board Level Committees meeting.

Meeting fees paid to the directors are as follows:
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Name of the Director Position Meeting Allowance
Ramsharan Pudasaini Chairman 80,000
Balaram Pathak Chairman 212,000
Janak Kumar Baral Director 296,000
Rajan Bahadur Poudel Director 380,000
Madhab Prasad Dahal Director 256,000
Romila Dhakal Upreti Director 372,000
Jhakka Prasad Acharya Director 40,000
Kedarnath Sharma Director 196,000
Shambhu Prasad Marasini Director 36,000
Dilip Kumar Dhungana Director 68,000
Sushil Ghimire Director 68,000
Total 2,004,000

In addition to the above meeting allowances, the Board Members have been provided with a monthly allowance of NPR 2,000 for
newspapers, NPR 2,500 for telephone and for those directors who are not using transportation facility from the Bank are provided with
amount equivalent to 20 liters of fuel.

5.8.2 Amount Paid to Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors have appointed Mr. Kiran Kumar Shrestha as Chief Executive Officer of the Bank with effect from 2076/12/29 for
the period of 4 years. CEO has been paid salary and allowance of NPR. 6,604,191 during the FY 2078/79. CEO has been reimbursed with
the communication expense and has been provided vehicle facility for official purpose.

The Salary and benefits paid to the CEO are as follow:

_ Basic Salary Provident Fund Bonus & Welfare m Total Payment

Kiran Kumar Shrestha 3,120,000 312,000 2,171,000 985,591 15,600 6,604,191

5.8.3 Compensation Details for Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel includes members of Management Committee of the Bank and includes the following members;

Fama o

Kiran Kumar Shrestha, Chief Executive Officer Chairman
Devendra Raman Khanal, Deputy Chief Executive Officer Member
Sarswati Adhikari, Deputy Chief Executive Officer Member
Debesh Prasad Lohani, Deputy Executive Officer Member
Bimal Dangol, Deputy Executive Officer Member
Pawan Regmi, Deputy Executive Officer Member
Vinaya Raman Paudel, Deputy Executive Officer Member
Durga Kumari Kandel, Deputy Executive Officer Member
Hemraj Kharel, Member Secretary Member Secretary

The compensation paid to the members of management committee other than the Chief Executive Officer has been shown in table below

Management Committee Short Term Employee Benefits Defined Retirement Benefits —_
members Salary and allowances m Provident Fund | Welfare fund | Medical Fund

Deputy CEO, Level 12 2 3,220,849 464,668 163,818 224,120 277,382 4,350,837
Deputy Executive Officer, Level 11 5 8,470,034 408,066 507,100 662,326 10,047,526
Member Secretary 1 1,323,087 176,915 71,733 91,760 121,123 1,784,618
Total 13,013,970 641,583 643,616 822,980 1,060,831 16,182,981
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Key Management Personnel are also provided with Staff Loan, vehicle facility, communication and other allowances as per the Staff Byelaws.
KMPs are also eligible for Pension and Gratuity, Compensated Leave Absence and Endowment policy as per the Staff Byelaws. Share based

payments are not made to any of the Key Management Personnel.

5.8.4 Transaction with Subsidiary

Particulars

Transaction during the year

For the year ended 32 Ashadh 2079

For the year ended 31 Ashadh 2078

Interest paid to subsidiaries 233,260 70,07,506
Fees and commission expense 98,357 2,56,247
Office Administration Expense 1,315,846 44,55,525
Balance outstanding at year end

Share capital 200,000,000 200,000,000
Deposit with the Bank 29,203,440 25,384,861

Borrowings

The subsidiary has paid dividend amounting to Rs. 20,000,000 during the FY 2078-79. The intra-group related figures have been

excluded for presentation of the financial statement of the Group.

5.8.5 Transaction with Associate

The Bank holds 21.15% shares in Rastra Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya
Sanstha Ltd, and 37.78 % share in Nepal Digital Payment Systems
Co. Ltd. Himal Cement Company (26.74% of shares) and Butwal
Suti Dhago Udhyog (20% of shares) are also associate company
of the Bank. There were no transactions with the associates
during the financial year.

The bank has provided deprived sector loan amounting to Rs.
220 million in FY 2077-78 and additional 60 million in FY 2078-
79 to Rastra Utthan Laghubittiya Sanstha Limited. The institution
has utilized full limit as on 2079 Ashadh end. Loan has been
provided to the institution as per the Bank’s Credit Manual and
Nepal Rastra Bank’s Unified Directives, 2078 and is arm’s length
transaction.

5.9 Additional Disclosures of non-consolidated entities

The Bank has 2 subsidiaries as at 32nd Ashadh 2079, out of
which one subsidiary i.e. RBB Merchant Banking Limited, which
is consolidated for the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079.

Everest Food Limited, is a subsidiary of the Bank was engaged in
processing of frozen meat. It is not in operation for a long period.
Everest Food Limited has not been considered for Consolidation.

Except above, there are no such entities which are required to be
consolidated but not done during the year.

5.10 Events after reporting date

The Bank monitors and assesses events that may have potential
impact to qualify as adjusting and or non-adjusting events after
the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted
in the books with additional disclosures and non-adjusting
material events are disclosed in the notes with possible financial
impact, to the extent ascertainable.

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to
32nd Ashadh 2079 till the signing of this financial statement on
2079/08/29.

5.11 Non-Banking Assets

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups
(including both the assets and liabilities of the disposal groups)
are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell when: (i) their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale;
(ii) they are FVTOCI in their present condition; and (iii) their sale
is highly probable. Non-Banking Assets (NBA) has been shown
under investment property. It has been recognized at lower of
fair value or amount due at the time of assumption of NBA.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale,
the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets and liabilities in a
disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable
accounting policies described above.
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Name of Borrower Date of assuming NBA | As at 32 Ashadh 2079 As at 31 Ashadh 2078
BirKirat Samuha 12/8/2006 27,317,000 27,317,000
Biki journal supplier 6/12/2005 235,000 235,000
Keshari Hardware store 6/12/2005 143,269 143,269
Surya Implex 6/12/2005 412,500 412,500
Krishna Shrestha (Staff) 2/4/1990 3,073 3,073
Yeti Creation 15/07/2004 17,716,875 17,716,875
Gopal Bahadur 15/07/1990 10,000 10,000
Sah Khadya Bhandar 12/1/2005 550,500 550,500
Kumari Hardware 19/07/2006 404,000 404,000
Krishna 16/07/2019 61,129,666 61,129,666
Jay Buddha International 9/1/2078 16,653,000 16,653,000
Manisha Milan Trade 10/06/2078 4,308,311 -
Dibya Dipika Store 31/05/2078 3,517,116 -
New Devkota General Order and Suppliers 29/11/2078 1,073,947 -
Rupa Traders 01/03/2079 44,208,257 -
Less : Impairment* (417,073)

Total 177,265,441 124,574,883

*The following properties have been impaired being in dispute and ongoing legal case.

Siraha Kumari Hardware 404,000
Nepalgunj Gopal Bahadur 10,000
Inaruwa Krishna Shrestha (Staff) 3,072.50
Total Impairment 417,072.50

5.11.1 Movement of Non-Banking Assets

Particulars FY 2078/79 FY 2077/78

Outstanding Balance as at Shrawan 1, 124,574,883 109,378,538
Add: Assets accepted during the year 53,107,631 16,653,000
Less: Assets sold during the year - (1,456,655.00)

Less: Impairment(417,073)
Outstanding Balance as at Ashadh 31, 177,265,441 124,574,883

5.12 Disclosures under NFRS 16 “Leases”

5.12.1 Lease Liabilities

Lease Liabilities under the lease agreements, are measured at the Present value of unpaid lease payments discounted using the
bank’s Incremental borrowing rate. The lease liabilities are presented in the Statement of Financial Position under the heading “Other
Liabilities”. Detailed calculation of Lease Liabilities is shown below:

Lease liability previous period end -

Initial Recognition on 1st Shrawan 2078 1,343,079,051
Lease liability (Adjusted opening) 1,343,079,051
Additions new lease contracts during FY 2078-79 57,510,548
Termination of the lease contract -
Finance cost 44,711,339
Lease payments (269,073,529)
Lease liability as at Asadh 31, 2079 1,176,227,409
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5.12.2 Right of Use Asset

Right of Use (ROU) Assets recognized under a lease agreement are measured at the amount that comprises of Initial Measurement of
Lease Liability plus lease payments made at or before the commencement date less lease incentives plus initial direct cost incurred
by lessee plus estimation of future dismantling and restoration cost if any. The ROU Assets are presented in the Statement of Financial
Position under the heading “Property and Equipment’”. Detailed Calculation of ROU Assets is shown below:

Gross ROU Asset as at 1, Shrawan 2078 -

Initial Recognition on 1st Shrawan 2078 1,343,079,051
Adjustment of Lease Equalization Account at 31st Asadh 2078 (10,706,739)
Adjusted Gross ROU Asset as at 1st Shrawan 2078 1,332,372,312
Additions- new lease contracts during the year 2078-79 57,510,548
Accumulated Depreciation upto previous year -
Depreciation for the current year (262,999,542)
ROU Asset as at Asadh 31, 2079 1,126,883,318

5.12.3 Reconciliation of operating lease commitment and lease liability

Particulars Amount

Operating Lease commitments as at 31st Ashadh, 2078 1,723,809,665
Error in lease commitment (122,904,964)
Adjusted lease commitments at 31st Asadh 2078 1,600,904,701
Excluded from lease due to early termination (82,340,584)

Previously not included in lease now included -
Excluded short term lease -
The effect of discounting using the incremental borrowing rate at Shrawan 1, 2078 (175,485,066)

Lease liability as at Shrawan 1, 2078 1,343,079,051

5.12.4 Maturity Analysis

Particulars Amount

Not later than 1 month 16,328,774
Later than 1 month and not later than 3 months 39,685,130
Later than 3 months and not later than 1 year 177,693,817
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 773,889,237
More than 5 years 308,336,569

5.13 Earnings per share
The Bank measures earning per share on the basis of the earnings attributable to the equity shareholders for the period. The number of
shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for the relevant period as required by NAS 33 Earnings per Share.

32 Ashadh 2079 31 Ashadh 2078

Profit attributable to equity shareholders (a) NPR. 4,292,821,850 3,423,628,296
Weighted average of number of equity shares used in computing Nos. 123,174,083 91,848,916
basic earnings per share (b)

Basic Earnings per share (BEPS) Rs 34.85 37.27
Weighted average of number of equity shares used in computing Nos. 140,144,262 101,848,916
Diluted Earnings per Share (b)

Diluted Earnings Per Share (DEPS) Rs 30.63 33.61

5.14 Unpaid Dividends
As at the reporting date, unpaid dividend over five years amounts to as follows.

Particulars As at 32 Ashadh 2079 As at 31 Ashadh 2078
Not collected for more than 5 years (transferred from NIDC 1,622,582 1,622,582
Development Bank Ltd.)

Not collected up to 5 years 330,216 288,448
Total 1,952,798 1,911,030
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5.15 Maturity Analysis Assets and Liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.
Trading assets and liabilities including derivatives have been classified to mature and/or be repaid within 12 months, regardless of
the actual contractual maturities of the products. With regard to loans and advances to customers, the Bank uses the same basis of
expected repayment behavior as used for estimating the EIR. Issued debt reflect the contractual coupon amortizations.

Within 12 months | fer i2months | Total |
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 7,880,097,708 - 7,880,097,708
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 16,423,317,544 - 16,423,317,544

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - -

Derivative financial instruments. - - -

Other trading assets - - -

Loan and advances to B/Fls 16,533,783,954 - 16,533,783,954
Loans and advances to customers 209,540,336,790 643,427,236 210,183,764,026
Investment securities 42,450,441,406 22,926,675,000 65,377,116,406
Current tax assets 3,636,497,060 - 3,636,497,060
Investment in subsidiaries - 200,000,000 200,000,000
Investment in associates - 206,111,100 206,111,100
Investment property - 177,265,441 177,265,441
Property and equipment - 3,167,479,565 3,167,479,565
Goodwill and Intangible assets - 52,408,411 52,408,411
Deferred tax assets - - -
Other assets 3,185,075,133 3,219,887,977 6,404,963,110
Within 12 months | fter i2months | Total |

Total Assets 299,649,549,596 30,593,254,730 330,242,804,326
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4,748,840,822 - 4,748,840,822
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 24,060,736,189 - 24,060,736,189
Derivative financial instruments - - -
Deposits from customers 88,723,886,064 169,420,411,000 258,144,297,064
Borrowing - 60,000,000 60,000,000
Current Tax Liabilities - - -
Provisions 375,716,839 - 375,716,839
Deferred tax liabilities 320,002,617 - 320,002,617
Other liabilities 4,490,137,407 2,757,012,241 7,247,149,648
Debt securities issued 2,607,123,287 - 2,607,123,287

Subordinated Liabilities - - R
Total liabilities 125,326,443,225 172,237,423,241 297,563,866,466
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As at 31 Ashadh 2078

Within 12 months

Cash and cash equivalent

15,735,157,236

15,735,157,236

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

20,128,499,606

20,128,499,606

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions

Derivative financial instruments 1,496,090 - 1,496,090
Other trading assets - - -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 15,434,074,320 - 15,434,074,320
Loans and advances to customers 103,277,002,096 74,593,980,000 177,870,982,096

Investment securities

41,897,454,409

29,163,770,393

71,061,224,802

Current tax assets

3,341,885,069

3,341,885,069

Investment in subsidiaries - 200,000,000 200,000,000
Investment in associates - 206,111,100 206,111,100
Investment property - 124,574,883 124,574,883
Property and equipment - 1,844,288,516 1,844,288,516
Goodwill and Intangible assets - 57,869,027 57,869,027

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

2,079,136,344

1,902,157,543

3,981,293,887

Total Assets 201,894,705,170 108,092,751,462 309,987,456,632
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 2,369,240,000 - 2,369,240,000
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 3,794,077,090 - 3,794,077,090
Derivative financial instruments - - -
Deposits from customers 97,350,097,479 166,486,668,368 263,836,765,847
Borrowing - 60,000,000 60,000,000
Current Tax Liabilities - - -
Provisions 436,938,500 - 436,938,500
Deferred tax liabilities 847,757,900 - 847,757,900
Other liabilities 5,857,055,668 1,593,855,630 7,450,911,297

Debt securities issued

2,517,465,753

2,517,465,753

Subordinated Liabilities

Total liabilities

113,172,632,390

168,140,523,998

281,313,156,387

5.16 Movement of loans and advances
The movement of gross loans and advances to customers and Bank and Financial Institutions excluding interest receivable and staff
loan are as follows:

Particulars Year ended 32 Ashadh 2079 Year ended 31 Ashadh 2078

Opening Balance 195,971,108,135 156,518,710,615
Add: Disbursements during the year 357,909,846,346 214,695,969,937
Less: Recovery during the year (324,353,600,000) (175,243,572,417)

Less: Write off during the year - -
Closing Balance 229,527,354,481 195,971,108,135
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5.17 Deposits
Bank’s deposit was NPR. 258,144,297,064 (Previous Year: NPR. 263,836,765,783) at the reporting date. During the current year total

deposits decreased by 2.16% or NPR. 5,692,468,783 than Previous Year.
DEPOSIT TYPE As at 32 Ashadh 2079 As at31 Ashadh 2078

A. Current Deposits 64,087,410,000 67,458,130,000 -3,370,720,000 -5.00%
C. Saving Deposits 115,687,456,989 130,643,180,000 -14,955,723,011 -11.45%
D. Fixed Deposits 62,400,051,255 48,908,300,000 13,491,751,255 27.59%
E. Call Deposit 14,475,220,000 15,241,850,000 -766,630,000 -5.03%
F. Others 1,494,158,820 1,585,305,847 -91,147,027 -5.75%
TOTAL 258,144,297,064 263,836,765,847 -5,692,468,783 -2.16%

5.18 Concentration of Deposits, Loans & Advances and Contingent Liabilities

Particulars Loans and Advances Deposits Contingent Liability

Outstanding Balance as at 31st Ashadh 2079 229,527,354,481 258,144,297,064 37,950,471,374
Highest Exposure of a Single Unit 1,720,541,943 22,457,560,000 1,246,107,968
Concentration of Exposure (Current Year) 0.75% 8.70% 3.29%

5.19 Regulatory Reserve

Regulatory Reserve is the amount allocated from retained earnings of the Bank as per the Nepal Rastra Bank Directive no. 4 for the purpose
of implementation of NFRSs and which shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares). The amount
allocated to this reserve includes, deferred tax asset, losses recognized in other comprehensive income, interest income recognized but
not received in cash and non-banking assets recognized at lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.

The movement of regulatory reserve during the fiscal year 2078/79 is presented below:

Particulars As at 32 Ashadh 2079 | As at 31 Ashadh 2078 | Net Movement Transfer to Transfer from

Recognition of investment property 117,881,518 82,842,297 35,039,221 35,039,221 -
Amortization of debt securities issued - - - - -
Deferred tax 175,186,814 - 175,186,814 175,186,814 -
Defined benefit obligation of employees - - - - -
Accrued Interest Receivable 825,068,939 822,242,038 2,826,902 2,826,902 -

Less: Interest suspense in excess of AIR - - -
Depreciation - - -

1,118,137,271 905,084,335 213,052,936 213,052,936 -
Actuarial Loss on gratuity 9,782,285,987 8,679,755,634 1,102,530,353 1,102,530,353 -
Total regulatory reserve 10,900,423,258 9,584,839,968 1,315,583,290 1,315,583,290 -
Reversal to Regulatory Reserve 1,315,583,290

Adjustment of the Interest received within 15th day from end of the Financial Year (i.e. up to 2079 Shrawan 15) has not been considered
for calculating the amount of accrued interest to be transferred to Regulatory Reserve.

Interest receivable as on 2079 Ashadh End 1,240,705,172

Less: Interest received during till 15th of Shrawan 2079 -
1,240,705,172

Less Bonus @ 5% (62,035,259)
Less: Income Tax @ 30% (353,600,974)
Net Adjustment in Regulatory Reserve 825,068,939
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Non-banking assets is added in the regulatory reserve after deducting the bonus and taxes.

Opening Non-banking assets 177,265,441
Less Bonus @ 5% (8,863,272)
Less: Income Tax @ 30% (50,520,651)
Net Adjustment in Regulatory Reserve 117,881,518

Year wise movement in various components of regulatory reserve is given below:

Interest Receivable | Short Provision on NBA | Deferred Tax Assets | Actuarial Loss Recognized

2074/75 3,797,102,667 57,270,561 1,102,284,913 4,662,691,958 9,619,350,099
2075/76 -3,358,584,152 19,079,754 713,263,083 1,160,014,631 -2,892,752,850
2076/77 824,331,582 -3,613,587 258,004,314 2,065,821,939 3,144,544,248
2077/78 440,608,059 10,105,569 -647,026,144 791,227,106 -286,301,528
2078/79 2,826,902 35,039,220 175,186,814 1,102,530,353 1,315,583,289
Total 825,068,940 117,881,517 175,186,814 9,782,285,987 10,900,423,258

5.20 DETAILS OF OTHER RESERVE

Staff training fund 99,334,266 64,683,173
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve (b) 89,104,586 72,959,694
Investment Adjustment Reserve (o) 15,845,700 15,845,700
Contingent Reserve (d) 2,500,000 2,500,000
Institutional Development fund (e) 3,000,000 3,000,000
Actuarial loss-Endowment & Gratuity (OCl) (f) (9,782,285,987) (8,679,755,634)
Special Reserve Fund (9) 45,111,656 45,111,656
Village and Cottage Industry Development Fund 0} 525,000 525,000
Debenture Redemption Reserve 0)] 625,000,000 -

(8,901,864,780) (8,475,130,412)

Detail of other reserve as per Note 4.27 is explained below:

mm Asat32Ashadh2079 | Asat31Ashadh 2078

Staff training fund 99,334,266 64,683,173
Contingent Reserve (b) 2,500,000 2,500,000
Institutional Development fund () 3,000,000 3,000,000
Total 104,834,266 70,183,173

a) Employees Training and Development Fund

Nepal Rastra Bank Unified Directive 6/078 point number 6 requires banks and financial institutions to incur expenses towards employee
training and development equivalent to at least 3% of the preceding year’s total staff salary and allowances. The actual amount
expensed during the year was NPR 14,167,550. The closing balance of employees training and development fund is 99,334,265. In the
subsequent year, balance in this fund will be reclassified to Retained Earnings and recognized as Personnel Expense in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

Opening Balance 64,683,173
Addition during the Year (3% of staff salary and allowances of FY 2077/78) 48,818,643
Less: Training Expenses for the year (14,167,550)
Closing Balance 99,334,266
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b) Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve

Directive no 6.16 requires Banks and Financial Institutions to create Corporate Social Responsibility Fund and annually appropriate
an amount equivalent to 1% of net profit into this fund. The fund is created towards covering the Bank’s expense in CSR activities in
the subsequent year. The Bank appropriates required amount to this fund for every reporting period. Whenever the appropriation is
made, in subsequent year, balance in this fund is reclassified to Retained Earning and recognized as CSR Expense in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

Corporate Social Responsibility Expense- The expenses for the period for Corporate Social Responsibility Expense is Rs 26,783,327 as
on Ashadh end 2078/79.

Particular As at 32 Ashadh 2079 As at 31 Ashadh 2078

Opening Balance 72,959,694 90,966,389
Transfer to CSR reserve during the year 42,928,219 34,236,283
Expense during the year (26,783,327) -52,242,978
Closing balance 89,104,586 72,959,694

c) Investment adjustment reserve

As required by Nepal Rastra Bank’s Unified Directives, 2078, the Bank has created Investment Adjustment Reserve (IAR) for

i. investmentin newly opened corporate body if not listed in stock exchange within three years from the date of operation or
investment being made,

ii. investment in the shares and debentures of corporate body which are not listed in the stock exchange, and if such listing is not
completed within three years from the date of investment, 100% provision of investment amount has been provided and credited
in Investment Adjustment Reserve.

Particulars | Remaks | Cost__| Amount |

Nepal Oil Corporation 1,500 Shares of Rs 100 Each Not listed more than 3 years 100,000 100,000
Nepal Stock Exchange Limited 184,089 Shares of Rs 100 Each Not listed more than 3 years 2,142,500 2,142,500
Nepal Ban Nigam 43,310 Shares of Rs. 100 Each Not listed more than 3 years 600,000 600,000
Nepal Metal Company 199,400 Shares of Rs 10 Each Not listed more than 3 years 1,994,000 1,994,000
Balaju Yantrashala Private Limited 9,452 Shares of Rs 100 Each Not listed more than 3 years 945,200 945,200
Audhogic Kshetra Byawasthapan Company 93,645 Shares of Rs 100 Each Not listed more than 3 years 9,364,000 9,364,000
Nepal Ausadhi Limited Not listed more than 3 years 700,000 700,000

700 shares of Rs. 100 each

Total Investment Adjustment Reserve 15,845,700
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d) Contingency reserve
The Bank has created contingency reserve to meet the obligations arising from various contingent events in future. There has not been
any change in this reserve during the year.

e) Institutional Development Fund
Institutional development Fund had been created with an object to meet any expenditure pertaining to development of the Bank. There
has not been any movement in this reserve during the year.

f) Actuarial loss on Retirement Benefit
The Bank has carried out the actuarial valuation of Endowment and Gratuity payable to employees. The actuarial gain/losses on such
valuation has been transferred to Other Comprehensive Income pursuant to the requirement of NAS 19 Employee Benefit.

g) Special Reserve Fund
Special Reserve Fund had been created by the erstwhile NIDC Development Bank Limited and has been carried forward by the bank
post-merger.

h) Village and Cottage Industry Development Fund
Village and Cottage Industry Development Fund has been taken over from the erstwhile NIDC Development Bank Limited by the bank
post-merger.

5.21 PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BONUS
The Bank has provided NPR 322,476,343 (Previous year NPR 257,264,737) as employee bonus computed at 5% of profit before tax.

5.22 Investment in Himal Cement Company
Investment in Himal Cement Company was made by the erstwhile NIDC Development Bank Limited. NIDC Development Bank had
investment amounting NPR 36,892,100 in Himal Cement Company Limited. Himal Cement is not in operation as at 32nd Ashadh 2079.

As per letter no 157 dated 2071/08/ 18 written by Ministry of Finance to Ministry of Industry, Ministry of Commerce and Supply and NIDC,
proposals were put up for discussion in cabinet meeting which stated that investment of NPR 100 million made by the Finance Comptroller
General Office (FCGO) should be recorded in the books of Himal Cement as Share Capital of the Company.

Total holding of the bank without considering shares of FCGO is 80.90%. The revised holding of the Bank in the shares of Himal Cement
Company if the shares of FCGO is considered shall be 26.74%. The Bank for the purpose of recording investment in Himal Cement

Company in the books of account has considered the holding at 26.74%

Also, since there is no control in the company, the Bank has not considered it as subsidiary, rather shown it as investment in associates.

Existing share held by NIDC 399,518
Total Shares before recording share of Finance Comptroller General Office (FCGO) 493,818
Percentage of holding without considering shares from Finance Comptroller General Office (FCGO) 80.90%
Total share after recording share of FCGO 1,000,000 1,493,818
Revised holding of NIDC if shares of FCGO is considered 26.74%

5.23 Provision for Long Outstanding and Unreconciled Balances:

Long Outstanding Balances which have been aged beyond one year has been shown under“Other Assets” and adequate provision has
been made for such balances. An amount of NPR 375,716,839 has been provisioned for risk of such assets during the reported period
(Previous Year: NPR 436,938,500). The detail of such balances are presented in the following table:
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Provision for Agency Balances 104,759,433 104,759,432
Provision for Debtors 75,380,031 108,033,360
Provision for Cash in Transits 1,672,924 2,623,220
Provision for other Transit Items 8,111,033 4,836,011
Provision for Draft Paid Without Notice 70,499,832 70,550,465
Provision for Overdrawn Deposits 39,337,564 43,402,084
Provision for Central Office Account (Dr. Balance) 3,561,746 4,718,324
Provision for Stationery Stock 2,818,614 3,682,524
Provision for NRB Reconciliation 4,707,096 4,707,096
Provision for Government Transaction (Old Balances) 1,459,395 1,459,395
Provision for Pension Transaction (Old Balances) 3,696,805 3,696,805
Provision for Branch OS Balance (Gulariya) 7,191,426 7,191,426
Provision for Takeover Accounts - 77,278,358
Provision for Prepaid Insurance 4,519,626 -
Provision for Dividend receivable 6,459,529 -
Provision for Prepaid Rent 10,147,113 -
Provision for Transit Expenses 12,217,597

Provision for Transit Others 19,177,076

375,716,839 436,938,500

5.24 Representative Director in other entities

The Bank has representative directors in the following companies. The representative director does not have substantive rights to direct
the relevant activities of the entity and there was no power exercised over these entities during the reporting period. Thus, the entities
are not considered for consolidation.

i)  Employee Provident Fund

ii) Neco Insurance Ltd.

iii) National Life Insurance Company Ltd.

iv) Rastriya Utthan Laghubitta Bitiya Sanstha Ltd.

v)  Gorakhali Rubber Udhyog Ltd.

vi) Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd.

vii) Himal Cement Ltd.

viii) RBB Merchant Banking Limited

ix) Nepal Ban Nigam Limited

x)  Nepal Digital Payment Co. Ltd.

5.25 Details of Associates

. . L. .. Proportion of ownership interests and voting
Name of Associates Place of incorporation and | Principal Activity rights held by the Bank

As at 31 Ashadh 2078 | Asat 32 Ashadh 2079

principal place of business

Butwal Suti Dhago Udhyog Limited Nepal Manufacturing 20.00% 20.00%
Himal Cement Company Limited Nepal Manufacturing 26.74% 80.90%
Rastra Uthhan Laghubitta Sanstha Nepal Microfinance 21.15% 21.15%
Nepal Digital Payment Co. Ltd. Nepal Digital Payment 37.78% 37.78%

Investment in Rastra Uthhan Laghubitta Sanstha and Nepal Digital Payment Co. Ltd. is accounted for using the equity method in this
consolidated financial statements. Butwal Suti Dhago Udhyog Limited and Himal Cement Company Limited are defunct company and
provision for impairment has been created for investment in these entities.
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5.25.1 Rastra Utthan Laghubitta Sanstha Limited

Property Plant and Equipment 18,870,130
Other Assets 40,279,290
Loans and Advances 3,287,611,460
Member Deposit 828,498,680
Borrowing from BFls 2,145,828,270
Other liabilities 111,741,970
Cparicaars T 2 i 207 (Un it
Interest income on Loan 447,962,940.00
Interest expense on borrowing and deposits 227,106,700.00
Provision for possible losses 1,994,800.00
Profit (loss) for the year 66,502,240.00

Other comprehensive income for the year -

Total comprehensive income for the year -

Dividends received from the associate during the year -

Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in Rastra Utthan Laghubitta
Sanstha Limited recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Particulars As at 32 Ashadh 2079 As at 31 Ashadh 2078

Net assets of the associate 442,212,760 292,999,710
Proportion of the Bank’s ownership interest in Rastra Utthan Laghubitta Sanstha Limited 93,527,999 92,085,623
Goodwill - -
Other adjustments - -
Carrying amount of the Bank’s interest in Rastra Utthan Laghubitta Sanstha Limited 93,527,999 92,085,623

5.26 ADJUSTMENT FOR ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND INTEREST SUSPENSE

Interest Income on loans and advances has been computed as per “Guideline on Recognition of Interest Income 2019". Therefore, the
interest receivable due for more than 365 days and interest receivable against loans in Bad category has not been recognized. Interest
receivable on such category of loan shall be recognized if arrears of principal and interest from the borrowers have been cleared and it
is probable that the customer is capable of fully servicing his obligation under terms of the loan for the foreseeable future.

Closing interest suspense 6,593,432,559 7,699,315,040

Less: Accrued Interest Receivable taken to Interest Income

Adjusted Interest Suspense Account 6,593,432,559 7,699,315,040

5.27 DISCLOSURE RELATED TO LOAN WRITTEN OFF DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD
During the reporting period Loans and Advance with principal amounting to NPR. 120,780,123 and interest amounting to NPR.
682,576,714 were written off.
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5.28 DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH NEPAL RASTRA BANK'’S DIRECTIVE ISSUED FOR MINIMIZATION OF THE IMPACT OF COVID-19

As of Ashadh end 2079

Particulars Remarks

No. of Customers Amount
Accrued Interest Received after Asadh end 2079 0 0 Any interest recovered/received after 2079 Ashad End has
till 15 Bhadra 2079 not been deducted from regulatory reserves.
Additional 0.3% Loan Loss Provision created 629,074,635 The Bank has made additional loan loss provision of 0.30%
on Pass Loan Portfolio on pass loan portfolio in compliance with NRB Direction.
Extension of moratorium period of loan 7 2,949,116,409 The Bank has provided extension of moratorium period for
provided to Industry or Project under highly COVID affected borrowers as per their request.
construction
Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% 65 741,370,000 The Bank has restructured/rescheduled loans provided to
Loan Loss Provision COVID impacted borrowers as per NRB Directives/ Circulars

and 5% loan loss provisioning has been maintained.

Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by - - The Bank has not provided additional 20% working capital
20% to COVID affected borrowers loan during FY 2078/79.
Enhancement of Term Loan by 10% to - - The Bank has not provided additional 10% term loan during
COVID affected borrowers FY 2078/79.
Expiry Date of Additional 20% Working 139 460,982,354 Expiry date of 20% additional working capital loan has been
Capital Loan (COVID Loan) extended for up extended up to 1 year with 5% provisioning.
to 1 year with 5% provisioning
Expiry Date of Additional 10% Term Loan 12 172,512,000 Expiry date of 10% additional term loan has been extended
(COVID Loan) extended for up to 1 year with up to 1 year with 5% provisioning.
5% provisioning
Time Extension provided for repayment of 4 966,160,026 The Bank has extended the repayment period up to two
Principal and Interest for up to two years as years as per clause 44 of NRB Directives 2.

per clause 44 of NRB Directives 2

DETAILS OF REFINANCE AND BUSINESS CONTINUITY LOAN

As of Ashadh end 2079
oot Cusomers | Amount |
Refinance Loan 1,656 7,060,736,189 The Bank has obtained refinance facility for the loans and advances provided
to COVID impacted borrowers as per NRB refinancing procedure.
Business Continuity Loan - - Business continuity loans has not been provided due to no demand of borrowers.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIZED LOAN

M As of Ashadh end 2079

No. of Customers m

Subsidized Loan 11,500 11,291,038,581 The Bank has provided subsidized loans to women entrepreneurs, marginalized
society, highly professionals, returnee from foreign employment at concessional
interest rate to promote agriculture, business and employment.

5.29 PROPOSED DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors in its 2579th meeting held on 2079/08/29 has passed a resolution for recommending distribution of 7.50% Cash
dividend and 5.00% Bonus Shares on the paid up capital as at 32 Ashadh 2079 from distributable profit up to FY 2078/79, subject to the
approval from upcoming Annual General Meeting and Government of Nepal.

The cash dividend and bonus share equivalent to 7.50%. and 5.00% of paid up share capital amounting Rs. 1,045,526,932 and
697,017,955 respectively shall be distributed from distributable profit up to FY 2078/79.
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Paid up Share Capital as on 2079 Ashad End
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13,940,359,099

Distributable Profit for FY 2078/79

1,466,465,248

Distributable Profit up to FY 2078/79

1,889,254,765

Cash Dividend Percentage 7.50%
Amount of Cash Dividend 1,045,526,932
Percentage of Bonus Share 5.00%
Amount of Bonus Share 697,017,955
Total Percentage of Dividend 12.50%
Total Amount of Dividend 1,742,544,887

5.30 PRINCIPAL INDICATORS

1. Percent of net Profit/ Gross Income Percent 25.97 3043 23.17 18.61 18.53
2. Adjusted Earnings Per Share Rs. 30.26 56.04 48.61 37.27 34.85
3 Market Value per Share Rs. - - -
4. Price Earnings Ratio Ratio - - -
5. Dividend (including Bonus) on Share Percent - 12% 4.50% 33%
capital

6. Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent - 12% 2.50% 3%
7. Interest Income/ Loan and Advances Percent 9.20 8.97 9.63 6.99 7.93
8. Staff Expenses/ Total Operating Percent 31.48 30.57 24.53 22.45 18.92
Expense

9 Interest Expense on Total Deposit Percent 1.76 2.59 33 297 422
and Borrowings

10. Exchange Gain/Total Income Percent 0.30 0.13 0.33 0.9 0.16
11. Staff Bonus/Total Staff expenses Percent 9.50 11.27 10.57 8.49 10.08
12. Net Profit /Loans and Advances Percent 225 3.41 2.8 1.75 1.87
13. Net Profit/ Total Assets Percent 1.42 2.23 1.64 1.1 1.30
14. Total Credit/Deposits Percent 71.38 77.15 67.16 73.62 88.49
15. Total Operating Expenses/ Total Percent 3.45 4.47 4.74 4.36 5.12
Assets

16. Adequacy of Capital Fund on Risk

Weighted Assets

a. Core Capital* Percent 9.98 12.31 11.42 11.09 10.95
b. Supplementary Capital Percent 1.48 1.08 1.22 237 234
c. Total Capital Fund Percent 11.46 13.39 12.64 13.46 13.29
17. Liquidity (CRR) Percent 5.29 6.44 7.32 3.54 7.32
18 Non Performing Credit/ Total Credit Percent 4.75 4.59 4.08 3.23 2.09%
19. Base Rate 6.20 5.50 5.8 541 7.63
20 Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread* 4,95 446 4,26 437 4.29
21. Book Net Worth Rs. 30,687,324,395 21,585,803,588 23,029,537,949  28,674,300,245 32,678,937,859
22. Total Shares No. 101,848,916 90,047,957 90,047,957 91,848,916 149,403,591
23. Total Staff No. 1,945 2,096 1,978 2,187 2,136
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6. Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements:
6.1 COMPARISON OF UNAUDITED AND AUDITED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 32 ASHADH 2079

Variance

Statement of Financial As per Audited As per unaudited .

" . s . N Reasons for Variance

Position Financial Statement | Financial Statement In amount

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 7,880,097,708 7,880,097,708 - 0.00%

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 16,423,317,544 16,423,317,544 - 0.00%

Placement with Bank and - - - 0.00%

Financial Institutions

Derivative financial instruments - - - 0.00%

Other trading assets - - - 0.00%

Loan and advances to B/Fls 16,533,783,954 16,574,188,753 40,404,799 0.24% Due to Reclassification

Loans and advances to 210,183,764,026 212,049,558,981 1,865,794,955 0.88% Increase inimpairment provision,

customers decrease in realizable accrued interest and
recalculation of resent value of staff loan.

Investment securities 65,377,116,406 64,771,033,595 (606,082,811) -0.94% Change in valuation of equity
instruments measured at FVTOCI

Current tax assets 3,636,497,060 2,929,257,678 (707,239,382) -24.14% Updated calculation of income tax
liability as per Income Tax Act 2058

Investment in subsidiaries 200,000,000 200,000,000 - 0.00%

Investment in associates 206,111,100 206,111,100 - 0.00%

Investment property 177,265,441 177,682,514 417,073 0.23% Impairment of some of the non-
banking assets

Property and equipment 3,167,479,565 2,042,245,183 (1,125,234,382) -55.10% Duetoaddition of leased right to use assets
onimplementation of NFRS-16: Leases

Goodwill and Intangible assets 52,408,411 52,408,411 (0) 0.00%

Deferred tax assets - 36,946,221 36,946,221 100.00% Update in calculation of deferred tax

Other assets 6,404,963,110 5,558,887,878 (846,075,232) -15.22% Reclassification

Total Assets 330,242,804,326 328,901,735,566 (1,341,068,760) -0.41%

Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial 4,748,840,822 3,509,870,822 (1,238,970,000) -35.30% Reclassification of Deposits due to

Institution BFls

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 24,060,736,189 24,060,736,189 - 0.00%

Derivative financial - - - 0.00%

instruments

Deposits from customers 258,144,297,064 259,383,267,064 1,238,970,000 0.48% Reclassification of Deposits due to BFls

Borrowing 60,000,000 60,017,480 17,480 0.03% Reclassification

Current Tax Liabilities - - - 0.00%

Provisions 375,716,839 438,081,464 62,364,625 14.24% Update in calculation of provision

Deferred tax liabilities 320,002,617 - (320,002,617) 100.00% Update in calculation of deferred tax

Other liabilities 7,247,149,648 5,359,361,400 (1,887,788,248) -35.22% Increase in lease liability as per NFRS-
16: Leases and reclassifications

Debt securities issued 2,607,123,287 2,607,123,287 - 0.00%

Subordinated Liabilities - - - 0.00%

Total liabilities 297,563,866,466 295,418,457,706 (2,145,408,760) -0.73%

Equity - - -

Share capital 14,940,359,099 14,940,359,099 - 0.00%

Share premium - - - 0.00%

Retained earnings 1,863,442,018 3,032,373,029 1,168,931,011 38.55% Due to change in various items of
statement of profit and loss and its
appropriations

Reserves 15,875,136,743 15,510,545,732 (364,591,011) -2.35% Due to change in various items of
statement of profit and loss and its
appropriations

Total equity attributable to 32,678,937,860 33,483,277,860 804,340,000 2.40%

equity holders

Non-controlling interest - - - 0.00%

Total equity 32,678,937,860 33,483,277,860 804,340,000 2.40%

Total liabilities and equity 330,242,804,326 328,901,735,566 (1,341,068,760) -0.41%
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6.2 COMPARISON OF UNAUDITED AND AUDITED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 32 ASHADH 2079:

Statement of Profit or Loss

As per Audited

Financial
Statement

As per unaudited

Financial
Statement

Variance

m

Reasons for Variance

Interest income 20,689,738,858 21,018,370,518 328,631,660 1.56% Due to interest reversal for
increase in premium rate and
downgrade of loan causing
disqualification of interest
recognition

Interest expense 11,393,790,807 11,349,079,468 (44,711,339) -0.39% Due to increase in finance cost of
lease liability

Net interest income 9,295,948,051 9,669,291,050 373,342,999 3.86%

Fees and commission income 1,019,601,336 1,019,601,336 - 0.00%

Fees and commission expense 349,342,968 349,341,968 (1,000) 0.00% reclassification

Net fee and commission income 670,258,368 670,259,368 1,000 0.00%

Net interest, fee and 9,966,206,419 10,339,550,418 373,343,999 3.61%

commission income

Net trading income 27,267,665 27,352,839 85,174 0.31% reclassification

Other operating income 993,966,489 911,085,507 (82,880,982) -9.10% Recruitment fee collected during
FY 2078/79 recognized.

Total operating income 10,987,440,573 11,277,988,764 290,548,191 2.58%

Impairment charge/(reversal) for 355,718,124 (686,818,359) (1,042,536,483) 151.79% Due to change in loan

loans and other losses classification and additional
provision

Net operating income 10,631,722,449 11,964,807,123 1,333,084,674 11.14%

Operating expense

Personnel expenses 3,200,129,676 3,361,713,063 161,583,387 4.81% Due to change in retirement
benefit expenses as per updated
actuarial valuation report, change
in bonus expenses and deferred
employee cost.

Other operating expense 1,055,094,374 1,318,366,364 263,271,990 19.97% House rent expenses reversed due
to implementation of NFRS-16:
Leases

Depreciation & Amortization 559,099,413 266,231,433 (292,867,980) -110.01% Increase in depreciation on lease
assets due to implementation of
NFRS-16: Leases

Operating Profit 5,817,398,986 7,018,496,263 1,201,097,277 17.11%

Non-operating income 430,431,650 430,428,826 (2,824) 0.00%

Non-operating expense 120,780,124 - (120,780,124) 100.00% reclassification of written off loan

Share of profit of associates - - - 0.00%

Profit before income tax 6,127,050,512 7,448,925,089 1,321,874,577 17.75%

Income tax expense

Current Tax 1,499,403,751 2,206,643,133 707,239,382 32.05% Update in calculation of income
tax expenses as per Income Tax
Act, 2058

Deferred Tax 334,824,911 28,034,394 (306,790,517) -1094.34% Update in calculation of deferred
tax expenses as per NAS 12:
Income Taxes

Profit for the period 4,292,821,850 5,214,247,562 921,425,712 17.67%

¥
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RASTRIYA BANIJYA BANK LIMITED

Central Office Singhadurbar Plaza, Kathmandu
Phone:+977-1-425-2595

Fax:+977-1-425-2931

Email: rbb.info@rbb.com.np

Post-Box No.:8368

SWIFT Code: RBBANPKA

Email: intlbkng@rbb.com.np




